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CORPORATE INFORMATION

as on March 31, 2023

BOARD OF DIRECTORS CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
° °

Mr. Harvinder Pal Singh - Non-Executive Director Mr. Arjun Bansal

Mr. Sundeep Kumar Mehta- Independent Director

Mr. Anil Kumar Kalra - Independent Director

Mr. Sumit Mukherjee — Whole Time Director & CEO COMPANY SECRETARY
Ms. Jyoti Ahluwalia- Independent Director Mr. Puneet Jolly

DETAILS OF COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD
)

Audit Committee

Mr. Sundeep Kumar Mehta (Chairperson)
Mr. Anil Kumar Kalra

Mr. Harvinder Pal Singh

Nomination & Remuneration Committee

Mr. Sundeep Kumar Mehta (Chairperson)
Mr. Harvinder Pal Singh

Mr. Anil Kumar Kalra

IT Strategy Committee

Mr. Sundeep kumar Mehta (Chairperson)
Mr. Sumit Mukherjee

Mr. Sunil Yadav

Mr. Arjun Bansal

STATUTORY AUDITORS

°
M/s Rajeev Bhatia & Associates, Chartered

Accountants, 201, 202, 2nd Floor, A-20,
Indraprastha Bhawan, Dr. Mukherjee Nagarr,
Commercial Complex, Delhi-110009

Email id: info@rajeevbhatiaassociates.com
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SECRETARIAL AUDITORS DEBENTURE TRUSTEE

J J

M/s S. Behera & Co., Practicing Company Catalyst Trusteeship Limited, GDA House,
Secretaries S-1/3 & 4, Ist Floor, Near Uphaar First Floor, Plot No. 85 S. No. 94 & 95,
Cinema, Green Park Ext., New Delhi - 110 016 Bhusari Colony (Right), Kothrud Pune MH
Email: shesdev@gmail.com 411038 | Tel. No: +11 43029101.

Fax: +9122 4922 0505

REGISTER AND TRANSFER AGENT Website: www.catalysttrustee.co
)

Asset Liability Management Committee
Link Intime India Private Limited (for Equity)

C 101, 1st Floor, 247 Park, Lal Bahadur Shastri Marg,

Mr. HGrVinder PGI Slng h (Non-Independent & non-executive Director)
Mr. Sumit Mu kherjee (Whole-time Director & CEQ)

Vikhroli (West) Mumbai, Maharashtra Mr. Arjun bhansal (hietfinancia offce)

-40008. Tel: 022 - 4918 6270 | Risk Management Committee

Website: www.linkintime.co.in Mr. Sundeeep Kumar Mehta(Chairperson)
Karvy Fintech Private Limited (For Debentures) Mr. Anil Kumar Kalra

KFintech, Tower — B, Plot No 31 & 32, Selenuim Mr. Harvinder Pal Singh
Building,Financial District, Nanakramguda, Mr. Sumit Mukherjee

Gachibowli, Hyderabad - 500 032. Mr. Surojit Chatterjee

Website: www.kfintech.com

BANKERS/ FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS
)

Bankers

HDFC Bank Limited

State Bank of India

Financial Institutions (Inclusive)

MAS Financial Services Limited

Vivriti Capital Private Limited

Netafim Agricultural Financing Agency
Private Limited

Grow Money Capital Private limited
Caspian Impact Investments Private limited
Nabkisan Finance Limited

DEPOSITORIES FOR DEMAT
o

National Securities Depository Ltd.
(NsSDL)

4th Floor, A Wing, Trade World,
Kamala Mills Compound, S.B.
Marg, Lower Parel, Mumbai - 400
013. Ph. No. : +91 022 24994200 |
Email id: info@nsdl.co.in |

' ' | Website : www.nsdl.co.in
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CREDIT RATING

Nature
Long Term Bank Facilities - CARE BBB+;
Stable (Triple B Plus; Outlook: Stable)

Non-convertible Debentures - CARE
BBB+; Stable (Triple B Plus; Outlook:
Stable)

CONTACT DETAILS

Satin Finserv Limited

Registered Office & Corporate Office:
Plot No. 492, 4th Floor, B-Wing, Udyog
Vihar Phase-lll, Gurugram,
Haryana-122016

CIN: U65999HR2018PLC099128

Email: info@satinfinserv.com

Tel. No.: 0124-47154000

Website: www.satinfinserv.com
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MISSION AND VISSION

J
To cater to the needs of the rapidly rising MSME industry, fuelling
both industry growth and employment generation.

C

]
\ 4
P /NN ®

h\/4 To facilitate financial inclusiveness across the country and
contribute to the nation’s overall economic development.

O

Aiming to be one of the most trusted and admired NBFC to aid
financial services to various to Entrepreneurs, MSMEs and Indi-
vidual Businesses, MFI companies

(r (o
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CUSTOMER'S TESTIMONY

Sohail Igbal Tai aged 45 years is a resident of Vasai, in Mumbai. He lives with his
spouse, parents and two children. Their ancestral house was built by his father but

his father had availed the loan from a private lender and hence was paying heavy
interest on this loan.

Although they had a good set up of business they we unable to have sufficient
savings owing to the big debt they had from this private lender. Mr.Sohail
approached SFL to pay off his debts to the private lender and at the same time
expand his business of footwear and wall clocks. When he approached us we !
explained him the benefits of formal lending system. We offered him a loan of 11 lakh !

from which he was able to pay off the heavy property debt and also managed to
purchase some fresh stock for his business.

The financial aid helped him to free his ancestral property from which he is now also
earing rental income. Also the business saw a boost owing to the fresh stocking in
their store. Mr.Sohail is extremely happy to have connected with SFL and now has a
steady income and savings to support his family.

Surinder Singh Applicant Surinder Singh is living in Ambala. He is in the
business of retail garments .He approached us to expand his business of
garments trading which is setup in a small village. He wanted to increase
the stock in his shop to offer wide variety to his customer. For this he
required a loan. He was offered a loan of 7 lac for 84 months.

Mr. Surinder used the loan amount for purchasing stock and invest in his
business. Now he has good stock in his shop. He always wanted to expand
the business and ensure that he could exceed his family expectations and
save for his children’s future.

With this loan he has been able to set his business in a better manner and
is grateful to SFL for extending the finance at the time he needed it.

=1/
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CEO SPEAK

MSME customers in Semi Urban and rural India are underserved by the
formal banking sector. These customers are unable to provide any kind of
financial documents which will enable an assessment of their cash flows
and hence support a positive decision to lend to such customers. At SFL we
understand this problem and are continuously working to understand the
need of the customer and meet their working capital needs to sustain and
grow their businesses. The pandemic has deeply impacted the rural house
hold income, SFL has stood by customers and worked with them to
structure their cash flows to their current levels of income.

Mr. Sumit Mukherjee
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ABOUT THE COMPANY

“SFL is a Non-Deposit Non- Banking Finance Company holding certificate of Registration
from the Reserve Bank of India (“RBI”) dated January 09, 2019. SFL is wholly owned subsidiary
of Satin Creditcare Network Limited. The Company is engaged in the business to provide
finance whether short term or long term to micro, small and medium scale enterprises and
business loans to individuals and corporates and acting as business correspondents on

behalf of various banks and financial institutions”.

SOME OF BASIS DETAILS OF THE COMPANY, AS
ON MARCH 31, 2023, ARE AS FOLLOWS:

Issued Subscribed and Paid-upCapital Rs. 140.51 Cr
Completed 4 full years of profitable operations

Gross Loan Portfolio of Rs. 225.57 Cr as of March 2023
Geographically Diversified Micro Business Loan Portfolio
Number of Clients — 2,69,023

Employees - 1,612

Number of States — 10

Number of Branches - 178

=1/
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Satin Finserv has been specifically established to fill a much needed gap in the market, targeting
small business owners in manufacturing, trading and services — all customer segments that are
usually denied mainstream access to organized finance.

The Company built on a foundation of happy employees is destined for success. At Satin Finsery,
we take pride in our people and consider them our most valuable assets - each of
them plays an indispensable role in the company’s journey to success. In a workplace that
imbibes professionalism, enthusiasm and ownership, our employees are encouraged to put their
individual skills, knowledge and experience to use in a collaborative manner to drive growth and
productivity. Working as one, these diligent men and women pave the way for a brighter tomorrow
- for the company, their own teams and themselves. Above all, all our employees are motivat ed
to deliver the very best to our customers, to the very best of their abilities. It is this culture of team-
work, accountability and ambition that has served to help Satin Finserv Limited grow from one
milestone to another and achieve resounding success along the way.

The Company plans to continue its growth journey by opening more branches and further
investing in technology to optimize operating costs and improve collection efficiency

Satin Creditcare launched its operations as a provider of individual and small business loans and

savings services to urban lenders in 1990, going on to be registered as an NBFC with the RBI in 1998 and
converting into an NBFC-MFI in November 2013. The company completed its IPO in the fiscal year of 1997
and was duly listed on the Delhi Stock Exchange (DSE), Ludhiana Stock Exchange (LSE) and the Jaipur
Stock Exchange (JSE). Following the subsequent derecognition of these exchanges by SEBI, Satin Cred-
itcare listed its Equity Shares on the Calcutta Stock Exchange (CSE) on May 19, 2015, on the NSE on
August 26 and the BSE on October 20 in the same year, adhering to the guidelines and policies issued
by SEBI regarding the exit option to regional stock exchanges (issued December 29, 2008) and the exit

policy for derecogized/non-operational stock exchanges (issued May 30, 2012).

Satin Finserv Limited



FINANCIAL NUMBERS

as on March 31, 2023

Net worth
INR 137.67 Crores

INR 127.42 Crores 416% INR 253.69 Crores

Disbursement (In Return on Equity Disbursement (In
SME — During FY ROE JLG/BC - During FY

" 2022-23 2022-23)
- / / PAGE 10
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PROGRESSIVE JOURNEY

2023

Merger of Taraashna with SFL
4th Year PAT — 606 Lakhs.
AUM - 682 Cr.

MARCH 2022
3rd full year of Operations
PAT of Rs 181 Lakhs
MARCH 2021

2" full year of Operations

PAT of Rs 477.82 Lakhs
JULY 2021
Recommenced Business
Post 2nd lockdown

JULY 2020
Reduction of Ticket Size to 9
3.5 lakhs
MARCH 2020

9 Ist full year of Operations
PAT of Rs 64 Lakhs

DECEMBER 2019
AUM of Rs.100 Crs

MARCH 2019
Commenced Business
JANUARY 2019

NBFC Licence Received

AUGUST 2018
Incorporated
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Mr. H P Singh
Director

He is a law graduate and a fellow of The
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
since 1984. He has over three decades
of microfinance experience and pioneered
the concept of daily collection of
repayments of loans. Besides being an
expert in lending (especially microfinance)
he has experience in the field of auditing,
accounts, project financing, advisory
services and company law matters. His
financial engineering experience of almost
three decades has helped the Company

in operationalstrategy and efficiency.

Mr. Sundeep Kumar Mehta
Independent Director

He is a Science graduate from University of
Rajasthan and also holds a Post graduate
diploma in Business Administration from
Annamalai University. Apart from these, he
holds various other certifi cates, degrees
and diplomas in the field of Cyber Law,
History, Labour Laws, Auto Engg and Human
resources. He has over 33 years of experi
ence. Prior to joining SFL, He has served RKJ
group, Escorts Ltd, Panacea Biotech ltd,
Bata India Ltd, and also Eicher Good Earth

Ltd at various high capacitiesrespectively

Mr. Anil Kumar Kalra
Independent Director

He has 35 years of experience in Banking
and served in the area of Banking, Financial
Services, investment Banking and
Infrastructure Financing. He served as
Senior Vice President in a leading NBFC
engaged in providing financial services
including Asset financing, Debt Syndication,
Corporate Advisory, Merchant Banking etc.
to corporates besides support to sister
companies in the Group focussed on
Infrastructure Projects financing. He has
done MBA in finance and B.com (H) from
Shree Ram College of Commerce, Delhi

University

=/
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Ms. Jyoti Ahluwalia
Woman Independent Director

She is a Independent Director of the
Company. She is Ph.D. and Master’s in
Commerce, CFA from India, PGDBA -
Finance from ICFAI Business School. She has
taught Finance, Analytics, Strategy,
Financial Management, Mergers and
Acquisitions, Financial Business Analytics
and Data Analytics and Machine Learning.
She has held important roles in corporates

such as Actuarial Analysts at Milliman India

(Actuaries and Consultants), Syndicated

Research

Mr .Sumit Mukherjee
WTD & CEO
He has over 29 years of experience in the
NBFC space and has managed various roles
in Sales, Credit and Collections, has product
experience on Sales, Credit and Collections

for SME lending, Commercial vehicles, Agri

lending, Construction/ Infrastructure

lending, Printing and Medical equipment,
Car finance. His major stints have been with
Ashok Leyland Finance, Citicorp and
Magma Fincorp Ltd. In Magma he has
managed the ABF business and led a team
of 5000 and AUM of 13000 crs across 250

branches.
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THE MANAGEMENT TEAM

Mr. Surojit Chatterjee
Head Credit & Risk

He has a total 23 years of work experience of
which 13 years in NBFC space handling
product line of Commercial Vehicles, Cars,
Construction Equipments and SME. He has
worked with organizations like Mahindra
Farm Equipments, Ceat Ltd., JK Industries Ltd.,
Birla Tyres, Magma Fincorp Ltd. His latest
assignment was with IKF Finance. He has
completed his Engineering from India Society

of Engineers.

Mr. Puneet Jolly
€S

He has overall experience of more than 7
years in NBFC sector, RBI/business
policies, Legal, Equity and debt listed
compliances. He has worked with
Slicepay (NBFC & Fintech company) as
Compliance-Head. Also, worked with
Home Credit India in Compliance team
and with Era Group as compliance

officer. He is qualified CS in first attempt,

graduated from Delhi University.

=/
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Mr. Manish Dwivedi
Head HR & Admin

He has got 18 years of experience in Human
Resource Management Function in diverse
industries such as Automobile & Manufacturing,
Real Estate, FMCD, FMCG & NBFC. He has worked
organizations like Honda, DLF, POSCO, Nikon &
Kissandhan Agri Finance. His last assignment
was with Almaha Foods International Pvt. Ltd. as
Head — HR & Administration. He has done his
MBA from Symbiosis, Pune and Graduation from

Deshbandhu Gupta College, Delhi University.

Mr. Arjun Bansal
CFO

He has more than 10 years of experience in

Financial Services viz accounting, finance,

budgeting and taxation. Prior to Joining

Satin, he has worked with

IIFL Group. He is a Qualified Chartered

Accountant & Commerce graduate from
Delhi University.

Mr. Irshad Hussain
Head Collection

He has a total 18 years of work experience in
the NBFC and manufacturing sector. He has
worked with organizations like L&T Finance,
Kotak Mahindra Bank, Magma Fincorp
limited, ACE Ltd & Barota Finance LTD. His last
assignment was with Barota Finance Limited
- Business Head. He has completed his

Engineering from IME.

Mr. Rajkumar Jayaswal
Business Head - JLG

He have total experience of 2lyears out of
which 18 years into Banking & Finance
Industry. Currently managing JLG vertical
for the company. Prior to this he was
associated with ICICI Bank for 11 years
where he has handled Retail Assets,
Agri Assets, Gold Loan and Liability
products and Branches for the Bank. He
was also associated with City finance and
Godrej & Boyce.
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PRODUCT OFFERINGS

Loan Product Purpose Ticket Size Tenor Collateral Eligibility Criteria

« Income Generation activities
Smaill Ticket «  Working Capital - 15Lto 350 60 Month b N . Minimumage-22
Business Loan Long term loans (3-5years) oLto s onths roperty « Businessstability of minimum 3 years

Short Term Loans( 1to <3 year)

« Minimum AUM of 75 crores.

Term Loans Upto 5Cr 18 Months | Book debts Minimum net worth of 10 crores
Businessstability of minimum 3 years

MFI-NBFC
(Currently on hold)

- Business stability of minimum 3 years
Large Ticket Term Loans Upto5Cr 60 Months Unsecured Company needs to be profitable as per last
audited financials

« Minimum age -18
MaximumHousehold Income to be < 3 L.
« Annual Household Obligation to be 50% of
Annual Household Income.

JLG Business Income Generation activities Up to 0.65L 24 Months Unsecured

SFL also has partnerships with various entities in which small ticket, unsecured, FLDG backed loans are also given
“SFL is also acting as business correspondents on behalf of various banks and financial institutions.”

A

Satin Finserv Limited




Satin Finserv Limited

TARGET CUSTOMER SEGMENT

— Dairy

Agri Equipment
— Dealers/
Manufacturers

Agri Chemicals/
—— Fertilizers Dealers/
Retailers

Cattle Feed
Manufacturers [

Retailers/
Distributers

| Animal Husbandry &
Poultry

=1/

—  Kirana /General Store

— Chemist

— Wood and Plastic traders

— Cement and Steel Traders

— Consumer Durables traders

— Cloth Merchents

— Foot wear Retailers

Hardware, Electrical

— Sanitary wear Trader /
Retailer

— Restaurants

— Auto Service Centre

— Diagnostic Centres

— Tailoring/Job work

Plumbingwork/
Electrician

— Bakery | Sweet Shops

L—Tent House Businesses

| i Textile and Garments
Manufacturer & Job workers

— Footwear Manufacturer

— Bag Manufacturer

Wood & Plastic Furniture
Manufacturer

| Bottled Water Manufacturer
& Suppliers
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GEOGRAPHIC PRESENCE

as on March 31, 2023

‘ "\ —
g ) « Ambala
« Ludhiana "
- « Panipat
« Patiala A
« Rewari
\\7 /
Jainur > w0 § ‘ ‘\'7  —
P ‘ : « NCR
« Gurgaon
\ \s— —“/
. Kolkata
Ahmedabad
N
* Ty Nl Total Number of Clients- 2,69,023
« Pune \ S « Indore
\ ~ Number of Employees - 1,612
\_§ Number of States - 10

Number of Branches - 178
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RISK MANAGEMENT

Credit Policy

Bureau Cashflow
checks Assessment

Satin Finserv Limited

Collateral

Monitoring

Concentration
-Industry
-Pincode

Underwriting
Process

Credit
Field Team

Central
Credit Team

Credit
Operations

Internal
Audit

Collections

Telecalling
-Awareness and
-Early bucket

Fraud Checks
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Satin Finserv Limited

NOTICE OF 5T ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
OF SATIN FINSERV LIMITED

NOTICE is hereby given that the 5t Annual General Meeting of the shareholders of Satin Finserv Limited
will be held on Thursday, July 27, 2023 at 11:00 A.M. at its registered office at 4th Floor, B Wing, Plot No. 492,
Udyog Vihar, Phase III, Gurugram - 122016, Haryana, to transact the following business:

Ordinary Business:

1. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements of the Company including the Balance
Sheet as at March 31, 2023, the Statement of Profit & Loss for the financial year ended on that date and the
Reports of Board of Directors and Auditors' thereon and if thought fit, to pass with or without
modification(s) the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT the Audited Financial Statements of the Company including the Balance Sheet as at
March 31, 2023, the Statement of Profit and Loss, the cash flow statement for the financial year ended on
March 31, 2023, notes to financial statements, reports of the Board and Auditors’ thereon be and are

hereby received, considered and adopted.”

2. To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Harvinder Pal Singh (DIN: 00333754), Director who retires by
rotation and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment and if thought fit, to pass with or without
modification(s) the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 152 and other applicable provisions, if any, of
the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made thereunder (including any statutory modification(s) or re-
enactment thereof, for the time being in force), Mr. Harvinder Pal Singh (DIN: 00333754) who retires by
rotation and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment, be and is hereby re-appointed as a Director
of the Company, liable to retire by rotation.”

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Satin Finserv Limited

Date:
Place:
Sd/-
Puneet Jolly
Company Secretary

Registered & Corporate Office:
4th Floor, ‘B’ Wing, Plot No. 492, Udyog Vihar, Phase -11I
Gurugram, Haryana - 122016
CIN : U65999HR2018PLC099128 I Landline No : 0124 - 47154000
E-Mail ID : info@satinfinserv.com [ Website : www.satinfinserv.com
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Notes:

1. A member who is entitled to attend and vote is entitled to appoint a proxy to attend and vote instead of
himself/herself and such proxy need not be a member of the Company. A person can act as proxy on behalf
of members not exceeding fifty (50) and holding in the aggregate not more than ten percent of the total
share capital of the Company carrying voting rights. However, a member holding more than ten percent of
the total share capital of the Company carrying voting rights may appoint a single person as proxy and such
person shall not act as proxy for any other shareholder

2. Members desirous of obtaining any information/clarification(s) concerning the accounts and operations
of the Company or intending to raise any query are requested to forward the same at least 10 days before
the date of the meeting to Company Secretary at the Registered Office of the Company, so that the same
may be attended to appropriately.

3. Members/Proxies are requested to bring their duly filled attendance slip sent herewith at the Meeting.

4. Ablank proxy form is enclosed hereto and if intended to be used, it should be returned duly completed at
the registered office of the Company not less than 48 hours before the scheduled time of the
Commencement of the Meeting.

5. Members can inspect the register of director and key managerial personnel and their shareholding and

register of contracts or arrangements as maintained under section 170 and section 189 of the Companies

Act, 2013 during the course of the meeting at the venue.

Statutory Registers will be available for inspection by the Members at the AGM.

Members holding equity capital shall have one vote per share.

8. Corporate members intending to send their authorized representatives to attend the meeting are
requested to send to the Company a certified true copy of the Board Resolution authorizing their
representative to attend and vote on their behalf at the meeting.

9. All documents referred to in accompanying notice and the statement shall be open for inspection at the
Registered Office of the Company during the normal business hours from 09:00 a.m. to 06:00 p.m. on all
working days, expect Saturdays and Sundays up to and including the date of Annual General Meeting of the
Company and will also be available for the inspection

10. To route map showing direction to reach the venue of 5t Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) is annexed.

No

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Satin Finserv Limited

Date:
Place:

Sd/-
Puneet Jolly
Company Secretary

Registered & Corporate Office:
4th Floor, ‘B’ Wing, Plot No. 492, Udyog Vihar, Phase -11I
Gurugram, Haryana - 122016
CIN : U65999HR2018PLC099128 I Landline No : 0124 - 47154000
E-Mail ID : info@satinfinserv.com [ Website : www.satinfinserv.com
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EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 102 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013

Ordinary Business

Item No. 2

The disclosure as required under Standard 1.2.5 of the “Secretarial Standard-2 on General Meetings” is given

below:

Name of the Director

Mr. Harvinder Pal Singh

Date of Birth December 24, 1960
Age 63 Years
Qualifications A fellow member of ICAI since 1984; Participated in Harvard

Business School’s Accion program and a leadership program at
Wharton Business School

Brief Profile & Experience

Mr. Harvinder Pal Singh has over three decades of
microfinance experience to his credit and is responsible for
pioneering the unique concept of daily collection of
repayments of loans. Aside being an expert in lending,
particularly in the microfinance field, Mr. Singh also has a
wealth of experience across auditing, accounts, project
financing, advisory services and company law matters. It is his
financial engineering acumen, honed over almost thirty years
of experience that has helped SCNL achieve its success in
operational strategy and efficiency. Mr. Singh also participated
in Harvard Business School’s Accion Program on Strategic
Leadership for Microfinance in 2009, as well as the leadership
program organized by Women’s World Banking at Wharton
Business School, University of Pennsylvania in 2011. Mr. Singh
has been an inspiration right from the very beginning when the
company came into being in 1990, till today where he
continues to be actively involved in the company’s day-to-day
operations. Under his leadership, SCNL has grown into one of
India’s leading microfinance institutions in the North and is
poised to further expand its operations across the country.

Date of First Appointment on the Board

August 10, 2018

Terms and conditions of appointment
or re-appointment

As per the Ordinary Resolution set forth at Item No. 2 of this
Notice

Details of Remuneration sought to be NIL
paid (per annum)
Remuneration last drawn (Rs. In Lakhs) | NIL

Registered & Corporate Office:
4th Floor, ‘B’ Wing, Plot No. 492, Udyog Vihar, Phase -11I
Gurugram, Haryana - 122016
CIN : U65999HR2018PLC099128 I Landline No : 0124 - 47154000
E-Mail ID : info@satinfinserv.com [ Website : www.satinfinserv.com
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Directorships held in other companies
(excluding foreign companies) as on
date

Trishashna Holdings & Investments Private Limited
Satin Creditcare Foundation

Parinita Investments Private Limited

Parishek Finance Private Limited

Riwaaz Investments Private Limited

Satin (India) limited

Niryas Food Products Private Limited

UV Associates Private Limited

Satin Creditcare Network Limited

Satin Media Solutions Limited

Taco Consultants Private Limited

Satin Neo Dimensions Private Limited

Anushna Estates Private Limited

Tomorrows One Global Network Private Limited
Tomorrow’s Knowledge Pte. Limited
Tomorrow’s One Capital Pte. Limited

Prestellar Ventures Fund I Pte. Ltd.

Satin Housing Finance Limited

Global Social (India) Foundation

Sa-Dhan the Association of Community Development
Finance Institution

Chairmanship / Memberships of Name of the Committee | Designation
committees across companies of the Audit Committee Member

Board Risk Management | Member

Committee
Asset Liability | Member
Management Committee
Nomination and | Member
Remuneration Committee

Shareholding in the Company NIL

Relationship with other Directors/ NIL
Manager/ Key Managerial Personnel

Number of Board Meetings attended 5
during the FY 2022-23

Registered & Corporate Office:
4th Floor, ‘B’ Wing, Plot No. 492, Udyog Vihar, Phase -11I
Gurugram, Haryana - 122016
CIN : U65999HR2018PLC099128 I Landline No : 0124 - 47154000
E-Mail ID : info@satinfinserv.com [ Website : www.satinfinserv.com
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ATTENDANCE SLIP
(To be presented at the entrance)

Members are requested to complete this Attendance Slip and hand it over at the Registered Office of the
Company. Only Members or their Proxies are entitled to be present at the Annual General Meeting.

Name: Sh. Cert. No. /Folio No. / DP & Client ID:

Address: No. of Shares Held:

[ hereby record my presence at the 5th Annual General Meeting held on Thursday, July 27, 2023 at 11:00 A.M.
atits registered office at 4th Floor, B wing, Plot No. 492 Udyog Vihar, Phase III Gurugram Haryana - 122016

SIGNATURE OF THE SHAREHOLDER/PROXY *

*Strike out whichever is not applicable.

Registered & Corporate Office:
4th Floor, ‘B’ Wing, Plot No. 492, Udyog Vihar, Phase -11I
Gurugram, Haryana - 122016
CIN : U65999HR2018PLC099128 I Landline No : 0124 - 47154000
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Form No. MGT-11
PROXY FORM
[Pursuant to section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 19(3) of the Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

CIN: U65999HR2018PLC099128
Name of the Company: Satin Finserv Limited
Address: 4th Floor, B wing, Plot No. 492 Udyog Vihar, Phase III Gurugram Haryana- 122016

Name of the Member(s):

Registered Address:

E-mail Id:

Folio No. / Sh. Cert. No. DP & Client ID:

We, being the member of Satin Finserv Limited for__  ___Equity shares, hereby appoint

B\ = 0 (T

as our proxy to attend and vote by show of hands/ (on a poll) for us and on our behalf at the 5th Annual General
Meeting of the Company, to be held on Thursday, July 27,2023 at 11:00 A.M. atits registered office at 4th Floor,
B wing, Plot No. 492 Udyog Vihar, Phase IlI, Gurugram - 122016, Haryana and at any adjournment thereof in
respect of such resolution as are indicated below:

Resolution No.1: To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements of the Company including
the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2023, the Statement of Profit & Loss for the financial year ended on that date
and the Reports of Board of Directors and Auditors' thereon

Resolution No. 2: To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Harvinder Pal Singh (DIN: 00333754), Director who
retires by rotation and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment
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Note:

1.)  This form of proxy in order to be effective should be duly completed and deposited at the Registered
Office of the Company, not less than 48 hours before the commencement of the Meeting.

2.)  Those Members who have multiple folios with different joint holders may use copies of this attendance
slip/Proxy form.

3) Inspection of proxies shall be allowed between 09:00 a.m. to 06:00 p.m.
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Independent Auditors’ Report

To the Members of Satin Finserv Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

wWe have audited the accompanying financial statements of Satin Finserv Limited (‘the Company’), which comprise

,1e Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2023, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income),
the Cash Flow Statement, the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended and a surnmary of the significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid financial
statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act’) in the manner so required and give a
true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India including Indian Accounting
Standards (‘Ind AS’) specified under section 133 of the Act, of the state of affairs (financial position) of the Company
as at March 31, 2023, and its profit (financial performance including other comprehensive income), its cash flows and
the changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics
‘ssued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAl’} together with the ethical requirements that are
. elevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the rules thereunder, and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Emphasis of Matters

We draw attention to Note no. 45 to the financial statements with explains that, during the year, Taraashna Financial
Services Limited (amalgamating entity) was amalgamated with the Company vide Hon’able NCLT Order dated January
31, 2023. The scheme got effective from March 01, 2023. The Appointed Date of Scheme is April 01, 2021. By the effect
of Appointed Date (i.e. April 01, 2021}, the financial numbers of the Company for the financial year ended March 31,
2022 are also restated due to amalgamation of the merged entity with the Company.

We further draw attention to Note no 43B to the financial statements which explains that due to the amalgamation
of the amalgamating entity with the company, which is registered as a Non-Banking Financial Company (NBFC), as on
March 31, 2023, the company is not fulfilling Principal Business Criteria laid down by the RBI. As per the criteria, atleast
50% of total assets _c_)f the company should be financial assets and atleast 50% of the gross income should be from

“e b
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financial activities. The company meets the first criteria, but does not meets the second criteria as on March 31, 2023,
However, the RBI vide letter dated July 22, 2022 has granted to the company time till March 31, 2024 for fulfilling the
said criterion

Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with respect to
.1e preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the state of affairs (financial position),
profit or loss (financial performance including other comprehensive income), changes in equity and cash flows of the
Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Ind AS specified
under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and
detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair
view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as
a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditors’ Responsibllities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
Standards on Auditing will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with Standards on Auditing, we exercise professional judgement and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

(a) Identify and assess the risks of material misstaternent of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud

| = [cnf
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is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

(b) Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our
opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls.

(c) Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by management.

(d) Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on
the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Qur conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to
cease to continue as a going concern.

(e) Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the financial staterents represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

/e also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by section 197(16) of the Act, we report that the Company has paid remuneration to its directors during
the year in accordance with the provisions of and limits laid down under section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act.

As required by the Companies {Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (‘the Order’) issued by the Central Government of india
in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in the Annexure A, a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs
3 and 4 of the Order.

Further to our comments in Annexure A, as required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:
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{a) we have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief
were necessary for the purpose of our audit;

(b) in our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears
from our examination of those books;

(¢) the financial statements dealt with by this report are in agreement with the books of account;
(d) in our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified under Section 133 of the Act;

.2} on the basis of the written representations received from the directors and taken on record by the Board of
Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2023 from being appointed as a director in terms of
Section 164(2) of the Act;

(f) we have also audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company as on March 31, 2023
in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date and our
report dated April 22, 2023 as per Annexure B expressed unmodified opinion; and

(g) with respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditors’ Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended), in our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us:

(i) the Company did not have any pending litigations which impacted its financial position as at March 31, 2023;

(ii) the Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were any material
foreseeable iosses as at March 31, 2023;

i) there were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by
the Company during the year ended March 31, 2023;

(iv) a) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds (which are material
either individually or in the aggregate) have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or
share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person or entity, including
foreign entity (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee, security or the like
on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

b) Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds (which are material either
individually or in the aggregate) have been received by the Company from any person or entity, including foreign
entity (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall,
whether, directly or indirectly; lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or
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on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the ke on behalf of
the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

¢) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in the circumstances,
nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (i) of
Rule 11(e), as provided under (a) and (b) above, contain any material misstatement

(v) As per the information and records provided to us by the company, no dividend has been declared or paid during
the year.

(vi) Proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 for maintaining books of account using accounting

Jftware which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility is applicable to the Company with effect from
April 1, 2023, and accordingly, reporting under Rule 11(g) of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 is not
applicable for the financial year ended March 31, 2023.

For Rajeev Bhatia & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Regrstratton,No..

Ve 1% M

L I
Jz{tln Goel
Partner
Membership No.: 553420

UDIN Q329242024 T2ZMT 9350,

Place: Gurugram
sate: April 22, 2023
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditors’ Report

Refarred to in Paragraph 1 under the heading of “Report on other legal and regulatory requirements” of our report

even date of Satin Finserv Limited on the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023)

™ v
o [

(i) Fixed Assets

a)

b)

e)

The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars including quantitative details and
situation of Property, Plant and Equipment and relevant details of right-of-use assets on the basis of
available information.

The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets.

The Property, Plant and Equipment and right-of-use assets of the Company was physically verified as at
the year-end by the management, which in our opinion is reasonable having regard to the size of the
Company and the nature of its assets. According to the information and explanations given to us, no
material discrepancy was noticed on such verification.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company does not hold any immovable property in its name during the
period under audit. Thus, paragraph 3(i) (c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not revalued any of its Property, Plant & Equipment and intangible assets during the
year. Thus, paragraph 3(i} (d} of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

No proceedings have been initiated during the year or are pending against the Company as at March 31,
2023 for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (as amended
in 2016) and rules made thereunder. Thus, paragraph 3(i)(e) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(ii) Inventories & Working Capital Limit

a)

b)

The Company is a service company. Accordingly, it does not hold any physical inventories. Thus, paragraph
3(ii} of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

As per the information and explanation provided to us, the company does not have a working capital limit
sanctioned from any bank or financial institution on the basis of security of current assets during the year
and as on March 31, 2023. Hence, the reporting under clause 3(ii)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

(ili) Loans granted by company

a)

b)

The Company has been registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act 1934 as a Non-
Banking Financial Company (NBFC). Hence, reporting under clause 3(iii)(a) of the order is not applicable to
the company.

In our opinion, the termsand conditions of the grant of loans in nature of loans and advances, during the
year are, prima facje, notprejudicial to the Company’s interest.

Annexu.f{é__lA éF'Audit Report for SFL for FY 2022-23 Page 1 of 6
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1t

in respect of loans granted by the Company, the schedule of repayment of principal and payiment of
interest has been stipulated and the repayments of principal amounts and receipts of interest are
generally been regular as per stipulation.

In respect of loans granted by the company, the details of total amount overdue above go days are as
follows:

No. of cases Principal Amount | Interest Overdue | Total Overdue (in | Remarks
Overdue (inRs.) | (in Rs.) Rs.)
382 1,39,92,789 1,18,67,045 2,58,59,834 | NIL

* no. of cases includes restructured cases in compliance of guidelines notification issued by RBI from time to
time.

The company is taking reasonable steps for the recovery of principal and interest overdue amount.

The Company has been registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of india Act 1934 as a Non-
Banking Financial Company (NBFC}. Hence, reporting under clause 3(iii}e} of the order is not applicable to
the company.

The Company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans either repayable on demand or
without specifying any terms or period of repayment during the year. Hence, reporting under clause
3(iii)(f) is not applicable.

(iv) Compliance of Section 185 and 186 of The Act

The Company has complied with the provisions of Sections 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 in
respect of loans granted, as applicable.

(v) Acceptance of Deposits

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits during the year. Thus, paragraph 3(v)
of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(vi) Maintenance of Cost records

To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Central
Government has not prescribed the maintenance of cost records under sub-section (1) of section 148 of
the Companies Act, 2013 for the services of the Company. Hence, reporting under clause (vi} of the Order
is not applicable to the Company.

N\
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(vii() Payment of Applicable Taxes

)

b)

According to the information and explanations provided to us and the records of the company examined
by us, in our opinion, the Company is regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including income-
tax, goods and services tax, provident fund, employees’ state insurance, professional taxes and other
material statutory dues as applicable with the appropriate authorities in India.

According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of
income-tax, service tax, provident fund, employees’ state insurance, professional taxes and other material
statutory dues were in arrears as at 31 March 2023 for a period of more than six months from the date they
became payable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the company examined by
us, during the period under audit, there are no dues of income tax or any other applicable statutory dues
which have not been deposited on account of any dispute.

viii) Undisclosed income

There were no transactions relating to previously unrecorded income that have been surrendered or
disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961).

(ix) Dues to a Financlal Institution or bank or debenture holder

a)

b}

<)

d)

Based on our audit procedures and according to the information and explanations given to us, we are of
the opinion that the Company has not defaulted in repayment of dues to banks and financial institutions.

The Company has not been declared willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or
any government authority.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the company has utilized
the money obtained by way of term loans during the year for the purposes for which they were obtained.

According to the information and explanations given to us, and the procedures performed by us, and on
an overall examination of the financial statements of the company, we report that no funds raised on
short-term basis have been used for long-term purposes by the company.

The Company does not have any subsidiary, associate or joint venture during the year. Hence, reporting
under clause 3(ix)(e) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company does not have any subsidiary, associate or joint venture during the year. Hence, reporting
under clause 3(ix)(f) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(x) Initial Public Offer fT\A & 455
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a) The Company did not raise any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt
instruments) during the year. Accordingly, paragraph 3 (x)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

b) During the year, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or
convertible debentures (fully or partly or optionally) and hence reporting under clause 3(x)(b) of the
Order is not applicable.

(xi) Fraud by the Company or on the Company

a) According to the information and explanations given to us, We report that some instances of
misappropriation of cash collected from customers and other forms of embezzlement of cash by the
employees involving amounts aggregating Rs. 76.14 Lakhs. The Company has terminated the services of
such employees and also initiated legal action against such employees. The Company has recovered Rs.
8.56 Lakhs from some employees.

b) No report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has been filed in Form ADT-4 as
prescribed under rule 13 of Companies {Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government,
during the year and up to the date of this report.

) As represented to us by the management, there are no whistle blower complaints received by the
company during the year. hence reporting under clause 3(xi)(c) of the Order is not applicable.

(xil) Nidhi Company
In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a nidhi
company. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable.

xiii) Related Party Transactions

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records of
the Company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of the Act
where applicable and details of such transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements as
required by the applicable accounting standards.

xiv) Internal Audit

a) In our opinion the Company has an adequate internal audit system commensurate with the size and
the nature of its business.

b) We have considered, the internal audit reports for the year under audit, issued to the Company during the
year and till date, in determining the nature, timing and extent of our audit procedures.

Annexure A of Audit Report for SFL for FY 2022-23 Page 4 of 6
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(xv) Non - Cash Transactions

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records of
the Company, the Company nas not entered into non-cash transactions with respect Lo acquiring any asset
for consideration other than cash with directors or persons connected with them or vice versa.
Accordingly, paragraph 3(xv} of the Order is not applicable.

xvi) Registration with RBI

a) The Company has been registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act 1934 as a Non-
Banking Financial Company (NBFC). As stated in “Emphasis of Matter” paragraph of our main Audit
Report dated April 22, 2023, due to the amalgamation of Taraashna Financial Services Limited
(amalgamating entity) with the company, which is registered as a Non-Banking Financial Company (NBFC),
as on March 31, 2023, the company is not fulfilling Principal Business Criteria laid down by the RBI. As per
the criteria, atleast 50% of total assets of the company should be financial assets and atleast 50% of the
gross income should be from financial activities. The company meets the first criteria, but does not meets
the second criteria as on March 31, 2023. However, the RBI vide letter dated July 22, 2022 has granted to
the company, time till March 31, 2024 for fulfilling the said criteria as disclosed in note no. 43B to the
financial statements. :

b) The Company has conducted Non-Banking Financial activities during the year having a Certificate of
Registration under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of india Act 1934.

) The Company is not a Core Investment Company as defined in the regulations made by the Reserve Bank
of India. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xvi)(c} of the Order is not applicable.

d) As per the information and explanation provided to us by the company, 2 companies in the group are in
the process of registration as Core Investment Company under the Reserve Bank of India Act and an
application regarding the same has been submitted with the RBI on March 28, 2023.

«vii) Cash Losses

The Company has not incurred any cash losses during the current financial year. However, cash losses
were incurred during the immediately preceding financial year amounting to Rs. 20.51 Crores.

xvill) Resignation of Statutory Auditor

There has been no resignation of Statutory Auditors of the Company during the year. Hence the reporting
under clause 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable to the company.

xix) Material Uncertainty about the Company’s Capability to discharge its liabilities

On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and
payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements and our
knowledge of the Board of Directors’ and Management’s plans and based on our examination of the
evidence 5upp_o'r?‘tt"hg"the}--'as._sumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that
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011-45131008, 9810057854
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any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report indicating that Company is not capable of
meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one
year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability
of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit
report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of
one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

(xx} Corporate Social Responsibility

a) The provisions of the section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the company during the
current financial year. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xx) of the Order is not applicable.

xxi) Qualification or Adverse Remarks by the respective auditors

Since the company is not required to prepare Consolidated Financial Statements, the reporting under this
clause is not applicable to the company.

For Rajeev Bhatia & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No.: 021776N
R T SOA N
Jatin Goel
Partner o C
Membership No.: 553420

UDIN- Q2359 2HR0BGTZ NI §2%0.

Place: Gurugram
Date: April 22, 2023
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditors’ Report of even date to the members of Satin Finserv Limited on
the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

Independent Auditors’ Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section
143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’)

1. tn conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of Satin Finserv Limited (“the Company’) a§ at and for the
year ended March 31, 2023, we have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting (‘IFCoFR’} of the
Company as at that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

2. The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based
on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial
Reporting (“the Guidance Note’} issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAI’). These responsibilities
include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of the Company’s business, including adherence to the
Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under
the Act.

Auditors’ Responsibility

3. Our responsibility is to express an opinien on the Company’s IFCOFR based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with the Standards on Auditing issued by the ICAl and deemed to be prescribed under Section 143(10) of
the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of IFCoFR, and the Guidance Note issued by the ICAl. Those Standards and
the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether adequate IFCoFR were established and maintained and if such controls operated
effectively in all material respects.

4. Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the IFCoFR and their
operating effectiveness. Our audit of IFCoFR includes obtaining an understanding of IFCoFR, assessing the risk that a
material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based
on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

5. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the Company’s IFCoFR.




Rajeev Bhatia & Associates
Chartered Accountants

. 201, 203, 2nd Floor,
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011-45131008, 9810057854
info@rajeevbhatiaassociates.com

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

6. A company’s IFCOFR is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial
reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles. A company’s IFCoFR include those policies and procedures that

(1) pertains to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company;

(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipis and expenditures of the
company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and Directors of the Company; and

{3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or
disposition of the Company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

7. Because of the inherent limitations of IFCoFR, .including the possibility of collusion or improper management
override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of
any evaluation of the {FCoFR to future periods are subject to the risk that the IFCoFR may become inadequate because
of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

8. In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adeguate internal financial controls over financial reporting
and such controls were operating effectively as at March 31, 2023, based on internal control over financial reporting
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance
Note issued by the ICAL

For Rajeev Bhatia & Associates
Chartered Accountants

Firm’s Registration'Nol: 021776N

Jatin Goel
Partner
Membership No.: 553420

UDIN - 2355240 T2M T 5390 .

Place: Gurugram
Date: April 22, 2023
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The Board of Directors,

Satin Finserv Limited,

Plot no. 492, Wing-4B, Udyog Vihar, Phase-lll,
Gurugram, Haryana - 122016

Sub:- Master Direction - Non Banking Financial Companies Auditor’s Report (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016

We, Rajeev Bhatia & Associates, have audited the financial statements of Satin Finserv Limited (the “Company”) for
the period ended March 31, 2023 and have issued our report dated April 22, 2023.

Based on the audited financial statements of the Company referred to above and information / explanations and
representations received from the management, we confirm the following particulars:-

(A) In the case of all Non-Banking Financial Cornpanies

1. The company has obtained a Certificate of Registration {(CoR) from the Reserve Bank of India under section 45-1A of
Reserve Bank of India Act 1934.

2. During the year, Taraashna Financial Services Limited (amalgamating entity) was amalgamated with the Company
vide Hon’able NCLT Order dated January 31, 2023. The scheme got effective from March 01, 2023. The Appointed Date
of Scheme is April 01, 2021. Due to the amalgamation of Taraashna Financial Services Limited (amalgamating entity)
with the company, as on March 31, 2023, the company is not fulfilling Principal Business Criteria laid down by the RBI.
As per the criteria, atleast 50% of total assets of the company should be financial assets and atleast 50% of the gross
income should be from financial activities. The company meets the first criteria, but does not meet the second criteria
as on March 31, 2023. However, the RBI vide letter dated July 22, 2022 has granted the company, time till March 31,
~n24 for fulfilling the said criteria as disclosed in note no. 43B to the financial statements and reported in our Audit
weport dated April 22, 2023. Accordingly, the company is entitled to continue to hold such CoR as on 31 March 2023.

3. The company is meeting the required net owned fund requirement as laid down in Master Direction - Non-Banking
Financial Company - Systemically Important Non-Deposit taking Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016 and
amendment thereon from time to time.

(B} In the case of a non-banking financial companies accepting/holding public deposits

Being a Non-deposit taking Non-banking financial company, para (B) of Chapter Il of Master Direction - Non-Banking
Financial Companies Auditor’s Report (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016 is not applicable to the Company.

{C) In the case of a non-banking financial company not accepting public deposits

We further confirm that:

1. The Board of Directors has passed a resolution for non- acceptance of any public deposits dated April 27, 2022.

3y
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2. As per our verification of books of accounts and further explanation and information produced before us, we
confirm that the Company has not accepted any public deposits during the financial year ended March 31, 2023.

3. The cornpany has complied with the prudential norms relating to income recognition, accounting standards, asset
classification and provisioning for bad and doubtful debts as applicable to it in terms of Non-Banking Financial
Company - Systemically Important Non-Deposit taking Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016.

4. The Capital adequacy ratio as disclosed in the return submitted to the RBI in form DNBS-03, has been correctly
arrived at and is in compliance with the minimum CRAR prescribed. The company has furnished the return within the
stipulated period.

». On the basis of our verification and further explanation and information as produced before us, we confirm that
the Company has been registered with Reserve Bank of India under section 45-1A under the category — Loan Company.
Accordingly, classification as NBFC Micro Finance Institutions (MF1) as defined in the Non-Banking Financial Company
— Systemically Important Non-Deposit taking Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016 is not applicable to the
Company for the financial year ended March 31, 2023.

(D) In the case of a company engaged in the business of non-banking financial institution not required to hold CoR
subject to certain conditions

Para (D)} of Chapter Il of Master Direction - Non-Banking Financial Companies Auditor’s Report (Reserve Bank)
Directions, 2016 is not applicable to the Company.

This certificate is addressed to and provided to Board of Directors of the Company, in terms of Chapter Il of Master
Direction - Non-Banking Financial Companies Auditor’s Report (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016, solely for the purpose
of enabling it to comply with the requirement of the Master Directions which inter alia requires it to submit the
certificate by the Statutory Auditors to Board of Directors and should not be used, referred to of distributed for any

‘her purposes without our prior written consent. Accordingly, we do not accept or assume any liability if it is to be
used for other than its intended purpose without our prior written consent.

Place of Signature: Gurugram For Rajeev Bhatia & Associates
Dated: April 22, 2023 Chartered Accountants
Firm’s _RE_ﬁ_@?l_’?.ti_Qn No.: 021776N

Jatin Goel
Partner
M. No. 553420

UDIN -3 MQ0BG T M3 63\
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SATIN FINSERY LIMITED
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2023
{All amounes in T in lakhs, unless stated otherwise}

Pariiculars Noics Asat Asat
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
ASSETS
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 4 3,878.47 2,531.76
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 5 3,161.44 4,276.24
Trade receivables 6 298.33 36.69
Loans 7 22,126.34 16,182.79
Other financial assets 8 690.08 902.93
30,154.66 23,936.41
Non Financial assets
Cutzent tax assets (net) 9 996.78 821.87
Deferred tax asscts (net) 10 1,123.55 1,218.65
Property, Plant and Equipment 1 299.12 351.24
Intangible assets 12 470 5.88
Other non financial assets 13 340,04 273.96
2,764.19 2,67L.60
TOTAL 32,918.85 26,608.01
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Financial Liabilities
Payables
Trade payables 14
total outstanding dues of MSMEs 10.42 10.42
total curstanding dues of cteditors other than MSMEs 279.61 235.67
Debt securities 13 553.00 550.38
Borrowings (other than debt securities) 16 16,401.48 10,822.07
Other financial liahilities 17 271.49 228.62
17,516.09 11,847.16
Non Financial Liabilities
Provisions 18 1,527.57 148267
Other non-financial liabilities 19 107.67 108.76
1,635.24 159143
EQUITY
Equity share capital 20 14,051.49 10,250.00
Othet equity 21 {283.97) 291942
13,767.52 13,169.42
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 32,918.85 26,608.01

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the finandal statements.
As per our review report of even date attached

For Rajecv Bhadia & Associates
Chartered Accovmtants
Firm's Registration No.: 021776N

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Satin Finserv Limited

]
[ e ~
Oh / L.v.l luu -
atin Goel Sumit Mukherjee Harvinder Pal Singh
Partner DIN: 08369056 DIN: 00333754
WTID & CEO Director

M.No, 553420

Date: April, 22 2023

Plage : Gurugram

W

Arjun Bansal

Chief Financial Officer

Place : Gurugram
Date: April, 22 2023

PIac& : Gurugram

wad
Pynegsfolly

Mem Neo: 43608
Company Secretary
Place : Gurugram
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SATIN FINSERY LIMITED
Statement of Profit and Loss for the period ended March 31, 2023
{All amounts in ¥ in lakhs, unless stated otherwise)

Particniars Notes For the period ended For the year ended

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Revenue from operations
Interest income 22 4,165.78 2902.24
Fees and commission income 235 6,382.43 6,484.87
Net gain on fair value changes 24 0.19 -
Total revenue from operations 10,548.41 9,387.11
Other income 25 102.28 32355
Total income 10,650.69 9,710.66
Expenses:
Finance costs 26 1,849.57 1,250.68
Impairment on financial mstraments 27 378.05 414.94
Employee benefits expense 28 5,334.77 5,686.62
Depreciation and amortization expense 29 174.89 204.99
Other expenses 30 2,092.01 4,850.99
Total expenses 9,829.29 12,408,22
Profit / (loss) before exceptional items and tax 821.40 (2,697.56)
Exceptional items - =
Profit / (loss) before tax 82140 (2,697.56)
Prior period items
Tax expense
Current tax 116.85 :
Mat credit utilization/ (entitlement) (net) {116.85) -
Deferred tax expense/{credit) ' 215.09 {687.88)
Earlier years tax 0.01 -
Total tax expense 215.10 {(687.88)
Net profit/ (loss) for the period 606.30 (2,009.68)
Other comprehensive income
Item that will not to be reclassified to profit or loss
Re-measurement gains,/ {losses) on defined benefit plans (11.36) 8.65
Income tax relating to these items 3.16 (241
Orther comprehensive income/ (loes) for the period (8.20) 6.24
Total comprehensive income / (loss) for the period 598.10 (2,003.44)
Eaminge per share (basic and diluted) {in Rs.) 31
Basic (Rs.) 0.43 (143
Diluted (Rs.) 0.43 (1.43)
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial staterments,
As per our review report of even date attached
For Rajeev Bhatia & Associates, For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Satin Fineerv Limited
Firm's chistrjn No.: 021776N
L
_ /_‘3 Lo \L,:L thu“r“ £,
' Sumit Mukherjee Harvinder Pal Singh
atin Goel DIN: 08369056 DIN: 00333754
Partner WID & CEO Director :
M.No. 553420 Plage : Gurugram Plage : Gurugram g"_ = Z\
—(GURUGRAM)S
ﬁ et AL,
Arjun Bansal P olly 4
Mem No: 43608
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
Place ; Gurugram Place: Gurugram

Date: April, 22 2023 1 Date: April, 22 2023



SATIN FINSERY LIMITED
Cash flow statement for the period ended March 31, 2023
(Al amounts i T an lakhs, unless stted otherwise)

. For the period ended For the period ended
Fardeulars March 31, 2073 March 31, 2022
A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net Profiv/(Loss) before tax 82140 (2,714.66)
Adjustments for:
Provision for expecied credit Josses 2125 31734
Peavision for employee benehits (396 (X8 L))
Depreciation and amortisation expense BZ42 D667
Drepreciafion of RO asnois AT 108 33
Loss/(gain) on disposal of tangible assets - 2.75)
Interzst pad on bomowiags 1,725.62 1,151.80
Operaiing Profit/ (loss) Before Working Capital Changes 2,739.20 {1,100.37)
Changey in workin tal:
Adiustments for finerease)] deervare fn operating oerets:
Trde ceceivables (261,64 430,23
Other bank balances 1,114.80 580.36
Financial Assets (5.964.80) (3,639.30)
Chher financizl assets 21286 {162.75)
Other non financial assets {608 (3896}
Ads for fimcreate)f deerease i operting labikties:
Treade payables 43.94 (440.54)
Other fimancial liabihtes 4247 (62.39)
Orther non foancial habilities (109 6.04
Pravisiens 3150 406,36
Movement in operating assets and liabilities (4,341.64) {2,521.25)
Cash g d from operad (2,102.44) {4,021.62)
Less: Income tax refund / {paid) (net) (291.75) {16.50)
Net cash flow/ (used) in operating activities (A) (2,3M.19) {4,038.52)
3. CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of property, plant and equipment {162.70) (243.56)
Sale of propery, plant and equipment H.10 1432
Net cash used in investing activities (B} (121600 {229.24)
€. CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Repayment of bomrowings (5,834.55) (2,981.33)
Proceeds from boreowings 1146550 855529
Inerest paid on bomowings (1,725.62) {1,151.80%
Payment of lease liabilities 48.8%) (69.39)
HMet cash flow from Rnancing activitics {C) 3,856.50 433211
Net {Decreasc)/Increase in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) 1,340.71 65.01
Cash and cash equivalents at the begmning of the year 2,537.76 247275
Casbh and cash equivalents at the end of the year 3,87847 2,531.76
Reconcillation of cash and cash equivalents as per che cash 134071 501
flow statement
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Aimaneial statements.
As per our review report of even date attached
For Rajeev Bhatia & Associates For and on behalf of the Board of Directots of
Chartered Accountants Satin Fineery Limited

Firm's Registration No.: 021776N

L 5

Sumit Mukherjee Harvinder Pal Singh

N

=/ \Z
Dastoer DIN: 18369036 DIN: 00333754 (= It
M.No. 55 WID & CEQ Director |~‘.GURUGRAMJ- f
Plage : Gurugram Placdf: Gurugram | et /
"1& \ s il
{;\ n_-';;/ %
Arjun Bansal P olly —s
em No: 43608
Chief Financial Oficer Company Secretary
Place: Gurugram Place: Gurugram Place: Gurugram

Date: April, 22 2023 Dhate: April, 22 2023
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Satin Finserv Limited
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended
March 31, 2023

Company Overview / Corporate Information

Satin Finserv Limited (‘the Company’) is a public limtted company and incorporated on August 10, 2018, uader the
provisions of Companies Act. The Company is a non-deposit accepting Non-Banking Financial Company (NBFC-
ND) and is registered as a Non-Banking Financial Company (NBFC') with the Reserve Bank of India (“RBI”) in
January 09, 2019. The main objective of the Company to carry on the business of Non-Banking Financial Company
and to undertake business relating to financing. The Company is also engaged in the business of “Business
Cotrespondent” activity with various Banks and NBFCs. As per Reserve Bank of India (‘RBT*, scope of activity of
Business Correspondent services includes Identification of Bortowers, collection and prehmmary processing of loan
applications including verification of primary information, processing and submission of applications to banks,
promoting, nurturing and monitoring of Self Help Groups/Joint Liability Groups, post-sanction monitoring, follow-
up for tecovery, disbursal of small value credit and recovery of principal/collection of interest. The Compaay is
domiciled in India and its registered office & corporate office is situated at 4th Floot, B-Wing, Plot No. 492, Udyog
Vihat, Phase-ITI, Gurugram, Haryana - 122016.

Basis of preparation
(i) Statement of compliance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)

These Ind AS financial statements (“the Financial Statements”) have been prepared in accordance with the Indian
Accounting Standards ‘Ind AS’} as notified by Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA’) under Seciion 133 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (‘Act’) read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended and
other relevant provisions of the Act.

The financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023 are the financial statements, which has been prepared in
accordance with Ind AS and other applicable guidelines issued by the Reserve Bank of India (‘RBI’).

The financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023 wete authorized and approved for issue by the Board of
Directors on April 22, 2023.

(ii) Historical cost convention

The financial statements have been prepared on going concetn basis in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in India. Further, the financial statements have been prepared on historical cost basis except for
certain financial assets and financial liabilities and share based payments which are measured at fair values as explained
in relevant accounting policies.

Summary of significant accounting policies

The financial statements have been prepared using the significant accounting policies and measurement bases
summarised as below. These were used throughout all periods presented in the financial statements, except where the
Company has applied certain accounting policies and exemptions upon transition to Ind AS.

Property, plant and equipment
Recogrition and initial measuresent

Propetty, plant and equipment are stated at their cost of acquisition. The cost comprises purchase price, borrowing
cost if capitalization criteria ate met and directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for
the intended use. Any trade discount and rebates are deducted in artiving at the purchase price. Subsequent costs are
included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as approptiate, only when it is probable that
future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company. All other repair and maintenance costs
are recognised in statement of profit or loss as incurred and the cost of item can be measured reliably. The carrying
amount of any component accounted for as a separate asset is derecognised when replaced. All other repairs and
taintenance ate charged to profit or loss during the reporting petiod in which they are incurred.
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Satin Finsetv Limited
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended

March 31, 2023
Subsequent measurement (Fepreciation method, usefnd Kves and residual vabue)

Property, plant and equipment are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses. Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is provided on a straight-line basis, computed on the basis of
useful ives prescribed 1a Schedule I to the Companies Act, 2013.

Asset class Useful life

Office equipment 5 years |
Computer and accessories — end user devices 3 years ,
Computer and accessoties — netwotk equipment | 6 years

Futniture and fixtures 10 years

Vehicles 8 years

Plant and machinery 6 - 15 years

Depreciation is calculated on pro rata basis from the date on which the asset is ready for use or till the date the asset
is sold or disposed.

The residual values, useful lives and method of depreciation are teviewed at the end of each financial year.

De-recogrition

Aa item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal
ot when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on de-recognition
of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is
recognized in the statement of profit and loss, when the asset is derecognised.

Capital work-in-progress
Capital work-in-progress are catried at cost, comprising direct cost, related incidental expenses and advances paid to
acquite property, plant and equipment. Assets which are not ready to intended use ate also shown under capital work-

In-progress.
Intangible assets

Recogrition and initial measurement

Intangible assets are stated at their cost of acquisition. The cost comprises purchase price including any import duties
and other taxes (other than those subsequently recoverable from taxation authorities), borrowing cost if capitalization
criteria are met and directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition fot the intended use.

Subsequent measnrement (amortisation)

Intangible assets are amortised over a period of 3 years from the date when the assets are available for use. The
estimated useful life (amortisation period) of the intangible assets is arrived basis the expected pattern of consumption
of economic benefits and is reviewed at the end of each financial year and the amortisation period is revised to reflect
the changed pattern, if any.

Revenue tecognition

Interest, administration and other charpes (for loans)

Interest, administration and other charges received are recorded on accrual basis using the effective interest rate (EIR)
method along with the consideration of transaction cost directly attributable to the creation of financial instrument
being Loan Asset. Additional interest/overdue interest/penal charges are recognised only when it is reasonable cettain
that the ultimate collection will be made.

Commission incone
Income from business correspondent services is recognised as and when the setvices ate rendeted as per agreed terms

and conditions of the contract.
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Dividend income
Dividend income is recognised at the time whea the right to recerve is established by the reporting date.

Other Charges related to Operation
The Company collect other charges ie. login fee, documentation charges, overdue interest, Cheque bounce charges,
prepayment charges, conversion charges, document retrieval charges, Foreclosure charges etc from all the borrowers

based on event, and recognise this income an collection basis.

DMiscollancons income
All other income is recognized on an accrual basis, when there is no uncertainty in the ultimate realization/ collection.

Bortowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition and/ot construction of a qualifying asset, are capitalized during
the period of time that is necessary to complete and prepare the asset for its intended use or sale. A qualifying asset
is one that necessatily takes substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use. All other borrowing costs are
charged to the statement of profit and loss as incurred basis the effective interest rate method.

Taxation

Tax expense recognized in statement of profit and loss comprises the sum of deferred tax and cutrent tax except the
ones recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Cutrent tax is determined as the tax payable in respect of taxable income for the year and is computed in accordance
with relevant tax regulations. Current income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised
outside profit or loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity}.

Minimum alternate tax (‘MAT) credit entitlement is recognised as an asset only when and to the extent there is
convincing evidence that normal income tax will be paid duting the specified petiod. In the year in which MAT credit
becomes eligible to be recognised as an asset, the said asset is created by way of a credit to the statement of profit and
loss and shown as MAT credit entitlement. This is reviewed at each balance sheet date and the catrying amount of
MAT credit entitlement is written down to the extent it is not reasonably certain that normal income tax will be paid
during the specified period.

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between carrying amount of assets and liabilities for
financial reporting purposes and corresponding amount used for taxation purposes. Deferred tax assets on unrealised
tax loss are recognised to the extent that it is probable that the underlying tax loss will be utilised against future taxable
income. This is assessed based on the Company’s forecast of future operating results, adjusted for significant non-
taxable income and expenses and specific limits on the use of any unused tax loss. Unrecognised defetred tax assets
are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that futute taxable
profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is
realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at

the reporting date. Deferred tax relating to iterns recognised outside statement of profit and loss is recognised outside
statement of profit or loss {cither in other comprehensive income ot in equity).

Employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits including salaties, shott tetm compensated absences (such as a paid annual leave) where
the absences are ewpectt:d to-occur within twelve months after the end of the period in which the employees render
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employees render the related services and non-monetary benefits for current employees ate estimated and measured
on an undiscounted basis.

Post-employment benefit plans are classified into defined benefits plans and defined conttibution plans as
under:

Defined conttibution plans

The Company has a defined contribution plans namely provident fund, pension fund and employees state insurance
scheme. The contribution made by the Company in respect of these plans are chatged to the Statement of Profit and
Loss.

Defined benefit plans

The Company has an obligation towards gratuity, a defined benefit retirement plaa covering eligible employees. Where
in the employee will receive on retirement is defined by reference to employee's length of service and last drawn salary,
Under the defined benefit plans, the amount that an employee will receive on retirement is defined by reference to
the employee’s length of service and final salary. The legal obligation for any benefits remains with the Company,
even if plan assets for funding the defined benefit plan have been set aside. The liability recognised in the statement
of financial position for defined benefit plans is the present value of the Defined Benefit Obligation (DBO) at the
reporting date less the fair value of plan assets. Management estimates the DBO annually with the assistance of
independent actuaries. Actuarial gains/losses resulting from re-measurements of the liability/asset are included in
other comprehensive income,

Other long-term employee benefits

"The Company also provides the benefit of compensated absences to its employees which are in the nature of long-
term employee benefit plan. Liability in respect of compensated absences becoming due and expected to avail after
one year from the Balance Sheet date is estimated in the basis of an actuarial valuation performed by an independent
actuaty using the projected unit credit method as on the reporting date. Actuarial gains and losses arising from past
experience and changes in actuarial assumptions are charged to statement of profit and loss in the year in which such
gains or losses are determined.

Share based payments

Share based compensation benefits are provided to employees via Satin Creditcare Network Limited (Patent
Company’) Employee Stock Option Plans (ESOPs). The employee beaefits expense is measured using the fait value
of the employee stock options and is recognised over vesting period with a corresponding increase in equity. The
vesting period is the period over which all the specified vesting conditions are to be satisfied. On the exercise of the
employee stock options, the employees of the Company will be allotted Parent Company’s equity shates.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Corapany’s non-financial assets other than deferred tax assets, are reviewed at each repotting date to determine
whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, then the asset’s recoverable amount is
estimated.

For impaitment testing, assets that do not generate independent cash inflows are grouped together into cash-
generating units (CGUs). Each CGU represents the smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows that are largely
independent of the cash inflows of other assets or CGUs.

The recoverable amount of a CGU is the higher of its value in use and its fair value less costs to sell. Value in use is
based on the estimated future cash flows, discounted to their present value using a discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the CGU,




Satin Finserv Limited
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended

March 31, 2023

An impairment loss is tecognised if the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its estimated recoverable amount.
Impairment loss recognized in tespect of a CGU is allocated first to reduce the carrying amounts of the other assets
of the CGU (or group of CGUs) on a prorata basis.

An impairment loss in respect of assets for which impairment loss has been recognized in prior periods, the Company
reviews at reporting date whether there is any indication that the loss has decreased or no longer exists. An impairment
loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. Such a reversal
is made only to the extent that the asset’s carrving amount does not exceed the carrying amonnt that would have been
determined, net of depreciation or amortization, if no impairment loss had been recognized.

Impaitment of financial assets

Loan assets

The Company follows a ‘three-stage” model for impairment based on changes in credit quality since initial recognition
as summarised below:

e A financial instrument that is not credit-impaired on initial recognition is classifted in ‘Stage 1” and has its credit
risk continuously monitored by the Company i.e. the default in repayment is within the tange of 0 to 30 days.

o If a significant increase in credit risk (‘SICR”) since initial recogmition is identified, the financial instrument is
moved to ‘Stage 2’ but is not yet deemed to be credit-impaired ie. the default in repayment is within the range
of 31 to 90 days.

e If the financial instrument is credit-impaired, the financial instrument is then moved to ‘Stage 3’ Le. the default
in repayment i1s more than 90 days,

The Expected Credit Loss (ECL) is measuted at 12-month ECL for Stage 1 loan assets and at lifetime ECL for Stage
2 and Stage 3 loan assets ECL is the product of the Probability of Default, Exposure at Default and Loss Given
Default, defined as follows:

Probability of Default (PD) - The PD represents the likehhood of a borrower defaulting on its financial obligation
(as per “Definition of default and credit-impaited” above), either over the next 12 months (12 months PD}), or over
the remaining lifetime (Lifetime PD) of the obligation.

Loss Given Default (LGD) — LGD represents the Company’s expectation of the extent of loss on a defaulted
exposure. LGD varies by type of counterparty, type and preference of claim and availability of collateral or other
credit support.

Exposure at Default (EAD) — EAD is based on the amounts the Company expects to be owed at the time of
default. For a revolving commitment, the Company includes the cutrent drawn balance plus any further amount that
is expected to be drawn up to the current contractual limit by the time of default, should it occur.

Forward-looking economic information (including management overlay) is inclnded in determining the 12-month and
lifetime PD, EAD and LGD. The assumptions undetlying the expected credit loss ate monitored and teviewed on an

ongoing basis.

Otther financial assels

In tespect of its other financial assets, the Company assesses if the credit risk on those financial assets has increased
significantly since initial recognition. If the credit risk has not increased significantly since initial recognition, the
Company measures the loss allowance at an amount equal to 12-month expected credit losses, else at an amount equal
to the lifetime expected credit losses.

When making this assessment, the Company uses the change in the risk of a default occurring over the expected life

T make that assessment, the Company compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial
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asset as at the balance sheet date with the risk of a default occursing on the financial asset as at the date of initial
recognition and considers reasonable and supportable information, that is available without undue cost or effort, that
is indicative of significant increases in credit risk since inidal recognition. The Company assumes that the credit risk
on a financial asset has not incteased significantly since initial recognition if the financial asset is determined to have
low credit risk at the balance sheet date.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comptrise cash in hand (including imprest), demand deposits and short-term highly Lquid
investments that are readily convertible into known amount of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value.

Cash Flow Statement

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit / (loss) before exceptional items and tax is adjusted
for the effects of transactions of non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of past or future cash receipts or
payments. The cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities of the Company are segregated based on
the available information,

Leases

Ind AS 116 requires lessees to determine the lease term as the non-cancellable period of a lease adjusted with any
option to extend or terminate the lease, if the use of such option is reasonably certain. The Company makes an
assessmeat on the expected lease term on a lease-by-lease basis and thereby assesses whether it is reasonably certain
that any options to extend or terminate the contract will be exercised. In evaluating the lease term, the Company
considers factors such as any significant leaschold improvements undertaken over the lease term, costs relating to the
termination of the lease and the importance of the underlying asset to the company’s operations taking into account
the location of the underlying asset and the availability of suitable alternatives. The lease tetm in future periods is
reassessed to ensure that the lease term reflects the cutrent econommic circumstances. After considering current and
future economic conditions, the Company has concluded that no changes ate tequited to lease petiod relating to the
existing lease contracts.

The Company as a lessee

The Company’s lease asset classes primarily consist of leases for building for office premises. The Company assesses
whether a contract contains a lease, at inception of a contract. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys
the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. To assess whether
a contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset, the Company assesses whether:

(@ the contract involves the use of an identified asset

(if) the Company has substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset through the period of the lease
and

(ii}the Company has the right to direct the use of the asset.

At the date of commencement of the lease, the Company recognizes a right-of-use asset (*ROU”} and a corresponding
lease liability for all lease arrangements in which it is a lessee, except for leases with a term of twelve months ot less
(short-term leases) and low value leases. For these short-term and low value leases, the Company recognizes the lease
payments as an operating expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease.

Certain lease arrangements includes the exclusive options to extend ot terminate the lease before the end of the lease
term. ROU assets and lease liabilities includes these options when it is reasonably cettain that they will be exercised.

The right-of-use assets ate initially recognized at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted
for any lease payments imade at or prior to the commencement date of the lease plus any initial direct costs less any
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lease incentives. They are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. Right-
of-use assets are depreciated from the cotmencement date on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term
and useful life of the underlying asset.

Right of use assets are evaluated for recoverability whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that their
carrying amounts may not be tecoverable. For the purpose of impairment testing, the recoverable amount (Le. the
higher of the fair value less cost to sell and the value-in-use) is determined on an individual asset basis unless the asset
does not generate cash flows that are largely independent of those from other assets. In such cases, the recoverable
amount is determined for the Cash Generating Unit (CGU) to which the asset belongs.

The lease liability is initially measured at amortized cost at the present value of the futute lease payments. The lease
payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease ot, if not readily determinable, using the
incremental borrowing rates in the country of domicile of these leases. Lease liabilities are remeasured with a
corresponding adjustment to the related right of use asset if the Company changes its assessment if whether it will
exercise an extension or a termination option.

Lease hiability and ROU asset have been separately presented in the Balance Sheet.
'The Company as a lessor

The company does not have any leases as a lessor.

Transition

Effective April 1, 2019, the Company adopted Ind AS 116 “Leases” and applied the standard to all lease contracts
existing on April 1, 2019 using the prospective method and has recorded the lease liability at the present value of the
lease payments discounted at the incremental borrowing rate and corresponding right of use asset at the same value.
Due to the prospective method applied, the comparatives as at and for the year ended March 31, 2019 will continue
to be reported under the accounting policies included as part of our financial statements for year ended Match 31,
2019.

Leases in which the lessor does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of an asset to the
lessee are classified as operating leases. Lease rental are charged to statement of profit and loss on straight line basis
except where scheduled increase in rent compensates the lessor for expected inflationary costs.

) Provisions, contingent assets and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognized only when there is a present obligation, as a result of past events, and when a reliable
estimate of the amount of obligation can be made at the reporting date. These estimates are reviewed at each reporting
date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates. Provisions are discounted to their present values, whete the
time value of money is material.

Contngent liability is disclosed fox:

¢ Possible obligations which will be confirmed only by future events not wholly within the control of the Company
or

® Present obligations arising from past events where it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required
to settle the obligation ot a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation cannot be made.

Contingent assets are neither recognised nor disclosed except when realisation of income is virtually certain, related
asset 1s disclosed.

m) Financial instruments

Tnitial recognition and measurement

Financial assets and financial liabilides are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the coniractual
provisions of the financial instrument and are measured initially at fair value adjusted for transaction costs. Subsequent
measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities is described below.
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Non-derivative financial assets

Subsequent measurevient

i.  Fimancial assets carried at amortised cost — a financial asset is measured at the amottised cost if both the
following conditions are met:

e T'he asset 15 held within a busimness model whose objective 15 to hold assets tor collecting contractual cash
flows, and

® Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding,

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest rate (EIR) method.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premmum on acquisition and fees or costs
that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in interest income in the Statement of
Profit and Loss. The losses atising from impairment are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Investments in mutual funds — Investments in mutual funds are measured at fair value through profit and
loss (FVTPL).

Inpairment of fimandal assets

The Company recognizes loss allowance using the expected credit loss (ECL) model for the financial assets which
are not fait valued through profit or loss. Loss allowance for trade receivables with no significant financing
component is measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECL. For all financial assets with contractual cash flows
other than trade receivable, ECLs are measured at an amount equal to the 12-month ECL, unless there has been a
significant increase in credit risk from initial recognition in which case those are measured at lifetime ECL. The
amount of ECLs (or teversal) that is required to adjust the loss allowance at the reporting date to the amount that
is required to be recognised as an impaitment gain or loss in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

De-recogniition of financial assely

Financial assets are derecognised when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire, or
when the financial asset and substantially all the nisks and rewards are transferred. Further, if the Company has not
retained control, it shall also derecognise the financial asset and recognise separately as assets or liabilities any rights
and obligations created or retained in the transfer.

Non-derivative financial liabilities

Subsequent measurement
Subsequent to mitial recognition, all non-denivative financial habilitics are measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.

De-recognition of financial Eabilities

A financial liability is de-recognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When
an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different tetms, or the terms
of an existing Hability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the de-recognition of
the original lability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments
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Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if thete is a
curtently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to
realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Earmings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the pesiod attributable io equity shareholders
{after deducting attributable taxes) by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period.
The weighted average nuraber of equity shares outstanding during the perod is adjusted for events including a bonus
Issue,

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss (interest and other finance cost
associated) for the period attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding
during the period are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

Segment teporting

The Company identifies segment basis the internal organization and management structure. The operating segments
ate the segments for which separate financial information is available and for which operating profit/loss amounts
ate regulatly by the executive management (‘chief operating decision maker’) in deciding how to allocate resources
and in assessing performance. The accounting policies adopted for segment reporting are line with the accounting
policies of the Company. Segment revenue, segment expenses, segment assets and segment liabilities have been
identified to segments on the basis of their relationship with the operating activities of the segment.

Opetating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the intemal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision maker. The Chief Executive Officer (CEO) of the Company is responsible for allocating resoutces and
assessing performance of the operating segments and accordingly identified as the chief operating decision maket.
Revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, which are common to the enterprise as a whole and are not allocable to
segrents on a reasonable basis, have been treated as "unallocated revenues/ expenses/ assets/ liabilities”, as the case
may be.

Share issue expenses

All the expenses pettaining to issue of equity share capital are adjusted against the Securities Premium Account to the
extent any balance is available for utilisation in secutities ptemium account.

Guarantee contracts

First loss default guarantee contracts are contracts that require the Company to make specified payments to reimburse
the bank and financial institution for a loss, it incurs because a specified customer fails to make payments when due,
in accordance with the terms of a loan contracts or due to negligence or deficiency of service or non-observance, by
the Company, of stipulations and conditions contained in the agreement with respective business partners. Such
guarantees ate given to banks and financial institutions, for whom the Company acts as ‘Business Correspondent’.

On each reporting date, liabilities against these guarantee contracts are measured and recognised in books as per the
terms of agreements and any subsequent mutual consent with respective business pattners.

Furthet, the maximum liability against these guarantee contracts ate restricted to the cash outflow agreed in the
agreements with respective business partners.
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Significant management judgement in applying accounting policies and estimation uncertainty

The preparation of the Company’s financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the related disclosures.
Actual results may differ from these estimates.

Significant managermen? fudgements

Recognition of deferred tax assets — The extent to which deferred tax assets can be recognized is based on an
assessment of the probability of the future taxable income against which the deferred tax assets can be utilized.

Evaluation of indicators for impairment of assets — The evaluation of applicability of indicators of impairment of
assets requires assessment of several external and internal factors which could result in deterioration of recoverable
amount of the assets.

Expected credit loss (‘ECL”) = The measurement of expected credit loss allowance for financial assets measured at
amortised cost requires use of complex models and significant assumptions about future economic conditions and
credit behaviour (e.g. likelihood of customers defaulting and resulting losses). The Company makes significant
judgements with regard to the following while assessing expected credit loss:

¢ Determining criteria for significant increase in credit risk;

¢ Establishing the oumber and relative weightings of forward-looking scenarios for each type of
product/market and the associated ECL; and

e  Establishing groups of similar financial assets for the purposes of measuring ECL.

Provisions — At each balance sheet date basis the management judgment, changes in facts and legal aspects, the
Company assesses the requirement of provisions against the outstanding contingent liabilities. However, the actual
future outcome may be different from this judgement.

Significant extimates

Fair value measurements — Management applies valuation techniques to determine the fair value of financial
instruments (where active market quotes ate not available). This involves developing estimates and assumptions
consistent with how market participants would price the instrument.

Useful lives of depreciable/amortisable assets — Management reviews its estimate of the useful lives of
depreciable /amortisable assets at each repotting date, based on the expected utility of the assets. Uncertainties in
these estimates relate to technical and economic obsolescence that may change the utility of assets.

Defined benefit obligation (DBO) — Management’s estimate of the DBO is based on a number of underlying

assumptions such as standard rates of inflation, mortality, discount rate and anticipation of future salary increases.
Variation in these assumptions may significantly impact the DBO amount and the annual defined benefit expenses.

(This space har been intentionally loft blank)
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Mote 4; Cash and cash equivalenrs

Particulass As e As at :
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Balance with banks in cocrent accounts 2,046 94 T37 83
Cashon bhand GTRTG HZ0.20
Deposits with original maturity of less than 3 months 1,132.77 1,179.73
Total of cash and cash equivalents 3.878.47 2,537.76
Note: There are no repatriation restrictions with respect to cash and cash equivalents as ar the end of the ceporting year and comparative years.
Note 5:Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents
X Ag an Asat
Particulars
March 31, 2023 Macch 31, 2022
Term deposits for remaining matusity of 3 months or less ] 20076
Term deposits wath remaining maruadity moce than 3 months but Jess than 12 months 500% .
Teem deposits having remaining maturity of mote than 1 year - -
Balance with banks and financial nstirutions 1o the extent held as margn money deposits against borrowings and
puarantees/against fiest loss/second loss default guarantees 311141 4,075.48
Total 3.161.44 4,276.24
Mote 6; Trade receivables (at amontised cost)
. Ap at Ag at
Particulars
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Trade Receivables
Feceivables considered good - unsecured 29833 36.69
Less: Provision for impaicment on eade receivables = :
296.33 36.69
{IT) Other Receivables
Other Receivables =
Less: Provision for Impail on other receivabl -
Total 298.33 36.6%
Based on past astory of receivables, Management consdered Nil allowances towards credit losses
Note T: Loan portfolio {at amortised cost)
X As at As at
Particulars
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Portfolio loans
Secured 17,255.42 10,693.06
Unsecured 5,407.60 604516
Less: Impaicment loss allowance {576.68) (355.43)
22,126.34 16,182.79
Total 22,126.34 | 16,162,79
(1) Secured by book debts, margin money and property plant and equip 17,2905.42 10,693.06
{i) Coverad by bank/govemment guarantess - =
i) U 1 5,407.60 4,045.16
Tosal - Groas 22,H3.02Z 16,738.22
Less: Impairment Toss all & {576.68) (535.43)
Total - Nex 22,126.34 16,162.79
Louns in India
(1) Public Sectar - -
(1) Ochers 2270302 16,738.22
Total - Gross 22,703.02 16,738.22
Less lmpatement loss allowance (376.08) {555.43)
Total - Net 22,126.34 16,182.7%
The above amount irncludes the mteredt aceried and exclude unamortised loan processing fees, ps fullows:
Particulars
[oterest accured 341.56 20285
28468 147.31

Usnamuortised loan processmg fie

payable on demand or without specifying any 1eams or peeiod of tepayment of the related parties,
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Note 8: Other fi ial assets (3t amortised coet)
Purticulass l! As at l' e '
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Scouniyy deposits funscouncd, considened good) 013 13824
Staff advance and other recoverable 43.97 42,93
Othes recavenable 24455
Unbilied revenue 37063 72164
£90.08 W2 93
Nore 9 Current tax assets (net)
. As at Ag at
Particulars March 31,2023 | March 31, 2022
Advance income-tax and TDYS receivable 996,78 821.87
996.78 821.87
MNote 10: Deferred tax assets (net)
Particulars As at Asar
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Tax effect of items imting deferred tax
{2} Provision for Emplayee benefits 3346 41.15
(B) Depreciation and amoctisation 29.56 29.03
() Carried Forward Losses 305.71 52410
(&) lmpacr of IndAs 116 287 498
() Allowance for expected gredit loss 33529 52211
(B) Minimum alterrvate rax credit entitlerment 22245 105.60
{h) Measucement of financial assets and financial Kabilities at amortised cost 0.12 0.34
() Peeliminary expenses - 0.25
1,129.46 1,227.56
Tax eifect ofitems constituting deferred tax liabilities:
{1} Provision For 36(1){viia) 5.91 891
591 R ]
Dreferred tax assets/ (liabilities) (net) 1,123.55 1,218.65
MNotes:
(i} Movement in deferred tax assets/(liabilities) for period ended March 31, 2023
) Asat Recognise:l in ?ther Recognised in Asat
Pariculars March 31, 2022 b ofprofit  \paren 31,2023
and loss
Tax effect of items ituting deferred tax
(a) Provision for Employee benefits 41.15 316 (10.85) 3346
{b} Depreciation and amortisation 29.03 033 2956
(¢} Carried Forward Losses 524.10 (21839 L |
{d} Impact of IndAs 116 498 211 287
(¢} Provision for first Joss default guarantee 52211 - 13.18 533.29
“{f} Minimum alternate tax credic entitlement 10560 11685 22245
(g} Measurement of financil assets and financial lisbilides at amoctised cost 0.34 - .22} 012
(H} Others .
(3) Preliminary expenses 025 .25 -
1,227.56 316 {101.26) 1,129.46
‘Tax effect of items constinuting deferred tax liabilities:
() Employee benefits - - -
() Provision for 36{1){viiz) 891 . (3.00) 591
8.91 R (3.00) 5.91
Net deferred tax asset 1,218.65 .16 (98.26) 1,123.55
(ii} Movement in deferred tax assets/ (liabilities) for year ended March 31, 2022:
Asat Rgcognise:] in .ol.her Recognised in As at
Pardculare March 31, 2021 comp ve Oofprofit  pgoreh 31,2022
meome and loss
Tax effect of items « ing deferred tax
(&) Provision for Employee benefits 39.19 (241) 4.37 41.15
(b} Depreciation and amortisation 3738 (8.35) 29.03
{€) Carried Forward Losses 26.08 - 49802 52410
{d} Impact of IndAs 116 226 272 498
(e} Allowance for expected credit loss 31446 - 207.65 221l
(B Minimum alterngie fax dredit etitlement 105.60 - 105.60
© Mmsummurﬁpﬁgl finncrd ass financial Labilities at amortised cost 2207 - .34

= cufeRAm
A\
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SATIN FINSERY LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the period ended March 31, 2023
(Al amouncs in ¥ in lakhs, unless stared otherwise)

{) Prcliminacy expenses

Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax Labilities:
{1 Employee benefits
) Peovizion for 56{1){vua}

Nex deferred tax asser

043 - (0.20} .25
547.49 (2.41) 662,48 1,227.56
G.00 {075} 8.91
9.66 - (0.75) 391
537.93 (241 653.23 1,218.65




SATIN FINSERV LIMITED
Notes 10 the financial statements for the period ended March 31, 2023
{All amounts in ¥ in lzkhs, unless stated otherwise)

11 Propenty, plant and ¢quipment

Gross Block Computer Office Furniture & Vehicle  Right of use Total
Juipment Equip Fixtures asget’

Balance as at March H, 2021 19,65 3.24 5.77 86.49 115.15
Aquired through busi 32214 6934 116.16 248.74 756.38
combination

Addivons 91.23 .68 5.47 14.30 12288 24356
Adiusements during the year 175 5.43 2074 1n75 Bl
Balance as at March 31, 2022 43127 73.83 97.66 14,30 447.36 1,064.42
Additons 2975 10.54 209 13.22 79.20 16270
Disposals (8,58) ) (6.10) (68.53) {168.0%)
Balance as at March 31, 2023 37248 79.50 121.55 27.52 458.03 1,059.08
A lated depreciation

Balance as at March 31, 2021 1037 0.82 219 - 1740 30.78
Aquired through businese 261.12 53.52 76.50 - 126.82 517.96
combination

Depreciation chacge for the yeac 69.67 10.24 12.16 3.13 108.23 203.53
Adjustment on account of disposals {1.05) .0 {25.000 {5.34) (39.10}
Balance as at March 31, 2022 340.11 56.87 65.85 313 247.21 T13.18
Depreciation charge for the period 56.75 8.08 964 6.78 92.47 17372
Adjustment on account of disposals (82.33) (3.99) (4.75) (35.:86) (126.93)
Balance as at March 31, 2023 314,53 60.96 70.74 9291 3,82 759.97
Net block

Balance as a1t March 31, 2022 21.16 16.96 31.81 200.15 351.24
Balamce as ar March 31, 2023 57.95 18.54 50.81 17.61 15421 29912

# Intangible assets

Gross Block Software™ Total

Balance as at Macch 31, 2021 9.86 9.96

Aquired through buginess 20.46 2046

combination

Additions

Adjustments during the year

Balance as at March 31, 2022 30.52 3032

Additions -

Disposals -

Balance as at March 31, 2023 30.32 30.32

Acc lated depreciation

Balance as at March 31, 2021 2.51 251
Aquired through business 20.46 20.46

combination

Depreciation charge 1.47 1.47

Drisposals - -

Balance as at March 3, 2022 24.44 24.44

Depreciation charge 1.18 1.18
Disposals = =

Balance as at March 31, 2023 25.62 25.62

Net block
Balance as at March 31, 2022 5.88 5.88
Balance as at March 31, 2023 470 470

* Operating system For computers,




SATIN FINSERY LIMITED

Notes to the financial statements for the period ended March 31, 2023

(MM amounts in ¥ in lakhs, unless stated otherwise)

Naote 13 Other non-financial assets

| Parculars Asal As
March M, 2023 March 31, 2022
|
Advances recoverable 1 cash or in kind or for value 0 be received 42,66 19.83
Balance with govemment authorities 2206
Prepaid expenses 29738 23207
| 24004 213 06 |
Note 14; Trade pavable
Particulars Asat As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Trade Payables
(D toral outstanding dues of MSMEs 10.42 1042
(i) total ourstanding dues of creditors other than MSMEs 27961 23567
290.03 246.09
Other Payables
{0 total outstanding dues of MSMEs - -
(i) rotal outstanding dues of ceeditors other than MSMEs <
Total 200.03 24609
Trade Payables ag, chedule as om 31ax March,2023
Particulars O ding for following periods from due date of pay
Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 Years More than 3 years
{iy MSME 10,42 3 .
(i) Others 271.67 5.47 1.94 0.54
(i) Disputed dues = MSME ki <
{iv} Disputed dues ~ Others - . R
{v} Unbilled dues 1 N =
Total 282.09 5.47 1.94 0.54
Trade Payables ageing schedule ae on 315t March,2022
Particulars Out ding for following periods fromn due date of payment
Less than 1 year " 1-2 vears 2-3 Years More than 3 years
i MSME 10.42 = . -
(i) Others 20539 2092 .79 .36
(i} Disputed dues - MSME 2 -
(1¥) Disputed dues ~ Others - -
(v) Unbilled dues - - - -
Total 2601 20.92 8.79 .36
#: There are no cases where no due date of papment is specified.
##: There is no cases of transactions with the companies struck off under section 248 of Companies Act, 2013 ot section 560 of Companies Act, 1956,
Mote 15: Debt securities (at amortised cost)
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Non-convertible debentures 533,09 550.38
553.09 550.38
Drebt securities in lodi 53309 550138
Debt secusities outside India -
553.09 550.38
Unamortised Processing Fees 50 236
Accrued Interest 53.59 5.74
Pardgculars Terms of Repayment Ag at As at
Macch 34, 2023 March 3, 2022
Non-convertible dek (secured)
50) (Mazch 31, 2022: 54, [@215.75% (Previcus year : 15.50%), raved, unlisted, fully paid up, seawr, speured,
redeemabile, taxable, non-convertible debentuzes of face value of T 1,0,00,000 cach, The date of alloament is June,
29, 2020, Redeemable ot par on 553.00 55038

(Secuted by way af hypothecation of fiest ranking, exclusive and continuing charge on book debt whiclh shall be
maintaingd at 110%% of principal including interest accrued amount of the debentuces outsranding.}

fune 29, 2023




SATIN FINSERY LIMITED
Motes to the financial statements for the period ended March 31, 2023
(Al amounts in T in lakhs, unless stated othenwise)

Not

e 16: Borrowings (other chan debt securities)

| Particulars As at Asan
March M, 2023 March 31, 2022
Term boana frow bank (4w boed Cust
Secured# 294211 1929:37
Unsecurcd 017
Teem loans feom financial instilutions{At amorised Cost)
Secured##t 9,940.15 5,104.93
Unsecured 1965
Loan fvom related parties (unsecured) 3,350.00 335000
Lease Liability 169.22 21805
16,401.48 10,822.07
Bortowings in India 16,401.48 10,822.07
Borrowings cutside India -
16,401.48 10,822.07

# Secured by way of Hypothecation of book debt to the extent of 125% of the value of the loan outstanding and Secured by way of Hypothecation of Vehicles.
##Secuced by way of Hyporhecanon of book debt 1o the extent of 100% 1o 110% of the value of the loan cutstandng
#i#t#H: Theee are no instances whete the company has not used the bomowings from banks and fmancial instiwtons for the specific purpose for which it was takeo ai the balance sheet date.

HHHQ dy retaens or

Rled by the

Unsecueed teom credit Racility from bank includes credir card outstanding issued by RBL bank.

y with banks or Bnancil instnoons are in agreement with the books of account.

Loan from selated partes includes Joan from holding company which is a revelving credit Racility agzainst rotal sancroned limit of Ry, 4,000 lakh, The same is d, repayble oo d d
The e of interest i 13.75%
Unamortized Processing Fees 12531 #3.23
Accrued Intetest 50.08 22.3()
Reconciliation of liabilities anising from fi ing activiti
The changes in the Company’s liabilities arising from financing activides can be classified as follows:
Pordeulars l!onuwiug_l'& Debt | Liability apainet leased Tosal
securities anacty
March 31, 2021 5,685.03 202.87 5,587.89
Adoption of Ind AS 116 - 12288 122,88
Cash flowa:
- Repaymeat {3,126.65) (127.45) {3.254.10
- Proceeds from overdraft facility - -
- Proceeds other than overdraft facility 8,664.80 8,664.80
- Others {1.54) (4.54)
Non cavh:
-G ign of Optionally C hle, Redeemable Preference Shares
- Foreign exchange - =
- Amonisation of upfront fres and others ©7.22 - (67.22
- Orthers - 19.75 19.75
March 31, 2922 11,154.41 218.05 11,372.47
Adoption of [od AS 116 ~ 7920 T9.20
Cash flows: -
- Repayment (5,634.55) {108.91) (5,943.46)
- Proceeds from overdrafr faciliy 020 020
- Proceeds other than overdraft facility 11,4653 - 11,4635.30
- Others 28,63 28.63
Non cash: =
- Convession of Optionally C ible, Redeemable Pref Sharey -
- Foreign exchange -
- Amorosation of upfront fees and others (38.20 . {38.200
- Orthers 9.54 {1912 {0.56)
March 31, 2023 16,785.35 169.22 16,954.56




SATIN FINSERYV LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the period ended March 31, 2023
{All amounts in ¥ in lakhs, ualess stated otherwise)

Due beyond 3 Years |

Due within 1 year Ducbetweenitw2 |  Ducberween2io 3 Totat
Original maturity Interest rate No. of Amount No, of Amount ! No. of ’ Amouvnt No. of Amount
of loan ingtallme installmen instalimen installment
uts ta ] [
Below 9.00% 24 742 13 5.19 12 268 15 3.66 18.95
Monthly 9% to 12% 3 875.00 24 687.50 10 40297 - 1,965.47
12.01% 1o 15% 237 3,785.00 183 2.619.50 56 979.45 7.384.29
Above 15% 5% 1,157 58 1,253.04 40 947.83 3,338.78
Quarterly 12.01% to 15% 4 166.67 2 83.33 - - - - 250.00
Bullet 12.01% to 15% - - - - - 2 3,350.00 3,350.00
Above 15% 1 500,00 - - - - - = 500,00
|’I‘oul 361 6,472.00 285 4,648.86 148 233297 17 3,353.06 16,807.49
Terms of principal repayment of Debt Securities & Qther Borrowings 2 at March 31, 2022
Original maturity | Interest rate Due within 1 year Due between 1102 Due between 2 10 3 Due beyond 3 Years Total
of loan No. of Amount No. of Amount No. of Amount No. of Amouat
installme installmen ingtallmen inetallment
nte ta ] [}
Below 9.00% i2 4.74] 12 511 6 2,70 - - 12,55
Monthly P to 12% 1 458.33 12 50000 12 500.00 11 458.33 1,916.66
12.01% to 15% 142 2,209.49 109 1,625.25 58 614.26 13 232,09 4,71.09
Quarterly 12.01% to 15% 4 166.67 4 166.67 2 §3.33 0 - 416.67
Bullet 12.01% to 15% - - 0 ~ 0 - 2 3,550.00 3,550.00
Above 15% - - 1 500.00) - - - - 500.00
Total 169 2,925.23 138 2,797.03 78 1,200.29 26 4,240,42 11,166.97




SATIN FINSERY LIMITED
Notes to the fimancial statements for the period ended March 31, 2023
{All amounts in 2 in lakhs, unless stated otherwise)

Note 17; Other financial liabilitiea

- Asal As ax
Parti
iculars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Othee payable 1482 1048
Expenses payable 256.60 151.77
Insurance Payable 390
Security deposit received from customers = 6247
| Total | 271149 228.62
Mote 16: P
X Asat Asat
Particulars
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Provision for compensated zbsences 12025 130.32
Provision for gratuity 59.87 .04
Provision for first loss default puacanpes 1,347.45 1,32131
Total 1,527.57 1.482.67
*Company has made provision on acocunt of compensated absences based on Expect Opinion and Acruria) Valuation considering Basic Salary of employees.
Note 1% Other non-fnancial liabilities
Particulars Ao ac s at
March 3, 2023 March 31, 2022
Deferred income - 1.58
Starutory dues payable 107.67 107.18
Total 107.67 108.76

= GUWGRA




SATIN FINSERY LIMITED
Motes to the financial staternents for the period ended March 31, 2023
{All amouns in ¥ in lakhs. wnless stated ctheradse)

20  Equity share capital An ar As ot
March 31, 2023 March 3L 2022
Anthorieed equity share capitat
140,514,900 (31 March 2022 140,514,900) Equity shares of 710 cach 14,03 149 14,051,449
o sy 14,051.49
Issued and subscribed
140,514,839 (31 March 2022: 140,514,859) Equiry shates of 210 each 14,631.49 1405149
14,051.49 14,051.49
Paid up equity share capital
140,314,837 (1 JMarch 2022 102,300,000; Equity shares of 710 cack 14,151 49 10,250 0
14,051.49 10,250.00
i) Rights, prefe and ict hed to equity sh

The company has oaly one class of equity shares having par face value off 10 per share. Each equity shareholder s eligible for one vote per share held, Any dividend, if proposed by the Board of Directoss,
is subject to the approval of shareholders. Dividend declared and paid would be in Indian rupees. Dividends are subject to corporate dividend ax, In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holdess of
equity share will be entided 1o receive ining assets of the Company, afier distibution of all prefersnizal amounrs. The dismbution will be in proportion t¢ the number of equity shares held by the
shareholders.

The Authorised Share Capil, Issued and subscribed Share Capital 15 increased due to effect of Merger of Taraashna Financial Services Limited with Satim Fimserv Limited a5 approved by NCLT Chandigarh
Bench by order dated Janvary 31, 2023 which bas appointed date 8 effective date are Aprd 01, 2021 & March 01, 2023 respectively, The paid-up share capital of the Company has been increased during the
year as required under the scheme of armagement approved by the NCLT Chandigarh Bench by order dated January 31, 2023 which bas appointed date & effective date are Aprll 01, 2021 & March 01, 2023
respectively.

iiy Reconciliation of equity shares outstanding at repordng year end date Ma. of shares T MNo. of shares b4
Exquity share capital of T 10 each fully paid vp March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Balince at the beginning of the year 10,25,00,000 10,250.60 10,25,00,000 10,250.00
Add: Issued during the year 3,50,14,857 3,80149 - -
Balance at the end of the year 14.05.14,859 14,051.49 10,25, 00,000 10,250.00
iii) Equity shares held by holding/p pany # at bal eheet date:
March 31, 2023 Muarch 31, 2022
% change
% change during during the
Edquity share capital of Rs. 10 each fully paid up No. of shares % holding the year Mo. of shares % holding year
Satin Creditcare Metwork Limited 14,05,14,859 100.00%% 0.00% 10,2500000  100.00% 0.00%
14,05,14,8549 100.00%: 0.00%: 10,25,00.000  100.00% 0.00%%
iv} Shareholders holding more than 5% of shares of the Company 25 at balance sheet date;
March 3, 2023 March 31, 2022
Equity share capital of Rs. 10 each fully paid up No. of shares ¥ holdi No. of shares % holding
Satin Credircare Nerwork Limited 14,05,14,859 100.00% 10,25,00,000 100.00%%
14,05,14,859 100.00% 10.25.00.000 100.00%
W The Company has neither {ssued equity shares p to ithout pay being received in cash or anybbonus shares nor has there been any buy-back of shares in the

current year and five years i diatel ding the bal sheet date except p to sch of ] a8 tioned above.




SATIN FINSERV LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the period ended March 31, 2023
(All amounts in T in Lakhs, unless stated otherwise)

21 Other equity As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Retained eamings (1,318.99) (1,752.82)
Statutory reserves (@ 309.79 145.51
Amalgamation reservef 725.23 725,23
Share capital pending allotment# - 3,801.49
Total Other Equity (283.97) 2,919.42

@ Starutory reserves
The reserve is created as per the provision of Section 45(IC) of Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934, This is a testricted
reserve and no appropriation can be made from this reserve fund except for the purpose as may be prescribed by Reserve
Bank of India.

# The Hon'ble NCLT in its hearing dated January 31, 2023 has approved the Scheme of Arrangement for Amalgamation of
TFSL and SPL. After requisite filing with concerned ROC, the said Scheme got effective from March 01, 2023. The
Appointed Date of Scheme is Apxl 01, 2021, By the effect of Appointed Date (i.e. April 01, 2021), the financial numbers
of Satin Finserv Limited for the financial year ended March 31, 2022 are also restated due to amalgamation of Taraashna
Financial Services Limited (transferor) with Satin Finserv Limited (transfree)”

The Transferee Company has issued its shares to the shareholders of Transferor Company in consideration for
amalgamation of Transferor Company with Transferee Company shares in proportion of 237 (Two Hundred Thirty
Seven) Equity Shares of Face Value of Rs. 10 (Rupees Tea) only each in Transferee Company for every 100 (Oune
Hundred) Equity shares of face value of Rs. 10/- (Rupees Ten) only each held by them in “Transferor Company-~
pursuant to this Scheme of Amalgamation.

Particulars Amount {Rs. In lac)
Net assets received 4,526.71
Equity share capital (a5 per approved scheme} 3,801.49
Amalgamation Reserve 725.23




SATIN FINSERV LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the period ended March 31, 2023
{All amounts in T in Jakhs, unless stated otherwise)

Note 22: Interest Income (measured at amortised cost)

| For the period cnded |

For the year cnded

Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31,2022 |
|
Lnterest income on portfolio loans 3,874.10 2,565.28
Interest income on deposits, certificate of deposits and commercial papers 291.68 336.96
Net gain/ (loss) on liquid funds :
Other Interest Income
Intecest Income o Security Deposits
Interest Income on refund of Security Deposits -
4,165.78 2,902.24
MNote 23: Fees and ot ission income
. For the period ended For the year ended
P
artieulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Income from business correspondents operations 6,160.56 6,393.86
Documentation charges 130.44 49.96
Login Fee Income 91.43 41.05
6,382.43 6,484.97
Note 24: Net gain on fair value changes
For the period ended For the year ended
Particul
— March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Net gain/ (loss} on financial instruments
at fair value through profit or loss
- Mutual Funds 019
Total Net gain/(loss) on fair value changes 0.19 -
Fair Value Changes: - %
-Realised 0.19 -
Total Net gain/(loss) on fair value changes 0.19 -
Note 25: Other Income
Particulors For the period ended For the year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Miscellaneous income T1.64 297.46
Reversal of shares based payments (ESOP) - 5.76
Interest income on security deposits 072 1.50
Net gain on derecognition of property, plant and equipment 700 275
Foreclosure charges received 16.92 16.08
102.28 323.55




$SATIN FINSERV LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the period ended March 31, 2023
{All amounts in ¥ in lakhs, unless stated otherwise}

Note 26: Finance cost (on financial liabilides meagured at amortised cost)

Particul Far the period ended For the year ended |
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Interest on borrowings
Interest on boreowings other than debt securities 1,449.28 1,040.09
Interest on debt secudties 78.45 77.50
Intetest on borrowings from bank 222,57 62.92
Ocher interest expenses 78.99 46.33
Interest expense on lease liabaliry 19.69 23.84
Interest on taxes 0.59 -
1.849.57 1,250.68
Note 27: Impairment on financial i (on financial assets measured at amortised cost)
Particul For the period ended For the year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Allowance for expected credit loss 21.25 31734
Portfolio loans written off 356.80 97.60
378.405 414.94
Mate 28; Employee benefit expenses
Particul For the period ended For the year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Salarics, wages and bonus 4,851.39 5,137.73
Coniribution to provident and other funds 435,62 508.68
Staff welfare expenses 47.76 40.21
5,334.77 5,686.62
Note 29: Depreciation and amortization expense
Particul For the period ended For the year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Depreciaton on propecty, plant and equipment 81.24 95.19
Amoctisation on intangible assets 1.18 1.47
Amortisation on right of use assets 92.47 108.33
174.89 204.99




SATIN FINSERY LIMITED

Notes to the financial statements for the period ended March 31, 2023

{All amounts in ¥ in lakhs, unless stated otherwise)

MNote 30; Giher cxpenses

Partculare For the period ended For the year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31,2022
Bank charges 5.35 1.69
Rent 179.37 185.08
Travelling and conveyance 181.52 140.32
Repair and maintainance 17.28 17.60
Printing and stationery 77.64 80.79
Communication cost 79.60 68.19
Insurance charges 68.12 83.05
Website and email maintainance chacges 167.00 147.05
Rates and taxes 11034 91.16
Electricity chacges 31.23 36.17
Freight and cartage B -
Auditor's remuneration* 20.93% 2283
Business promotion 5.46 4.63
Commission paid** 4830 17.88
Legal and professional charges 191.35 151.59
CSR expenditure - 742
Drector sitting fees 425 491
Balance write off 37.86 12.18
Office expenses 130.20 168.72
Write off against first loss default guarantee 671.94 2,929.82
First loss default guarantee expenses 26.14 406.35
Postage & courier 24.94 2832
Miscellaneous expenses 6.49 17.85
Full & fina! settlement with BC partner 221.39
2,092.01 4,850.99
Note*: Auditors remuneration includes payments as follows:
(2) Swtutory audit 9.00 1600
{by Tax andit 3.00 500
{c} Cerufication fee and other services 8.93 183
Total 20.93 22.83
** Tt inchudes Foreign Cutrency payment 13.56




SATIN FINSERY LIMITED
Motes 1o the Anancial statements for the period ended March 31, 2023
(Al amounts in ¥ lakbs, unkess staved otherwise)

For the year ended  For the year ended

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Notwe 3i: Baming per Sharce
Mot profie/{Loss) for the year 406.30 {2,009.68)
WWeighted w rmge ninhor f pqnine shares for RS 1105 12850 14015 14 259
Par value per share (in RS) 10 10
Basic Farnmgs per share (in RS 043 (L43)
Nuoning value of cyuity shase (T} 10.00 10.00
Waighied a imber of oty fhrcs H52d 5 o : 1 BET,2E0 19,0811 850
Diilured Earnings per share (in BS ) 043 (143}
Mote 32: Tax Expense
Curerent tax (including taxes earher years) 116.5¢
Minimum alrernate tax eredat entitlement {116.85) -
Deferred tax expense/ {credit} 21509 (GR7.88)
215.10 {647.58)

The majur components of income tx expense and the reconciliation of expense based on the domestic effective iy nmte of at 27.92% and the
reported tax expenst in profit or loss ae as follows:

Accovoung profit before income tax 621.40 (2,697.56)
Arcountry’s starutory mcome mx rte of 27.02% 228.51 (75046}
{March 31, 202 27.62%)

Tax effect of adj [ ile expected income tax exp to repocted i tax exp

{i) Tax impacr of expenses which 1 non deductble 0.03 1.03

(ii}) Tax impact oo items exempt under ncome tax - -

(i) Impact of difference in tx rte on certain itemns 001 .

() Preliminacy expenses allowed 025 025

{v) Others (13,71} 41,30
215.10 (GRT.EE)

Note 33: Leases
The Company has taken various office premises under lease amang Genenally, the lease term varies from 11 months to 60 months and is

cenewable under murually agreed teems beoween lessee and lessor and there is no exclusive night o the pany. The company has considered leases
having imitial lease term of upto 12 months as short teem leases as per pam 6 of Ind AS 116 and thier expenses have been recognised as Rent under
nore 3 For 2l ather leases having lease term of moee than 12 months a fight of use asset iz eecogmised with a corespanding lease Tabiliy. The ephe
of use asset is dwsclosed under Property, Plant and Equipement and lease liability is disclosed under Boecowings. Further disclosures as on March 31,
2027 are as follows:

1 "The table below descnbes the nature of the Company’s leasing acuviues by type of dght-oFuse asset recopmsed on balance sheec

Right of use asset Office Premises

Particalars For the year ended  For the year ended
March 31,2023 Murch 31, 2022

Total number of leases 1684 173
Number of leases considered as short term leases 133 114
No. of right-of use assets leased 49 61
Range of ining teom Ugto 55 months Upto 34 months
Averape ning lease term & months 9 months
No, of leases with extension ophions ] ]
No. of leases with purchase options 0 0
Na. of leases with variable payments linked to an mdex 0 l
No. of leases with Irfaton optons 184 175

2 Additional information on the right-of-use assets by chss of assets is as follows:

Pardeulars Righ of use asset
Office Premises
Carrying amount as on March 31, 2022 20015
Addition 79.20
Depreciation 92,47
Deledon 32.67
Camrying amount a5 on March 31, 2023 15422

3 Lease liabilities are presented in the statement of fimancial position as follows:

Particulars March 31, 2023 March 3, 2022

Current 68,56 91.00
Non-current 100.67 127.05
Total 169.22 218.08
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At 31 March 2023 the Company do not have any committed leases which had not yet commenced.

The undiscounted matueity analysis of lease liabilities at 31 March 2023 1 ag follows:

Met present values |

[Partculars Lease p:q-'ments_:_ Finance charges

| Within 1 year 81.52 | 1597 63.55
[1-2 years 36.62 | 9.40 47.22
2-3years 3318 | 481 2837
34 years 17.66 2.26 1540
4-5 years - 10.27 0.39 9.68
Total - 202.26 33.04 169.22
Tl widiswowamad noivy iy of lase Habdiies s 3% March 2022 55 95 ¢

Pardculars Lease pay Fi harg Net p }
Within 1 year 109.13 1813 91,00
1-2 years T6.07 983 66.24
2-3 years 66.16 5.35 6081
Total 25L.36 333 218405

The Company bas elected not to recogmise 1 lease Liability for short teem leases (leases of expected term of 12 months or less) or for leases of low

d to be

value assets, Payments made under such leases are expensed on a straight-line basis. In addition, centain variable lease pay are not pe
recognised a5 lease liabilities and are expensed as incusred The Company does not face a significant liquidity risk with regard 1o its lease liabilities 1 the
current assets are sufficient to meet the obligations related o lease liabilities as and when they fall due.

The expense relating to payments not included in the measuremeat of the lease labaliry is as follows:

Operaung leases

The Company has taken on lease cectain assets under operting lease 12 The contrachial Aunre lease pay bligation in
respect of these leases are as under

Office premises

Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Shoret term leases 179.37 186.34
Leases of low value assets -
Varmble lease payments - -
Total 179.37 156.34
Miini lease obligati

- within one vear 63,55 91.00
- Later than one year but not Later than five years 100647 127.05
- Later than five years =
The Comparty had total cash ourflows for leases of Rs. 287.5 lakh in March 31, 2023 (Rs. 308.79 lakh in March 31, 2022).

The following are the amounts recogmsed in profin or loss:

Particul March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Deprecianon axpense of right-of-use assets 92 47 107.02
1 pense on lease lisbiliny < 19.69 23.84
E lating to short-term leases {included in other expenses) 179.37 186.34
Expense relating to leases of low-value assets (included in other expenses) - S
Variable Jease payments (included in other expenses) - -
Total amount recognised in profit or loss 291.53 3.0

The Company has lease contracts for office buildings used in its operations, Leases of these buildings generally have lease teems between 11 months
and 5 years years. The Company’s obligations under its leases are secured by the lessor’s title to the leased assers. Generally, the Company is restricted

from assigning and subleasing the leased assets. There are several lease contracts that t

discussed below.

T,

ion and

ion options, which are further

The Company has several lease contraces that inchude extension and rermination options. These options are negotiated by management to provide

I'I:xnblhty in managing the leased-asset portalio and align with the Company’s b
ton and termination options are reasonably certin to be exercised.

herh

these

-]

needs. M

The Company dots not have any lease contracts that contins variable payments.

exercises significant judgement in

Set out below are the undiscounted potential future rental payments rehating o periods following the dare of and
options that are not included in the lease ferm:

2023

Particul. Within five yeats More than five years ‘Total

Extension options expected not to be exercised {Count)

Termination options expected to be exercised {Count)

Extension opticns expected not to be exercigsed (Amount in Lakhs)

Termuinanon options expected to be exercised (Amount in Lakhs)




2022

Particulars Within five years

More than five years

Fxtension options expected not to be exercised (Count) E

Termisnation opnons expected to be exercsed (Count)

Extension options expeciid not to be exerased (Ao

1 bbb | |

Termination optitng expected to be exercised (Amount o Lakhs)

Note 34: Contingent Liabifities nox provided for

No contingent Habilities as on 31sc March 2023 (previous year M), Estimated amount of contracts feomiing 1o be executed on capital account s Nil

{previous year Nil). Other commitments it Wil as on 31st March 2022 (previous year Nil).

34,1  Estimates
4) Impairment of financil assets based on expected credit losa medel

342 Chssification and meagurement of financial psscts and liabilities

The chssification and measurement of financial assets will be made considering whether the conditions as per Ind AS 109 are met based on Facts and

circurasances existing at the date of mansition.

Financial assets is measured using effecuve wiecest methiod by nssessing IS

mtractus] cash flow chamacreristics only on the basis of facts and

circumstances existing at the date of trmsition and if it is impracticable to assess clements of modified time value of money i.¢. the use of cifvenve
interest method, fair value of financial asset at the date of tansition shall be the new carrying amount of that asset. The measurement exempron

applies for finsncal liabilities as well

Applying 2 requirement is impracticable when the entity cannot apply it after making every ceasonable effort to do so. 1t is imprecticable to apply the

changes tetrospectively if

a} The effects of the retrospective apphication or retraspective bl

qit are riot d -

b} The reuospective applicanan o restarement tequires assumptions about what management’s intent would bave been i that penod;
The retrospective applieation or retraspective restatement requires significant estimates of amounis and it is impassilile to distnguish objec tively

informiation abaut those estmates that existed ar tha time.

Note 35: Asset Under Management

The Company is als0 in the activity of businuss ctirrespondent for vanious banks and NBFCs. The Comgany provides iest and second loss default
arntees in the fonm of fxed deposits/guaruntocs for Assets Under Management as pec business correspanden| agreements signed with vagious

banks and MBFCs.

The institutiomwise Assets Under Management in books of company for business comespondence activity as on hfarch 31, 2023 are as follows:

March 51, 2023 March 31, 2022
Name of Pariner FDR bakmce for FDR balance for
AuM FLDG AUM FLDG |
Yes Bank Ld.# 16,741.90 - 30,758.22 1,024.43
RBL Bank Ltd. 1202 108.03 311195 107.54
Reliance Commercia! Finance Lid. 75003 169.34 TOLTF 619.57
Tndusind Bank Ltd - . 0.51 -
Northermn Arc Capital Lid. - 20.90
Federal Bank 2,127.36 96.61 149.85
IDEC First Bank Ltd 10,874.44 1312.25 22,537.60 1,311.05
Jana Small Finance Bank Ltd. 12,768.76 943.08 12,615.88 698.58
CSB Bank Lid ™ 2.296.95 13240 2,405.34 11221
== 45,000.46 2,761.72 72.362.02 3.873.57
FDR balance includes accrued interest.
#FDR of YBL is in process of transfer in the name of Satin Finserv Limited.
*In addition to FDR for FLDG y has peovided corporite @ of Bs. 45.26 kac to C5B.
Note 36: Details of dues to micro and small enterprises as defined under the MSMED Act, 2006
Particulars Ag Asat
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
The prmcipal amount arid the interest due Hhereon remaning unpaid to any supplier as at the end of each
ACCOUNENE Year. 10,42 10.42

The amount of intecest padd by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the MSMED Act, 2006 along with the
amaunts of the payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during each aceounting year.

2006,

Tt armount of Interest due and payable for the period nf delay in making payment {which have heen pad hut
heyend the appointed day duning the year) but without adding the intersst specified under the MSMED Act,

The amount of interest accrued and remuining unpaid at the end of vach adcounting year.

The amount of Facther mierest remaining due and payable even succecding years, untll such date when the
interest dues 55 above are acually paid to the small enterpnse For the purpose of disallawrance 2 & deductible
expendinire under section 23 of the MSMED Act, 2006




SATIN FINSERV LIMITED
Notes to the fi ial ts for the period ended March 31, 2023
{All amounts i T in lakhs, unless stated otherwise)

Note 37: Related party disclogures
In acenrdance with the cequiremcents of Indian Sccounnng Scandard -

24 the mames of the related patties where contrnl/ability to exercive

significant influence exists, along with the ageregarc amount of transactions and year ond balances with them as wentified and cornlied by dhe

management are given below:

a. List of related partics and disclosures:

Description of relationship

Name of related parties

Halding company

Satin Credircare Metwork Limited

Enterprises over which key management personnel and relauves of such persannel excrose

significant influence with whom transactions have been undertaken:

Fellow subsidiary companies

Key managenal personncl and their relatives:

Satin Meo Dimensions Pyvr. Ld.

Satin Housing Finance Limuited

Name of key gerial personnel Designation Relatives
Mr H P Singh Director Mr. Satvinder Singh
Mrs. Anureet H P Singh
My, Sumit Mukherjee Dhrectar & CEO -
Mr. Partha Mukherjee Dhrector
Mr. Arjun Bansal Choef Financial Officer |-
Mr. Rahul Garg* Chief Financial Officer |-
My, Puneet Jolly Company Secretary -
Ms. Sneha Khanduja** Company Secretary -
Mr. Manoj Jasoria# Company Secretary -
b. Desails of with related partics carried out in the ordinary course of busi
. For the period ended | For the period ended
Mame of related party Nature of wansaction 1\‘18[‘1::1. 31,2023 Ma.rcﬁi 31,2022
Mr. HP Singh Personal G aven 2,750.00 2,000.00
Share based payments - -5.76
Facilitation charges Income 12.00 5.00
Technology sharing services expense 128.59 128.59
Pavment of cent for office space sharing 45.56 21.52
Satin Creditcare Network Limited [nterest Paid 506,40 392.74
Inter corporate Joan taken 1,850.00 1,950.00
|Loan Repaid 2,050.00 500.00
Income from business correspondents
operahons 1,043.60 §70.01
Satin Neo Dimensions Pvt. Lid. L income on lcr.m‘ L7 20.16
Repay t received against loan 52.46 43.94
Me. Sumit Mukherjee Remuneration 105.60 96.92
M. Partha Mukherjee (ill August 31, 2022) Remuneration 17.50 39.69
M. Arjun Bansal Remuneration 23.49 16.63
Mr.Rahul Gasg* (all February 28, 2023) Remuneration 21.08 13.06
Mr, Puncet Jally Remuneration 15.08 13.00
s, Sneha Khanduja™ (w.e.l. July 20 2022 nll
February 28, 2(23) Remuneration 313 -
M. Manoi Kumac Jasoria# (6l [anuary 31, 2022) _ |Remuneration 794




SATIN FINSERY LIMITED
Notes to the financial staternents for the period ended March 31, 2023
(Al amounts in ¥ in lakhs, unless stated otherwise)

¢ course of business:

¢. Duistunding balances with relaved paitics im ord

Name of related parny Naire of transacd: As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022
Tuis for corporate guarantey

Satin Creditcare Merwork Linuted 424 612
Unhbilled revenue - 11504
Inter corporate loan Payable 3,350.00 3,550.00

‘Satin Neo Dimeasions Pt Ltd. |Lnter corporate loan Receivable 39.33 91.79
Accrued Inrecest Receivable | 0.55 1.28]

MNote:

1. Mc. H. P Singh, director of the company has given personal guarantee for term loan taken from bank. Outstanding 25 of March 31, 2023 is Rs.
3,965.47 Lakh (Previous Year: 19,16.67 Lakh)

d.[Kcy management personnel remuneration includes the following expenses: Fot the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Short-term ernplovee benefits 185.93 197.50
Post-emplovment henefits 5.63 1.98
Other long term benefits 1115 {4.06)
Total ] 202.71 19542

(Tiis gpo has beem it blank intestionally)




SATIN FINSERV LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the period ended March 31, 2023
{All amouats in T in lakhs, unless stated otherwise}

Note 38: Employee Benefits
The Company has adopted Indian Accounting Standacd (Ind AS) - 19 on Employee Benefit as under :

@)

(&)

Defined contribution plans
Provident fund

The Company has made T 443.52 lakhs (March 31, 2022 ¥ 508.38 lakhs) contribution in respect of provident fund and other funds.

Defined benefit planse
Gratuity

The Company has a defined benefit gratuity plan. Every employee is entitled to gratuity as per the provisions of the Payment of Gratuity Act,
1972, The lizbility of Grauity is recognized on the basis of actuarial valuation. The scheme is funded by the Company and is managed
partially by Life Insurance Corporation of India (“LIC") as we are in process of adding employees pursuant to scheme of amalgamartion as

mentioned in Note- 46

Risks associated with plan provisions

L=

Actal salary increases will increase the Plao’s liability,

Salary increases Increase in salary increase rate assumption in future
valuations will also increase the hability.
1¢ Dlan is funded then assets liabilities mismatch & actual
Investment risk investment return on assets lower than the discount rate
assumed at the last valuation date can impact the liability.
R Reducrion in discount rate in subsequent valuations can
Discount rate increase the plan’s liability.
I _— Actual deaths & disability cases proving lower or higher than
M ty & disability assumed in the valuation can impact the liabilities.
Actual withdrawals proving higher or lower than assumed
Withdrawals withdrawals and change of withdrawal rates at subscquent

valuations can impact Plan’s liability.

Amount recognised in the balance sheet ie a9 under:

Particulars As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022
Present value of obligation 118.01 113.35
Fhair value of plan assets 58.14 82.31
Net obligation recognised in balance sheet a8 provision {59.87) (3104
Amount recognised in the statement of profit and lose is as under:

Particulars As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022
Current service cost 4475 28.02
Net interest cost /({income) 4.71) 0.30
Interest cost on defined benefit obligation - 0.75
Net impact on profit (before tax) 40.04 29.08
Actuarial (gain)/loss recognised during the year 11.36 {8.65)
Amount recognised in the statement of profit and loss and other

comprehensive income 51.40 20.43

l _._Gu@emmf_—,
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SATIN FINSERV LIMITED
Notes to the financial siatements for the period ended March 31, 2023
(All amounts in ¥ in lakhs, unless stated otherwise)

(i} Movement in the present value of defined benefit obligation recognised in the balance sheet is as under:

Ae ai Magch 31, 2022 |

Particulars As at March 31, 2023
Trescat value of defined benefir obligation as at the beginning of year 113.36 11815 |
Current service cost 44,75 28.02
[nterest cost 1.28 7.99
Past service cost including curtailment gains/losses - (3.09)
Benefits paid (52.74) (57.59)
Actuarial loss/(gain) on obligation
Actuarial (gain)/loss on asising from change in demographic assumption - -
Actuarial (gain}/loss on arising from change in financial assumption (1.95) {0.85)
Actuarial (gain)/loss on arsing from expedence adjustment 13.31 20.74
Present value of defined benefit obligation as at the end of the year 118.01 113.36
{iv) Major categories of plan assets (as percentage of total plan assets):
Particulars As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022
Funds managed by insurer 100% 100%
Total 100% 100%
(v) Movement in the plan aesets recognised in the balance sheet ie as nader:
Particulars As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022
Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year 82.32 102.53
Actual return on plan assests 2.51 32.38
Employer's contdbution 26.14 5.00
Benefits paid (52.74) {57.59)
Acmarial loss/(gain) on plan assets - -
Fair value of plan assets at the end of the year 58.23 82.32
(vi) Actuarial agsumptions
Particulars As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31,2022 |
Discounting rate 7.39% 7.26%
Future salary increase 4.00% 4.00%
Retirement age (years) 60.00 60.00
Withdeawal rate
Up to 30 years 56.21% 56.21%
From 31 10 44 years 43.75% 43,75%
Above 44 years 50.00% 50.00%
|Weighted average duration 1.36 1.36

Mortality rates inclusive of provision for disability -100% of LALM (2012-14)

Gratuity is payable to the employees on death or resignation or on retirement at the attainment

eventualities, the Actuary has used Indian Assured Lives Mortality (2012-14) Ulkimate table.

of superannuation age. To provide for these

AT

::‘j 1) % =53

=
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(All amounts in ¥ in lakhs, unless stated otherwise)

{vil) Secmsitivity analysis for gratuity tiability

Particulars

As ac March 31, 2023

As at March 31, 2022

Impact of the change in discount rate

Present value of obligation at the end of the year 118.01 113.36
- Impact due to increase of 0.50 % F.on {0.86)
- Impact due to decrease of .50 % 8.79 0.88
Impact of the change in salary increase
Present value of obligation at the end of the year 118.01 115.36
- Impact due to increase of 0.50 % 9.05 0.90
- Impact due to deceease of 0,50 % (8.19) (0.89
Sensitivities due to mortality and withdrawals are not material and hence impact of change due to these is not calculated.
Sensitivities as to rate of increase of pensions in payment, rate of increase of pensions before retirement and life expectancy are not
applicable.
(viii) |Maturity profile of defined benefit obligation As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022

0to1year 3.03 35.89
1to0 2 year 238 24,62
210 3 year 2.55 13.81
3 to 4 year 334 7.74
4 to 5 year 392 4.30
5 to 6 yea 313 237
6 year onwards 99.87 7.05

B Compensated absences (non-funded)

() Amount recognised in the balance sheet is as under:
Pacticulars As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022
Present value of obligation 120.25 130.32
Fair value of plan assets - -
Net obligation recognised in balance sheet as provision 120.25 130.32

(i) Amount recognised in the statement of profit and loss ie as under:
Particulare As at March 31, 2023 As at Masch 31, 2022
Total sexvice cost 54.74 61.69
Net interest cost on defined beaefit obligation 1.93 14.30
Net actuasial (gain)/loss recognised during the year (2.36) {75.72)
Amount recognised in the statement of profit and loss 54.30 0.27

(This space bas been left blank intsntionally)




SATIN FINSERY LIMITED
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Note 3%: Financial instrurnents
A Financial asscts and Habilities

The carryimng amounts and faic vahics of finanem! metruments Ly 1Ty e as Tathor I .
Pasoula Naotes o schl:dnh:L Asat Asat

| March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Financial assets measured at amortised cost o -
Cash and Cash equivalents 1 1 R7R47 233176
Pank bilarces other than cash and cash equnalents 3 ER{ARER) 427624
Recesvables [ 298.33 36.69
Jasans 7 22 126,34 16,1279
Secuiaty doposis [ b 213 138.36
(they finanenl assots 8 660,95 764 57
Total 30,154.66 23,936.41
Fi ial liabilities dat ised cost
Payables 14 290.03 246.09
Debx secuaties 15 533.09 550,38
Boreowings (othee than debt secunues) 16 16,232.26 10,604.02
Crther fimancial habilis 17 27149 228.62
Taotal 17,346.87 11,629.11

B Fairvalues hiemrchy
The fair value of fnancial instruments as referred to i note (A) above bas been classified inta three categories depending on the inputs used in the valuation

technique. The hierarchy pives the highest priority 1o quoted prices in active markers for identical assets or Labilities [Lovel 1 J and lowest priority to
unobservable inputs [Level 3 measurements].

The categories used are as follows:

Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) for idendcal i in an active market;

Level 2: Directly (i.¢. as prices) or indirecdy (i.e. derived fiom prices) observable market inpots, other than Level 1inputs; and

Level & luputs which are not baged on observable ket data {unch ble inputs)

Company does not have any assers measured at Fair valve,

B.1 Fair value of i i d at ised cost
Fair value of instrufaents measured at amortised cost for which fair value is disclosed is as follows, these fair values ace calculated wsing Lewel 3 inputs:

E . As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022
articulns

Carrying value Fair value Carrying value | Fair value
Financial assets |
Cash and Cash cuuivalents 3,87847 337847 2,537.76 2,537.76
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 3,161.44 3,161.44 427624 427624
Receivables 29833 299.33 36.69 36,69
Loans 22,126.34 23,299.24 16,18279 16,868.73
Secunry deposits 2013 2013 138.36 138.36
Chther fnancid assets 66095 660.95 T64.57 764.57
Total 30,5466 | 31,327.56 23,936.41 24,622.35
Financial Labilities
Payables 200.03 290.03 246.09 246,09
Diebt secunties 553.09 553.09 55038 550.38
Borcowings {othee than debt securities) 1623226 16,23226 10,604.02 10,604.02
Othet financial lubilines 2149 271.49 228.62 20862
Total 17.M6.87 17,346.87 11,629.11 11,629.11

The managemeat assessed that fair values of cash and cash equivalents, othec bank balances, trade cecemvables, other financial assets, trade payables and other
financial Yiabilities appeowimate their respective Caerying amounes largely due to the shor-term matorities of these instraments, The faic value of the financial
assers and liabilities is incloded at the amount 3t which the instrument could be exchanged in 2 curzent transaction between willing parties, other than in 2 forced
or liquidation sale. The following methods and assumptions were used to estmate the fne vahes:

{i) Long-term fixed-rate receivables are evaluated by the Company based on pasameters such as interest rares, individual ereditworthiness of the customer and other
market risk factors.

(if) The fair values of the Comp *s fixed 4 bearing loans and receivables ace d ined by spplying discounted cash flows {DCF’) method, using discount
e that reflects the issuer’s bortowing rate as at the end of the reporting period. The own non-pecformance cisk a5 at March 31, 2023 was assessed to be
insignificant.

(iid) The faic values of the Company fixed intecestbeaeng debt sccuritics, bosrowings and subordinalted babilities are detecmined by applying discounted cash flows
{DCF’) method, using discount rate that reflects the issuer’s borcowing rate as at the end of the reporting period. The own non-performance risk as at March 31,
223 was assessed 10 be insignificant.
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Note 40: Fi; ial risk t

A)

1)

any's activities expose it to marker cisk, lipadiny dsk and credit nsk. The Company's board of directors has overall responmbility for the establishment
i oveestht of the Company risk management famework. The Company's risk are managed by a treasury depactment under palicies approved by the hoard of
dicectors. The board of directors pravides written principles for overall nsk management. Lhis aore explans dic suurces of sk winch (he canny is sipusca v and
henw the entity manages the tisk and the related impact in the financial statements

Risk Exposure arising from |“ |Manag ]
Credin sk Toch and ook cquielean Joans [ Ageinganales | Bank deposits
financial assets measured at amortised| diversificinon ol
et assel  base,  credn

lirmats wnd collateml

Liquidiey eisk Borrowings, debt secuntes,| Rolling  cash  fowj Availability of]
subordinated  Tabilities, and  other|forecasts committed  credit
financial liabitities lines and

borrowing Faciliies,

Market risk - interest rate Borrowings, debt  secarities  and|Sensitivicy amalysis. |Negotiation of]
subordinated babilities at variable rates teoms  that  reflect
the market factors,

Marker dsk - security price Investments i couity securities, mutugl Sensitivity analysis | Diversification of
funds, cerbficare of deposirs and commercial porifalio, with focus
papers on strategic

fimvestments

The Company’s nisk managemeat is carried out undee the policies approved by the board of disectors. The board of dicetoe provides written principles foc
overll risk management, as well as policies covering specific areas, such as foreign exchange fisk, inserest rate risk, ceedit risk and investment of excess liquidity.

Credie risk

Credit risk is the oisk that a counterpaty fails to discharge its obligation 1o the Company. The Company's exposuse to ceedit risk is influenced mainly by cash and
cash equivalents, loan assests, and other financial assets measured at amortised cost. The Company eontinuously monitors defaults of customers and other
counterparties and incorporates this information into its credit risk controls

Credit risk management

The Company assesses and manages credit nsk Gased on intemnal credit miing system. Intesnal crdit mnng is performed for each class of hnancial mstruments
with different chamcieristies. The Company assigns the following credit ratings 1o each chss of finincul assers based on the assumptions, wputs and factoes
specific to the class of fimancial assets

#  Low credit dsk on Francial repocing dave
M} Moderate credit risk
i) High credit cisk

The Company provides for expected credit Joss based on the following:

Asset Company Basis of categodsati Provision for expected credit loss
Low credht risk Cash and cash equivalents, other bank |12 moath expected credit loss

halances, invastments, loans and other
financial assets

Modermte credit risk Loans, trade receivables and other Life time expected credin loss or 12
financial assets month expected credin loss
High credit risk Loans and other financial assers Life time expected ceedit 1oss fully
provided for

Based on business énvironment in which the Company operates, 2 default on 2 financial asset is considered when the counter pany fails 3 make payments within
the agreed time period as per contract. Loss rates reflecting defaults are based on actual eredit Joss experience and considering differtnces between current and
historical economic conditions.

Assets ace wrinen off when thee is no reasonable expectation of recovery, such as a borrower declaring bankruptey or a litigation decided against the Company.
The Company continues 1o engage with pacties whose balances are written off and attempts to enforce repayment. Recoveries made are tecognised in statement
of profit and loss.

Fi; jal assets that expose the entity to credit nisk™®

Particulars fis at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
) Low credit risk on financial reporting date
Bank Balance in current accounts & in Fixed Deposits 319911 1,17.56
Bank balances other than above 316144 427624
Security deposits 2013 13836
Other financial assets 660,95 764.57
Receivables 298.33 36.69
Loans 21,259.10 15,351.49
(1) Moderate credit risk 521.41 48673
{iily High credit risk - 91650 390.99
<o

¥ These represgrd mﬁ‘%ﬁ}(}?\:\rf financil assers, without deduction for expected credit losses

74

NG
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Cash and cash equival and bank d
Cadit siah relanedd 1o cash and cash vque
different banks across the covatry. Ratngs are monitored periadically

1

e anel hank depasies s managed by ondy accepiing lishly cated banks ancd disersifying bank deposies and recounrs

Receivables
Teade ceceivables measured at amoruized eost and ceedit risk rlated to these are managed by monitonag the recoverability of such amounts continuously.

i ey

Other financial assers measured at amortized cost includes loans and advances 10 employces, sccurity deposits and othees Crodie sisk gelated tor these other
firancial assets is managed by monitoning the recoverabiity of such amounts continuously.

Loans

Credit risk mlated to hormwers are mitigated by eonsidenng collareral’s/bank guamnrees/letter of credy, from borrower's. The Company closely manitors the
credit-worthiness of the borrower's through internil systems and projeet appeassal process 10 assess the ceadit risk and define credit hmts of borrower, thereby,
[smiting the credit nsk 1o pre-caleulated amounts. These priscesses melude a deiled appriml methodnlogy, identification of dsks and suitable structuring and
credit misk mingation measuces. The Company assesses increase m ctedit tisk on an ongoing basis for amounts loan reeeivables that became past due and defule
1 considered o have pecurced when amounts reeeivable become 90 days past due.

)] Expeeted credit losses for financial assets ather than loans
i} Company provides for expegted credit Jossus an fnancial assets by assessing individual finanaial mstauments for expectation of any credit losses:
- For cash and éash équivalents and other bank balances - Since the Company deals with only high-rated banks and financil instimtions, credit dsk n respect of
cach and cash equivalents, other bank balances and bank deposits 15 evaluated a5 very low.

_ For investments - Considenng the investments ace in mutual funds, cestificate of depsoits and Goverament seeurities, credit ok 18 consitlered low.
- For loans comprising security deposits pasd - Credst sisk is considered Jow because the Company is in possession of the underlying asset.

For other financil assets - Credir risk 15 evaluated based on Company's knowledge of the credit worthiness of these parties and Joss allowance 18 measuted Foe
12 month expecred credit losses upon initial reeognition and provide (o lifenme expiected credit losses upon significaat increase i ceedhit nisk. The Company does
ntst have any expected loss based imparment recopnised on such assers considenng thew low credit msk aatuee, though the reconcilianon af expected credir loss
for all suli categories of financel assers (other than loans) are disclosed below:

Estimated gross Expecred Expected credit | Carrying amount
As at carrying amount |  probability of losses net of impaimaent
March 31, 2023 ac default defanle provision
Thank Balance m current accounts & in Fixed Deposits 319971 % 31991
Bank halances other thin above 316144 o - 3,161 44
Secuery depodie 213 % . 2013
Oither financial assets G60.95 [ - 660,95
Recewvables 29833 P 29833
r Estimated grose Expected Expected credit | Carrying amount
Asat camying amount | probability of losses net of impairment|
March 31, 2022 at default default provision
Bank Balance in curent pecounts & in Fixed Deposits 1,917.56 ) 1917.56
Bank balnces ather than above 4,276.24 e 4,276.24
Secunty deposits 138.36 0% 138.36
Other lnancial wssets T64.57 0% T64.57
Ruceivables 36.69 W 36.69

iiy The company has off books portfolia of laans which is being managed on behalf bf prnciple parmers. The company las provide fixed deposits to the principle
pactners agminst fest loss defaul guaratee The said fixed deposits are lien maked to the concerned princple pariners,
The company records first loss defaule guamntee liablilty based on contmet teems with each prnciple partners as on each reporting dare. Along with ficst loss
defauls puarantee lisbihty the company xlso recognzic loss allowance measured on lifetime expected credit loss as on éach wporting dare.

iii) Expected credit loss for Joans
The Company follows 3 ‘theee-stage” model for impaiement based on changes in credit quality since initial recognition as summarised below:
A financial instrument that is not credit-impaured on initial recognition is classified in Srage 1 and has its credit nisk continucusly monitored by the Company 1.e.
the default in repayment is within the range of 0 to 30 days.

If a significant increase in credit risk (SICR)) since initial reeognition is identified, the financral mstrument is moved to Stge 2' but is not yet deemed to be credit-
umpaiced ie. the default in repayment is within the range of 31 to 90 days.

If the fnancial instrument is ceedit-impaited, the financial snsteument is then moved to Stage ¥ i.e. the default in repayment is more than 90 days.

The Expeeted Credit Loss (ECL) is measured at 12-month ECL for Suge 1 Joan assets and ar Lifetime ECL foc Stage 2 and Stage 3 loan assets. ECL is the
product of the Probability of Default, Exposure at D Fault and Loss Given Default.

N I
g Acco



SATIN FINSERV LIMITED
Notes 1o the financial stavements for the period ended March 31, 2023
{All amounts in T in Jakhs, unless stated otherwisc)

As 2 pact of 2 quahtative assessment of whether 4 cusiomer i in default, the Company also considers 2 variety of instanees thar may indicate unlikeliness 1o pay.
When such events necur, the Campany earefulls considers whether the event should result in wreanng the customer as defaulted and therelore assessed as Stage 3
for LCL caloulinons of whether St2ge 2 5 appropsiate Such cvonts i hude

(il The boerower 15 doceased
G umeeed Jeziease o the sdvdying salluenl value v hese the recovery of the loan is expected from the sale of the collateral
(i) A marerial decrease in the borowsr’s menover or the Joss of a major customer

L

() The boceowee cequesting gency funding from the Company

The Expected Credic Loss (ECL) is measured at 12-month ECL for Siage 1 \oan assets and at kifeime ECL for Stge 2 and Stage 3 loan asscis. ECL s the
peoduct of the Feobability of Default, Exposure at Default and Loss Grven Delault

Fonvard-Jeoking economic information (acluding management overhy) is included in determiming the 12-month and liferime PD, EAD and LGD. The
assamptions underlying the expected credit Joss ave monitored and teviewed on an cagoing basis.

Consdering, the Company has sired husiness from January 2019 and does not have history and thete ate no loan balnces which has beeome 90 days past due
and hence, peovisioning noems are been used to rake provision for loan wesets, with a background of management overlay.

Changes in the gross carrying t and the ponding ECL allowances in relation to loans from beginoing to end of reporting period:
Particubors Siage 1 (0-30 daye) | Stage 20190 dayyy| 192 Clors than
Gross carrying amount #9 a1 March 31, 2021 12,418.88 456.51 223.53
Assets onginated o purchased 8,650.88 56.00 120.26
et imnster berveen stapes

Transfer to stage 1 35.97 (3590

Transter to suage 2 (530.94) 53094 -

Teansfet 10 stage 3 (31512 (29037) 605.50
Assets desecognised or repaid (exchuding wiite offs) (4,908.18) {230.46) 41.30
Write - offs - - (97.60)
Gross carrying anoount as at March 31, 2022 15,351.49 486.73 §59.99
Assuts ongnated ot purchased 11,089.59 61.25 16609
Net teansfer between stages

Transfer 10 stage 1 115.96 (77.28} (3867

Tangfer to srage 2 (306.2% 400,762 (2.48)

Transfer to suge 3 (210.95) {13872 357.67
Ansets dececognised or cepaid (excluding write offs) {4,680.71) (205.3%) {109.31)
Write - offs - - (356.80)
Grass carrying amount as at March 31, 2023 21,259.10 £27.41 916.50

Reconciliation of loss allowance provision from beginning to end of reporting period:

Reconciliation of love allowance Srage 1 (0-30 daye} | Seage 2 (31-90 days} Smgg;)%i;: than
Lozs allowance on March 31, 2021 19.76 109,42 108.92
Increase of provision due to assets crginated or puechased during the period 2398 13.59 4908
Net transfec berween stages

Transfer to sage 1 1051 (151)

Transter to stage 2 (2.65) 265

Teansfer to stage 3 (186 (6237 8423
Impact of ECL on exp 1 b stages during the year nn 957 19097
Agsets derecopmised or collectsd (3.33) (33.84) (50.44)
Loss allowance on March 31, 2022 80,17 112,52 6275
Inceoase of provision due to assets ariginnted or purchased during the periad 1628 12.46 424
Mot transfer between srages . -

Tmnsfer 10 stage 1 349 {15.24) (15.65)

Transfer to stage 2 (5:31) .31 1100y

Transfer to stage 3 @64 14.39) 37.03
Impact of ECL on cxposuces teansfoored between stages during the year (6:2.08) 6523 153.27
Assets derecopnised or collected 750 {27.30) {201.75)
Loss allowance on March 31, 2023 50.32 11948 406,88




SATIN FINSERY LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the period ended March 31, 2023
{All amounts in ¥ in lakhs, unless stated otherwise)

B) Liquidity risk

Lo}

Liquicliry sik o the rish tha the Company will e
cash o1 anaiher finaneial asset. The Company's 5
liahilities whea they ace due

intes JifRculty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial labilities that are serded by delivering
ok to managng liqudity 15 to ensure a3 far as possible, that i will have sufficicnt Bguidiy 1 meel jis

The Compaay maintains felxibiy o funding by maintaining availability under comminted credit lines Management memitors the Campany's liquidity positions
{also comprising the undmwn boreowing facilives) and cash and cash equivalents on the basis of expected cash flows. The Company also mkes into account
liquidity of the market in which che entty operates.

Financing arrangements

Ui Compiany his aceess to the [olowing undoiwn boreowuig feilines at the end of the sepoing pepod

Particulars Toral facilivy Drawn Undrawn
March 31, 2023

- Expiring beyond one year - :

- Fxpising within onc year 3,000 3,000
Total 3,000 - 3,000
March 3, 2022

- Expicing beyond one year 2,000 : 3,000
- Expinng within one year - -
Total 3000 - 3,000




SATIN FINSERY LIMITED

Notes to the financial atatements for the period ended March 31, 2023

{All amounts in ¥ 10 lakhs, unless stated otherwise)

Giy  Marurities of financial asscis and liabilities
The tables below analyse the Company financial assets and liabilities into relevant marusity groupings based on their contracrual mannhes
The amounts disclosed w the table ate the conteacrai undiscounied wish fows

As at March 31, 2023 Less than 1 year 1-2 year 2-3 year More than 3 years Toal
Financial assets

Cash and Cash equivalents AATRAT IRTRAT
Hank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 634,81 240517 10146 3,161.44
R ahles 298.33 = 29833
Lans T,64024 | FCYRRTY] 4,356,537 230, 7270402
Other financial assets 620.08 - J - G008
Total undiscounted financial agsete 13,211.93 10,082.17 5,098.03 2,339.21 30,731.34
Financial liabilities

Dbt secunbies 55309 - - . 35509
Borrowings {other than debt securities but including interest accrued) 6,033.60 4.651.26 2,337.80 357873 16,401.48
Paynbles 29003 29003
Other financial Tiabilities 271.49 - - - 27149
Total undiscounted financial liabilides 7,148.30 4,65L.26 2,337.80 3,378.73 17,516.09
Net undiscounted financial assets/ (liabilitics) 6,063.64 5,430.92 2,760.23 (1,039.52) 13,215.26
As ar

March 31, 2022 Less than 1 year 1-2 year 2-3 year More than 3 years Toral
Financial asseta

Cash and Cash equivalents 253176 - - = 2,531.76
"Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 1,769.61 2,405.17 10146 - 477624
Receivables 36.69 - - . 36.69
Loans 4,308.78 4,735.69 3044.96 2,648.79 16,730.22
Oither financial assets 836.62 21.37 2494 - 202.93
Total undiscounted financial aseets 9,50%.46 7,162.23 5,171.36 2,648.79 24,491.84
Financial Gabilities

Debt secuches 3274 497.6:4 - . 550.38
Bostowings (other than debt securities but including interest accrued) 2.980.86 239167 1.206.5% 4,236.63 10,8207
Payables 246.09 - 246,09
Cither financial kabilities 228.62 = - = 22B.62
Totai undiscounted financial lihilitics 3,508.31 289531 | 1,206.89 4,236.65 11,847.16
Net undiscounted financial assets/ (linbilities) 6,001.15 4,266,92 3.964.47 (1,587.85) 12.644.68

) 'Market riek
a) Interest rase risk
i) Liabilities
The Company’s policy is to minimise intecest rate cash Bow risk exposures on long-term financing. At barch 31, 2023, the Company is exposed to changes in market interest cates

thtough bank borrowings at variable interest rates. The Company's in fixed deposits all pay fixed imtecest rates.
Interest rate risk exposure
Pelow is the overall exposure of the Comgpany 10 interest rate nsk:
Particulars At Aea |
March 31, 2023 March M, 2022
Variable rate liabilities
Boreowings other than debit secunibes 1047021 4,055.44
Fixed rate Liabilitics
Drebt Securitics 553.00 550.38
Borrowings other fhan debt secuntes 576205 G,548.56
Totl 16,785.35 11,154 44
Sensinviey

‘Scnsitivity, of profit of Joss in borrowing having Ffixed interest rates, is oot applicable,

ify Assets
‘The Company's fixed deposits are carried at amortised cost and are fixed rate deposits. They are therefore not subject to interest rate risk as defined in Ind AS 107, since neither the
carrving amount por the future cash flows will fluctuate hecause of 2 change in market interest rates.

Note 41: Capital Management
The Company's capital management objectives are to ensuze the Company's ability to continue s a going concen, to comply with externally impostd capital requicement and
maintain steong credit mtings and to provide an adequate retum to sharcholders.
The Company monitors capital on the basis of the carrying amount of equity Jess cash und cash equivalents as presented on the face of balance sheet,

Management assesses the Company’s eapital requirements in order 1o maintain an efficient overll financing structuce while avouling excessve leverage. ‘This takes mro account the
subordination levels of the Company’s various classes of debe. The Company manages the capital structure and makes adjusuments to it in the light of changes in economic conditions
aad the risk chamctesisties of the undedying assets, In order rmintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the amount of dividends paid (o sharcholders, return
capiral to shaseholders, issue new shares, or sell assets to teduce debt.

Particulars — March 31, 2023 | March 31, 2022
Bocrowings (other than debe secufitigs) 1 S48 16,401.48 10,822.07
Other financial abilities - Intgfs = 553.09 55038

Less: Cash and Cash I‘:ql.ll\ﬂl];ﬁh(}_‘,-’/l (3,928.50% (2,738.52)
fLaf

corued ~
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‘,\au. debt [ 1302607 863393

[124guity Share Capirad 1405149 10,230.00

Other Equity (28397 2,919.42

ITotal equity 13,767.51 13,169.42

]—iut debi to equity ratio /Gearing ratio_ .95 0.66

% Net debr includes debt secutities + boreowing other than debt weenrnifies + sub-ordinated lublities + 1 accrued - cash and cash equivalents - bank balances other than cash &
cash equivalents.

—
A 2L XN
N e, s




SATIN FINSERV LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the period ended March 31, 2023
{All amounts in T in lakhs, unless stated otherwise)

Note 42: Maturity analysis of assets and liabilities
The table below shows an analysis of assets and liabsilities silysed according to when they are expecied o be recovered ur sertled.

[ “March31,2023 March 31, 2022 4‘[
Within | More than Within | More than |
12 months | 12 months Toul 12 months | 12 monthe Total
ASSETS
Financial azsets
Cash and cash equivalents 3,878.47 3,878.47 2,337.76 2,537.706
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 5005 311141 3,161.44 200.76 4,075.48 4,276.24
Receivables 2938.33 - 29833 36.69 - 36.69
Loans 7,113.56 15,012.78 | 2212634 3,753.35 12,429.44 16,182.7%
Other financial assets 490.08 - 690.08 856.62 46.31 002,93
12,030.47 | 18,124.19 | 30,154.66 7,385.18 | 16,551.23 | 23,936.41
Non Financial assets
Current rax assets (net) 996.78 996.78 - 821.87 821.87
Deferred tax assets {net) - 1,123.55 1,123.55 = 1,218.65 1,218.65
Property, plant and equipment 68.55 230.57 209.12 118.71 23253 351.24
QOther intangible assets - 4.70 470 - 5.88 5.88
Other non Enancial assets 340.04 - 340.04 273.96 - 273.96
408,59 2,355.60 2,764.19 392.67 2,278.93 2,671.60
TOTAL ASSETS 12,439.06 | 20,479.79 32,918.85 7,7177.85 18,830.16 26,608.01
’E\BleEs
Financial Liabilities
Payables
Trade Payables
total outstanding dues of MSMEs 1042 10.42 10.42 - 10.42
total outstanding dues of creditors other than M3MEs 279.61 279.61 235.67 - 235.67
Debt securities 553.09 553.09 55038 - 55038
Borrowings (other than debt securities) 6,033.60 | 1036779 | 16,401.48 2,980.86 7,841.21 | 10,822.07
Orther Gnancial liabilities 271.49 - 271.4% 228.62 - 228.62
7,148.30 | 10,367.79 17,516.09 4,005.95 7,841.21 11,847.16
WNon Financial Liabilities
Provigions 6.55 1,521.02 1,527.57 79.36 1,403.31 1,482.67
Oither non financial liabilities 107.67 - 107.67 108.76 - 108.76
114.22 1,521.02 1,635.24 188.12 1,403.31 1,591.43
TOTAL Liabilities 726252 | 11,888.81 | 19,151.33 4,194.08 9,244.51 | 13,438.59
Net 5,176.54 8,500.98 | 13,767.52 3.583.77 9,585.65 | 13,169.42
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Note 43 Corporate Social Responeibilicy

verage net prodir for the immedarely preceding three
Jugh the year on these activites, which are speaificd

As per Swcnon 133 of the Campaies Acy, 2013, 1 company, meeting the applicabiliny thresheld, needs ro spend ar-least 250 of
financial vears on corporate social rexponsibility (CSR) acdviries. e funds were pnmanky allscated 1o 2 corpus and volixed
Schudnle VI At the £ ampanies See NAA

Company hias spent {3 expense through implesicnition agency (5. Amar Singh ducanomal Chacivalie Trost For Plomoiing educanen, mchudog speaal ed yment
enhancing voranon skills espeently among children, women, eldery and the differendly abled and livelibood enhaneerment peojects. The said agency & aot 2 related party for the company.

trom kel e

1 Gross amownt required o be spunt by the company during the year i ™l and previeus year amranting to Tz 741 [aes
b. Amount spent duting the year on:

For the perind ended March 31, 2023 For the period coded March 31, 2022
[Farucutany ___ Paia I Vet 1o be paid T Bid Vs 10 e oaidl Toml
I Constructien facgursition of an aeset - - =l .
|2.On pumese other than {1} above - = 741 I 741

Ne 43A: Segment Reponing

The Cempany opetares 10 3 single repormble segment 1. financing activity, which has similar rigks and retutns for the purpose of Ind AS 108 "Operting segmenis” and is consdered 1o
be the only ble busi The Company derives its major revenues from financing actvities and its custoiers are widespread. Further, The Company is operating in India

L3 o

which 15 considered as a single geographical segment.

Mate 43B: Princpal Pusinesa Criveria (PBC)
At on March 3, 2023, the Company which is regstered Non-Banking Financial Company (NBFC) with Reserve Dank of [ndia (RBI), post-metger of Taraashna Foancial Services
Limited (TFSL) with the Company, does not fulfit he principal business criteria laid down by RD1. As per the said criteda, Company should have at least S0P% of toral asset a8 financial
asset and should dexive more than S0% of toral incame Erom the non-banking financial activities asser. The Company meets the ficst eriteria of asset however it does not meet the second
criteria of income. Considermg merger of TFSLwith the Company, RBI has allowed time i Mar'2024 ro Fubfil the said eriteria a5 per krter issued by RBT daced July 22, 2022",

Note 43C: Business combinations

Satin Finsery Limited (The Company) had entered into 2 scheme of amalgamation for the mciges of Tarsashna Financiot Seevices Limited (TFSLY) with the Company. “The appomnted
date af Scheme ks Apeil 01, 2021, Further, during the year, s the cloding conditieons fot the said mesger were fulfilled, the sad treneaction was consummated. The difference of Ra. 725.23
lir between the purchise considemtion and fair value of nee asers sy reeogosed a3 Amalgamation reserve, @ component of equiry, The Company s dssued its shares 1o the
shareholders of TFSL, in considerston for smalgamanan in peoportion of 237 (T'wo Hundred Thirty Seven) Equity Shares of Face Vahie of Rs. 10 cach in The Comipany: for every 100
[One Hundred) Equity shares of face value of Rs. 10/~ each held by them. TFSL was involved in Busmess Correspondent services includes Identification of Borriwers, collecnan and
prelminary processing of loan applicadons includiag venficaen of primary infarmation, processing and subbission of applications 1 banke, prooting, surtunng andl momeang of
Self Help Groups/Joint Linhility Groups, pest-sancnon monionng, follew-ap for recovery, dishrirrsal of srmall value creditand vecovery of prncpal/callection of mterest.

"The fair vahaes of the assers and liabilites recognised at the date of meeger are as follows:

Ausern A (Re. in lach

Property. plant and £qui 23842

Cazh and cash | L4189

Bank balances other than shove 4.856.60

Orhers 241410
Liabilivies

Borrowings 266459

“Trade payables 325.48

Others B 1,634.23

Net assets acquired 4,526.71

Equity Shares 3,801.49

Armial 10N reserve 72523

Mate 44; Additional discl an required by the R Bank of India

G Capital 1o Riek Assets Ratio (CRAR)

Particylare As at As at
March 3, 2023 | March 31, 2022
CRAR (%3} 46.63 54.50
CRAR - Tier 1 Capital (%) 4645 54.19
CRAR. - Tier 1L Capiel (%) 019 03
Liquidity Coverage Ratio 1079% 1031%

Ameunt of subordinated debt raised as Tier-IT capiral = =
Amount tused by issue of Perpetual Debt Instruments = =

i
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2023 | March 31, 2022
Value of T
Cirons Value of [nvestments
(3} Tn [ndia
(b Ourside Incin,
Provisions for Deprecianon
fay In India
1)} Outide Indi,
Net Value of Tovesmaents
(a) In India
[5) Chumside Tndia,
M af provisions held i on invesoments
0] _‘-i l‘.A & Opening baknce
) \a;t‘/"..- \ Add : Provisions made ducing the year
) _;_:b . Lets : Weite-off / write-back of excess provisions during the year
v} fL frey A & Clasing bakance
i

DELHI

E]
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Notea ro the financial stnrements for the pedod ewded March 3, 2023

(Al amounts in T in lakhs, unless + mted otherwisc)

iy Derivativ

et

s has no ransactions/exposure in denvatives 0 the current period and previous penad

(iv) Details of asaignment tranazciions undertaken:-
The Company has no ansaciions/exposuce i AssigRMEnt rangacrions i he current peaod and prevous penod
{v} Details of finandil suaci sold to Scouriioation / R jon Company for anset
The Company has not spld financal Wt
ing f jal ganetn purchased / sobd:-

(i) Detsils of non-performing
The Company has not purchased/sold non-performing financial asset in

the current period and previous period.
(vii) Expoaure 1o real cstale sectar

The Company has 0 cxpaiis 10 real esmie sector Juring the cucrent pesiod and previous period.

(viii) Expoaure to capital marker:-
The Company hras no exposurt to capizl rmratket during the current period and previous period.




SATIN FINSERY LIMITED

Notes to the fnancial statements for the period ended March 31, 2023

(AN armoanes in ¥ in kikhs, unkess smted ovherose)

(i} Disch tating to i

The Company has enteced into ag for the securizatian of loans with assimees, wherein it hae sgmumneed 2 part of s loans portiulio srmounting 1o TNR 503
Iakhs duting the year ended March 31, 2023, being the pringipal valuz outsiandmg 15 on the date of the de ali that are odlstinding. The Conping 3 £
cobbeeton wid gerig servicing of this loan portfalio on behalf of {nvestors fhuyees. Tn terms of the siid securiteation apreements, the Company pays 1o mvedtor, buyess
on agreed date basis the promt collection amount i per individual agreement werms.

te £

[Fot the period | For the period
Particulisr ended March 31, |ended March 31,
2023 2022

mgnated by the onemitor i
£03.13)
comply with MR 2s on the date of halancs shedt 140.55

1. N of SPEs holding sisets fur securinzation teamnsic

2. Tatal amount of securit

. Tor amount of exposurcs tonaiel by i <
a) O Halance sheet exposures

* First luss B s

| *Others

By On Balasee sheet expoduros -
* Firat lose 140.53
* Others ] -
4 Amount of cxposurzs b socuritzation other than MR -
a) OIF Balance sheet expoures - E
1) Exposure to own securitizationd
* First loss | -
* Others - -
1) Exposure to third perty seruntizations
* First loss | -
* Othens E -
b} On Balence sheet expoaures =
1} Exposure b own securitizations - -
* First loss -
* Others
W) Exposure ta third party securitizations . -
* Figst loss | -
* Uthers -
3 Ealo coneidemnion recereed for the renunted assets and fand o on sile 6n 3ccount of secutilization T2
& Form and quanmm (owsmnding value) of services provided by way of, liquidity support, post-secutitization asser servicing, ©

7 Performance of facility provided. Please provide separately for each fiality vie Credit enhancement, liquidity suppert,
servicing ogent ewe. Mention peregnt in hracker as of total value of facility provided .
{a) Amaount paid ] -
(1) Repayment recoived - -
(c) Crastunching amount 800.73) 3

2 Average default cate of portiolion observed in the past. Please provide breukup -

separately for each gsget class i.e. RMBS, Vehicle Loans ¢te .
W Amennt and number of additanal/top up loan gven on same underlying asset.
Please provide breakup scparmtely for cach asser class .o, RMES, Vehicle Loans s . =
10 Tnvestor complunis (1) Directly/ Indirectly recewved andy (h) Compiaints
vutseinding -

(x) Informetion ou instances of frand:-

Nawre of frand (cash cmbezzl by ¢miployee} * For the year ¢ended | For the year ended
|March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Mumber of Cases 7 1
Amiunt of Fraud 13914 .22
Recovery 35.60 -
Amount writien off 103.55 0.22
© Amount reporied abave foe the current year is pursuant to merger of Taraashna Financils Sepyices Limired with Satin Firsery limited. These amount are refated to
previous financial years.
MNuture of frand (Borrower) For the year ended | For the year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Number of Cases 1 -
Amsunt of Fraud 175.12 -
Recovery . =
Amount wertten off 13542 -

{xi) Detaile of single borcower limit exceeded by spplicable NBFC:-
The Company does not hive single borrower exceeding the limirs during the current period and previous period.
(i) Details of & ing of paresu Companmy prod
The Company does not have such transaction during the current peried and previous penod.
(xiiiy Registration obualned from other financial gector regulators:-
The Company i< registered with the 'Minisry of Corporate Affairs’ {Financial regubitors as deseribed by Ministry of Finance).
{xiv) Diach of Penalties imposed by RBI & gher regulators:-
o penalties imposed by RB) and other regulitors during rhe current period and previous pericd.

(xv) Con ion of Advances, Exposures and NPAe
Particulars Ao s Mareh 31,2008 | A0 ;"ﬁ“" 3
C fon of Ad
Tonul advances to twenty largest bomowers 6.381.72] 7,255.80
(%) of athvances to wenty lagest borrowers to ttal advances 28.84% 56.42%)
Ci {on of Exp
Toral exposure to twenty largest borrowens 6361.72 7.255.80!
(%) of exposure to twenty liest boreowets e total expusure 20.84%| 56.42%
C ion of NPAs
“Toral exposure to top four NPA accounts .53 3893
(%) of exposure o wop four NPA accounts D"It‘.%l 00, 30%%|




SATIN FINSERV LIMITED
Notes to the fnancial statements for the petiod ended March 31, 2023
(Al amounts in € in lakbs, unless stated otherwisc}

(eviy Movement of NPAs:-

For the year Fot the year
Particulars ended March 3%, |ended March
2021
1) Net NPAs to net advance (%) 3.3
i) Movernent of NPAs {Gross)
a) ¢ Jpemng balance /0% ) 223353
b} Addition during the year (11972 126716
<) Reduction/ write off during the vear {264.33) (30.30
d) Closing balance 1044462 899,99
iil) Movement of NPAs (Net)
1y Openng balance 237 M 114 61
b) Addition during the year 236,73 42248
¢) Reduction/ write off during the year (264.35) 0.15
dy Closing balance 309.42 537.24
iv Moverent of provisions for MNPhs (excluding provisions
o seanclard assets)
4) Opening halance A6LTS 108.52
k) Addition durmg the year 245.88 30428
¢ Reduction/ write off during the year (200.75) (30.44)
d) Closing balance 406.88 36275
{xvif) Unsecured advances - refer note 7 of Balance Sheet MNotes
¢xviiiy Provisions & contingencies (shown under Expenses head in statement of profit & loss)
For the year For the year
Particulars ended March 31, |ended March
2023 31,2022
Provision for, {ard and non performing assets 21.25) MM
Provision [or gratuity 59.87 9.57
Provisin for compensition absences 120,251 (3.81)

{xx) Un-hedged foreign currency

‘The Company does not have any foreign currency wransaction during the current and previous pediod.

(o) Intra-group exposures:-
For the year For the year  |For the For the year
ended March 31, |ended March |year ended ended
Particolars 2023 (Customer) |3, 2022 March 31, |March 31,
{Customer) 2023 2022
(Borrower) |(Borrower)
) “Total amount of ME-EIONP LXpOFULes 30.88 2307 4,000.00 4.000.00
1) Total amount of top 20 mum-grou exporures 39.88 93.07 4,000.00 4,000.00
) Percentage of intm-group exposures (o 1oveal exposure of 0.18% 0.56% 23 59% 35.17%
Disclosure of stress asaets a5 required under notification issued by RBI dated August 06, 2020, RBI J2020-21/16 DOR.No.BP.BC/3/21.04.048/2020-21
o) with notification fsswed by RBI dated and May 05, 2021, RBI/2021-22/31 DOR.STR.REC, 11/21.04.048/2021-22 (INR i Lakhs)
K
Type of ) (B) © (1] &)
borrower  |Exposure Lo accounts Of (A), aggregate debt Of (A) amount Of (A) paid ¥ 10
classified as Standard that stipped into NPA written off during by the borrowers accounta classified
consequent o during the hall-year the hali-year during the hali-year as Standard
implernentation of consequent oo
resolution plan - Position implementation of
as at the end of the resolution plan
previous half-year (A) —Position a9 at the
end of this half-year
Personal ] s
Lorans
Corporate 30010 2 320 268,01
peTsOns
Of which, ] E - z
MIMEs
Dihers -
it 1229 - 117.4 !
MSME 214 8 75298
Total 1,142.85 221 - 149.51 1,021.05

*4s defined in Section 3(7) of the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2014.
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SATIN FINSERY LIMITED

Mores o the financial statements for the period ended March 31, 2023
{All amounts in T in lakhs, unless stated otherwise)

{xxiv) Breaches in terms of covenanes in cespect of loans availed by the WBFC or debt securities iscued by the NBFC including incidence/s of defani.:-
There is no breach in teoms of covenants in respec) of loans availed or debit seeurities issued by the Company including incidence /s of default

(xxv) Divergence in assed classification and provisioning above a1 cenain threshold to be decided by the Reserve Bank:-
1 here 15 no doverpence i asset chssification and provisioning 10 be reponed as pee RBL guidelines

{meovi} Scators! Exposure

For the year ended March 31, 2023 Far the vear ended March 31, 2022
Total Tonal
Exposure Percepiage | Exposore Percentage
(includes of Gross (includes of Gross
Sectors o1 balince Cross MPAzic | onbalones Geogs DT
sheet and NPAs 1014l sheet and NPAs al
off-balance exposurein | off-balance exposure in
shect thar gecror sheet that sector
SAPOSUrE) exposure)
Asriculture and allied activid 2.807.57 350.42 1248%|  3,660.22 152.48 4.16%
MSME 3.320.75 4.0 10.64% 4,636.54 366.85 T.91%
Services 10.564.13 33534 3.06% 2,181 87 145.54 667%
Corporate borrosvers 5,434.30 0.0 6.200.86 23512 3T79%
Others 17728 4.44 267% 49.73 0.00%
Total 22,703.02 1,044.62 4.60%|  16,738.22 899.99 5.38%
(xanviiy C compl -
For the year  |For the year
Parviculars ended March  (ended March
34, 2023 31, 2022
) Number of complaints pending at the b 2 of the pear - -
b} Number of complai d during the year - -
¢} Number of ¢ laints disposed during the vear 5 B
d) Of which, mumber of ¢ laints eepected by the ¢
dj Number of ¢ Jal ding at the end of the yoar - -
Top five g ds of ypl. i by the C y [rom
Grounds of complalms. % increase/
(i.e: complai £ 1) [Number of complaints|Number of  [decrease in the [Numberof |21
b " 1o |number of
pending a the ¥ of p complaints
beginning of ived plai |pending at whe| P2
. h pending
the year duoring the received over  |end of the b
eyond 3
year the previous  |year
days
year
1 2 3 4 5 6
For the vear ended March 31, 2023
Complant/enquines wat
terms of loan agreement - 3 -38% - -
For the year ended March M, 2022
Complaint/eagquisies w.r.t
terms of loan A -20% -
xxviil) Composition of the Board:-
Capacity Mumiber of Board R
(e Ne. of
Executive/ other Salary No. of shares
Name of Director | onExecutive/ Director |0 C bedd in and
§. No, . : Chairman/ shi Sitting b converdble
Diirector since DIN Held Artended P other isgion i
Promoter o Fee ingLruments
inee/ ;"P‘“ held in the
Independe satdon (Rs.) Company
nth
Me.
Harviader Fal Non-executive Director |(0333754 NA
1 |Singh 10/08/2018 5 5 9 -
Mr. Sumit Whole-time Direcior &
2 |Mukhegee 20/02/2019|CED 08302056 5 5 NA 105 .60 o NA
7. N A
3 K Kal 10/08/2018 Independent Direcror  |07361739 5 5 2 | 050
z”w::"{'ﬂfg Indepeadent Director  |00840544 NA
4 ' 10/08/2018 5 5 2 - 050
53 Jyou .
5 | Abluwalia 3070372021 Independent Drirectoe | 00112407 5 5 1 050 i NA

There 12 7o change in composivon of the Poard duning the curpent and previous financial yeas

-\ UW,GRA i
.

O/




SATIN FINSERY LIMITED
Notes to the financial seatements for the period ended March 31, 2023
(Al amounts in T in lakhs, unbess stated otherwise)

(xxiz) Committees of the Board and their composition:-
a} The namer of the Comumunees of the Bozed are:

i Audit Corarmatiee

[ Nominaton and Remuncragon Committer
s Agser Labilig Mansgenion: Commiiice

v Risk Management Comomtice

¥ IT Startegy Commiteec

) The composition of the Audit comunittees are mentioned belowr

Capaciry Mumhber of Meetinga of the
Member of |(i-e. B ive/ NonE ive/ o .
g Ng| Nane ol | Comonivee |Chaimnian Pronoicd soaiiled,” . vl slkarss
| Director since Independent) held in the Company
Held Anended
Mr. Sundeep |January 31,
Kumar Mehtz| 2019 Indspendent + 4
1 MNaA
Mr. 3
Harvinder Pal i;;;m ! Non-Executive 4 4
2 |Sngh MA
Mr. Anil January 31,
I den
5 |KumarKain [2019 ndependent 4 4 NA
i) The compasition of the Nominatian and R i00 commitees are mentioned below:
5. No Name of | Commitiee |Capacity Number of Mectings of the Mo. of shares
1 Direcior since {i.e. Executive/ NonExecurive/ Held Artended held in the Cornpany
Me. Sundeep | January 31,
U Kumar Mehe| 2010 ladependant 2 2
A
Mr. 3t
2 |Marvindee Fal JZO‘]'J ¥ 3k Non-Executive 2 a2
Smgh NA
Mr. Andl famuary 31,
? | Kumar Kala |2019 Independent 2 2 NA
i} The compositon of the Asset Labiity Management commiltees are meationed below:
$. No. Name of | Committee |Capaciny MNumber of Meetings of the No. of shares
"1 Dhrecror since  |(i.e. Execusive/ NonExecutive/ Held Auended held in the Company
Mz Swmi Febmary 22, .
E
U |Makberee  |2010 Hecuive 2 2 Na
M.
2 {Harvindee Pal[F 0025 21 Noa Estcutive 2 2
: 2009
Smgh NA
Mr. Arun August 03,2 wef Fi al
3 Pansal on Chicf Financial Qfficer 2 2 NA
1} The compositon of the Risk Mang: < i arc joncd below:
5 No| Name of | Commitee |Capacity Number of Mectngs of the Mo. of shares
T Director since {ie. Execntive/ NonExecutive/ Held Attended held in the Company
Mr. Sundeep |January 31,
U Kumar Mehu| 2019 ndependent 2 2
NA
e M
2 |Harvinder Pal J;T;m * Mon-Executive 2 2
Singh NA
Me. Anil January 31,
® | Kumar Kalsa 2019 fndependent 2 2 NA
Mr. Sumit | August 03, .
N Ex
4 Mukhegee | 2021 seutre 2 2 Na
s Mr. Saunbh |Augusi 03, 1 1
Lall* 2021 Head- Credit ¢ Risk NA
6 Mr. Surojit  [October 21, 1 3
Chateree®™  |2022 Head- Credit & Ruk NA
“Mr. Sorobh Lalf renigred from bis positien ar Flead - Crolt & Risk wef Sepeember 30, 2032 and conseqnently frome the mesmlerslhits of Rick Manag Coommitt:

** Bink Mamap Ch war ivwied by Board of Directors in their merting held on October 21, 2022,




SATIN FINSERY LIMITED
MNotes 1o the financial sratemente for the period ended March M, 2023
{All amounts in T in lakhs, unless atated otheroise)

¥} The composition of the IT Straegy commntees are mentioned below:

$. No MName of | Comminee |[Capacity Number of Mectings of the Mo. of ghares
) Director aince (i-¢. Extcutive/ NonExecudve/ Held Attended held in the Ci y
Me. Sundeep N
1 Kumat Mehts hay 42, 2019 Independent 2 2 NA
2 ,\':r j“".m May 02, 2019 Lsecuave 2 2 inA
Mr. Arun Auguast (3, . - WA
3 Bansal 2001 Chief Financal Officer 2 2 E
Mr.Sundl  |August03,
4 Vadav [ 2021 Head - IT {SCNL} 2 2 NA
(vi) General Body Meetings:-
5. No. Type of Mecting (A )/ Extra-Ondinary) Date and Place Special resolutions passed
1 Anral General Meeting May 02, 2022- Gurugram, 1
Haryana




SATIN FINSERYV LIMITED
MNertes (o (he financial staternenia for the peried ended March 31, 2023
AN amounis in B in lakhs, unless stand otherwise)

45 The Board of Dircetars of Taraashna Financial $orviees Limited (*TFSL/merged endy) and Sadn Finsery Limiced ("$FL™), in their respective meetings held on Auguse 03, 2021, have considered and approved
the Scherme of Amangement for Amalgamaton of TFSL (" Transferor Company™ with SFL " Transferes Company”) and their respecdve sharchekders and eredinors {Scheme’y under Sections 230 ro 232 of the
Comipanies ice, 2013 {“Act”) and uther spplicable provisions uf the At and rules made diercuader. Consequeatly, the ficst motion applicaion has been filed before Hon'lle NCLT, Chandigath Beach after

el iepen pogesing MO Frogm thers frrigdtesre oF ek compy ~and peree Pnmaeat nechantes The sand Fircr et annhesion < eoservad and allowd b the <] Bonble SHCLT oncbeanng daned April

06, 2022. The both companics has filed joint second moton application with Hon'ble NCLT on May 25, 2022 which is admitred by Hun'ble NCLT inits hr::mng dated Julﬁ 08, 2022 and issued necessary Jirecdo

of serving notces and 3 Acconlingly, i both panies bas served Ui nouees o goterment authorites and completed publi in e papers as perorder, The Hon'ble

NCLT i des hearing dated fanuary 31, 2023 has approved the Scheme of Armngemunc for Amalgamarion of TRSL and SFL. Afer reguisite filing with concsred ROC, the sabd Stheme got eifective from March
01, 2023, The Apprinted Date of Scheme 1s Apnl 01, 2021, By the effect of Appointed Date (e, Apal 01, 2021), the financial numbers of Sadn Finsery Limited for the financial year ended March 3, 2022 are
also restated due 10 amalgamation of Taraashna Financial Services Limited with Sadn Finsers Limial™

46 There is no cases of jong with the ¢ struck off under secuion 24B of Companies Act, 2013 or section 560 of Companies Ace, 1956

47 Trade Receivables ngeing schedule

Pardeulazs Dursranding for lollowing peciode from due date of p
Mot due Less than 6 mon|6 months - 1 year  |[-2 years 2- vears More than 3 vears | Tacal
7} Undisputed Trade receivables — considered good - 28516 £.74 297 1.27 0.19 | 298233
{ii) Undisputed Teade Receivables — which have significant increase in
credit risk
(i) Undiag { Trade Receivables — credit i ired
(v} Dispured Teade Receivables— considered eood

(¥} Disputed Trade Recelvables — which have signlficant increase in eredi
risk
fvil Disputed Trade Receivables — eredit impaired |

‘Trade Receivables ageing schedule

Particuk ] ot Fall rieds rom due date of paymene

Mot due Leos than 6 mon|6¢ menthe -1 vear  |1-2 years 2-3 vears Mare than 3 veara |Tacal

@ Undispured Trade receivables — considered eood - 2609 462 320 084 195 3660
i) Undisputed Trade Reccivables — which have significant inceease in
feredlr risk
[ Undisputed Trade Receivables - cmd:t impaived
tiv) Dispured Trade Recevables- ¢ 1 eood
(v) Disputed Trade Receivables ~ which have significane incrsase in eredi
risk

fvi) Disputed Trade Receivables - credit impaited |

474 Unbilled revenue ageing schedule

Particular Dutstanding for following periods lrom due date of payment
Mot due | Lesn than 6 mon|6 months - T year  |[1-2 vears |2-3 yeara |More than 3 vearm | Tatal

(i) Undisputed Unbilled revenue = considered good 063 | . i | — -1 B 370.63
Unbilled revenue ageing schedul,

: O ding for following periods from due dace of payment

Particulars ceods from due dace ok payment
Mot due [Lens thun 6 mon6 b -1 year |12 vears |2-3 years |Moze than 3 yeaes |Towal
@ Uindispured Uinbilled revenue - idered pood T21.64 | - - -1 - | . T21.64

48 Addidonal inl ¢ ta Mini: of Corp Allairs i jon dated March 24, 2021 with respect to d in Schedule T of Companies Act, 2013
(i) Thete are ne proceedings whnh have been injtated or pending against the company For holding any benami propeery undee the Benami Transacdons (Prohibidon) Act, 1988 (45 of 1984} and rules ma

therevnder.
(1} The company is not 2 wilful defauliee as declared by any bank or financial Inscicudon or any ather lendes.
(i} There are po charges or ion yer to be regl 1 with Registrar of Companics (ROC) beyond the stantory padiod
(iv) The company bas complied with the nurmber of lapers prescabed under dlause (B7) of secdon 2 of the Act read with Companics (Restiction on number of Layers) Rules, 2017

() There ate no Tansactons which are not recorded in the boolss of accounts that has boen surreadeted or disclased as fncome during the pear in the rax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961
(such a5, starch or survey ot any othet relevant provisions of the Income Tax Acy, 1961).

ieks

{vil The Company has not traded or invested in Crypro eurmency oc Vimual Cuerency during the year.
i Diuring the prar, no funds {which are material cither individually or in the aggregate) have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from bomowed funds or share premium or any cther sourses or kind of
funds) by the Company to of in any other person or emity, including Foceipn endty (1 Jiaries™), with the und. ding, whether recorded in wiiting or stherwise, that che § diacy shall, wherher, dites
or indirertly lend or Invest In qther persons or entities identfled Io any manoer whatsoever by or on bebalf of the Company (“Uldmate Benefliciaries™) or provide any guarantee, security oc the like on behalf of th
Uldmate Beneficiaries.

(i)

Dunng the year, 7o funds (whldl are materal either individually or in the aggregate) have been received by the Company from any peeson or enury, including foreign endry {*Funding Parties™}), with th
dirg, whether fed in writing ot otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, direcdy or indirecdy, Jend ot invest in ather persons pr entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on
beehalf of the Fundlng Party {"UNamate Benefciades™) or provide any guamru: security or the like on behalf of the Ulamate Beneficiaties.
49 Previous year Figures have been re-grouped, re-classified wheraver necessacy to make ik comparable with the figucs presendsd for the year ended 315t March 2023,

The sccompanying notss are an ntegral part of the financial surements,
As per oue ceview report of even dace amached

For Rajeev Bhatia & Associates
Chartered Acconntanta For and on behalfl of the Board of Dicectors of
Firm's RegistratiofiNo.: 021776N Satin Fiosery Limited
L3
Lot dottsy e~ e
Sumit Mukherj Harvinder Pal Singh
DIN: 08369056 DN 00533754
WTD & CEO Dir,
c Gurugrnm
jun :ln!:z]
Chief Financial Officer Mem Mo: 43608
Company Seceetary
Place: Guragram Place: Gurugram

Drate: April, 22 2023 Date: April, 22 2023



Annexure |l

BOARLY'S REPORT

Dear Members,

Your Board of drectors takes pleasure In presentng the 5 Board's Report of Satin Finserv Limited ("5FL"
or "Company”]; along with the Annual Audited Financial Statements for the financial year ended March 31,
2023 [period under the review].

e b = A A

SPL k= a Non-Deposit Glkdng Systematically Important Mon- Banking Finance Company {belng & subsidizry
of Systematically [mportant Non-Banking Finance Comipany]) holding certficate of Registration (N-
14.02451) from the Reserve Bank of India ("RBI") dated Janusry 09, 2019, 5FL is wholly owned subsidiary
of Satin Creditcare Metwork Limited. The Company 1= engaged in the business to provide finance i.e. short
term or long term to micro, small and medium scale enterprises, to Individuats and corporate keans, 5FL s
also engzged in business of Business Correspondent on behalf of vartous banks,/financial institutions, The
Company has operational website e wawwsatnfinsery.com

The Board of Directors in thelr meeting held on Augast 03, 2021 has approved the Scheme for
Amalgamation of Taraashna Financlal Senvices Limited {Transferor Company] with 5atin Finsery Limitad
[Transferee Company/Company) and their shareholders and craditors. The Hon'ble NCLT vide ite order
dated Janwary 31, 2023 has approved the Schems of Arrangsment for Amalgamaton of Transferor
Company with the Company. The Company has filed requisite forms with concermed ROC and the said
Scheime is effective whith effect feom March 01, 2023, having Appointed Date &prid 01, 2021.

The Financial Highlights! of your Company are as follows:

 Revenue from Operations 10,548.21 938711
Other Income 10247 32355
| Total revenue 10,650,569 2,710.66
Expenses
Emplover Benefit expenses 533477 SEBREGE
[mip=iirmeant on Anancial struments 37R.05 414594
| Finance cost 184557 125060
Depreciation and amortization expenses 174.89 20499
| Other expenses 2,092.01 4850.99
| Total expenses 9,829.29 12,408.22
| Profit before Tax BZ1.40 [2,697.56)
Eamings per share i —!
Bisic .43 [1.43}

The Company offers small tcket business loans against collateral of property and is also engaged in the
business of Business Correspondent on behalf of various banks/financial institutions. As on March 11,
2023, 5FL had 2,6%023 loans and 178 branches across 10 states, The Company plans to continue its growth
prurney by opening more branches and further Investing in technalegy to optimize sperating costs and
imprave coltectlon efficlency,

During the vear undér reviaw, the Company has reported proficbefore tax of Re 821,440 Lakhs as compared
i logs before ta of Ra. (2,697.56) Lakhs in the previous yaar,

1 Fnancial Hightights inchsdes the effect of amalgamathon of Taraashna Financial Services Limited with the
Company.




During the period under review, your Company has disbursed Rs. 12,742.20 Lakhs in SME Buziness and
Re. 25.369.11 Lakhs in JLG Business during the linancial year ended March 31, 2023, The Company has
AUM of B& 22 857.32 Lakhs on book [SME Busineaa) and INR 45.602.00 Lakhs ofl book [JLG Business) as
on March 31, 2023,

The Board of Directors of Tarasshna Financial Services Limited ["TFSL"/"meriged entity”/ “Transferor
Company”] and Satin Finsery Limited ["SFL"/"Transferee Company”), s their respective meetings held on
Augnst 03, 2021, had considered and approved the Scheme of Arrangement for Amalgamatbon of TFSL with
SFL and their respective shareholders and ereditors [Scheme’] under Sections 230 to 232 of the
Companies Act, 2013 ["Act"] and other applicable provisions of the Act and rules made thereunder.
Further, after obtaining requisite NOCs from sharebolders/creditors of both companies, a joint First
Motion Application was filed before Hon'ble NCLT, Chandigarh Bench, The said First Motion Applecation
was then allowed by the Hon'ble NCLT vide its order dated May 17, 2022, Consequently, hath the
companies duly filed a joint Second Motion Pefiion bafore Hanble NCLT, on May 25, Z022 seeking
pecessary directions to serve notlces w the repulatory authorities and o cause nEwSpapers pubdications
for intimating the final date of hearing. The compantes duly completed the process s prescribed umder the
provisions of Section 230:232 of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made thereunder. Accordingly, the
Hon'hie NCLT, vide its order dated January 31, 2023 approved the safd Scheme of Arrangement for
Amalgamation and after requisite filing with corcerned ROC, the said Schema got effective fram March 01,
2023, The Appainted Date of Scheme s April 0L, 2021, Due to said merger, there are impact on cverall
position of the Company, including financial nurabarg, branches, loans, borrowing details etc,

TR T R
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Particulars Year ended March 31, 2023 | Year ended March 31,
2022
Number of Branches 178 167
Number of Active Borrowers 2649023 354204
Gross Loan Portfollo (in Lakhs) 22.557.32 16,633.08
Number of Employees 1,612 1818
Total Disbursement (in Lakhs) - on 12.742.20 356150
book [SME Business)
Total Dishursement [in Lakhs) - off 25369.11 57.735.51
book [JLG Bosiness)
I_rﬂn. of States (in Dperation) | 10 10 |

Due to post pandemic effect, as at March 2023, SFL'S gross non-performing asset [GHNPA) stands ag £14%
(FY22: 4:90%) and net non-performing asset [NMPA} s 222% (FYE: 2.72%).

T i T P e b a1

The Company is required to create a stafutory reserve under Section A5LC of RBI Act, 1934 and transfer
therein a sum not bkess than twenty per cent of its net profit every year as disclosed in the statement of
profit and loss and before any dividend is declared. In view of the same duritg FY 22-23 an amount of Rs
164,28 Lakhs has boen transferved to such reserve,

ﬁ- Iilli_; _.... ..- .d__:_. :- =. : - .l.:"*:"_F'I-_-‘_ .-_ e o —
Hesping in mind, the future business expansion and consequent noed to maintain the fund requirements
for the same, the directors have decided not to recommend any dividend for the Financial vear 2022-23.

—— ==

Authorized Share Capttal

A on March 31, 2023, the Authorized Share Capital of your Company stood at s, 1,40,51,49,000, -
(Rupees One Hundred Forty Crores Fifty One Lakhs and Forty Nine Thewsand] divided nto-14.05,14,300




[Faurteen Crores Five Lakhs Fourteen Thousand Nine Hundred) Equity Shares of Rs.10/- [Rupees Ten)
aach.

The Authorised Share Capital as ¢n March 31, 2023 is having impact of Scheme of Arrangement for
Amalgamation of Taraashna Financial Services Limited with Satin Finserv Limited a3 approved by NCLT
Chandigarh Bench by order dated [anuary 31, 2023 which has appointed date & effective date are April 01,
2021 & March 01, 2023 regpectively,

Issued Share Copital

A5 om March 31, 2023, the 1ssusd Share Capital of the Company stood ak Bs. 1,40,51,48,590 (Rupees One
Hundred Forty Grores Fifty One Lakhs Forty Eight Thousand Five Hundred and Ninety] divided nto
14,05,14,954 {Fourteen Crores Five Lalhs Fourtean Thousand Eight Hundred and Fifty Nine) equity shares
of Rs. 10/ [Bupess Ten) each.

Thie [ssued -Share Capital a5 on March 31, 2023 is having impact of Scheme. of Amangament for
Amalgamation of Tarasshna Financial Services Limited with Satin Finserv Limited as approved by NCLT
Chandigarh Bench by order dated January 31, 2023 which has appointed date & effective date are April 01,
2021 & March 01, 2023 respectively.

As on March 31, 2023, the Pakl up Share Capital of the Company stood at B, 1,40,51,48,590 (Rupees Une
Hundred Forty Croves Fifty Dne Lakhs Forty Eight Thousand Five Hundred and Ninety) divided into
14,05,14 859 [Fourteen Crores Five Lakhs Fourteen Thousand Eight Hundred and Fifty Nine) equity shares
of B, 10/- {Rupess Ten) each,

The Paid-up Share Capital a3 on March 31, 2023, is having impact of Scheme of Arrangement for
Amalgamation of Taraashna Financial Services Limited with Satin Finserv Limited as approved by NCLT
Chandigark Bench by order dated fanuary 31, 2023 which has appointed date & effective date are April 81,
2021 & March ﬂl,_EEIE'EI respectively.

shares of the Company are in demat form,

During FY 2022:23, ﬂwﬁ}mpan}r miet its funding requirements through dehts from Financial Institutions
and Banlks. The details of borrowings availed or cutstanding as on March 31, 2023 are listed below:

. Xy ""’[T""-.f“'"“’ mﬂfu Outstanding Amount
Name of the lender L Ry as on Mar-23
S il Batas {n Rs. Lakhs)
Guarantee ete.) [In Rs, Lakhs) i
Mon-convertible
GFE Renic Limied Debentures 500,00 S00.00
CSB Bank Limited Dverdraft 0.00 020
MAS  Financial — Services
| Limited s oo L4444 2,150.00
Vivrit Capital Private Lintited Term Loan 19,65 1000
| Marthern Are Capital Limited Term Lo 903.74 512.38
Cagpian lmpact Investmients |
Pyt Lud Lt 386.89 1.803.14
Grow Maney Capital Pyt Led Term Loan 406,95 L044.BE
Maanaveeys Development &
Finance Py Ltd SRS BS7.20 933,64
Mabkisan Finance Ltd Term Loan 41667 250,00
Motafim Agricultural )
| Financing Agency Pyt Ltd Torm Loan 700.00 576,09
State Bank of India Term Loan 191667 140297




HDFC Bank Led Term Loan 1256 18.95 |
Satin Creditcare Metwork Led Term Loan 3550000 3,350,040
Blackssil capital Pyt Lid Term Loan - _L000.04 |
ESAF Small Finance Bank Term Loan - 1,0400.0H)
[CIC] Bank Limited Term Loan - 562.50 ¢
NIMBLS 2023 SBL WENGER PTC - 702.76
Tokal 11,166.81 16,807.49

The Company has been rvegelar In servicing all s debt obdigations and have not defaulted In any
rapayments,

The Company has nol accepted raceived any deposit during the vear undar review falling within the ambit
of Sectisn T3 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies [Acceptance of Deposits] Kules, 2014

Your Comipany is registered with the Reserve Bank of [ndia {RBT], as a Non-Deposit acoepting NBFC under
Secthon 45-14 of the RBI Act, 1934, Your Board of Directors herchy report that the Company has not
accepted any public deposits during the year under review and it continues to be a non-deposit taking non-
banking financial company in conformity with the guidelines of the REBL Therefore, no amount of principal
and interest was IH.!I‘EI:III[IIrIg dudng tha vear.

The Company is in compliance of the regulatory requirement of Net Owned Funds (NOF) as defined under
Section 45-14 of the RBI Act, 1934, to carry on the business of a NBFC.

The Company has complied and continues to comply with all the applicable regulations and guidelines
issued by RBI such as Capital Adequacy, et Owned Funds, provisioning for Non-Performing Assets and
for Standard Assets, Concentration of Credit and Investment, filings, etc. The Capital to Risk Assets Ratie
["CRAR"] of the Company s as follow a5 on March 31, 2023,

I As vn March 31, As pn March

i Particulars " 2023 | 31,2022

| CRAR (%) #6.63 54.50
CRAR - Ther | Caputal (%) 46.45 54,19 |
CRAR - Tier IF Capital {%) .19 .31
Amount of subordinated debt raised as Tier-1] caplical = -

| Amount raised by issue of Perpetual Debt Instroments = =

In line with the RBI guidetines for Assct Liability Management (ALM) system for NBFCs, the Company has
an Asset Liability Managoment Committes and Risk Management Committee which meets periedically to
review its ALM, credit and other risks, The Company is alse in compliance with applicable RAI
gubdelines /diractions including ¥BFC- Corporate Governance Norms and RRI Master Direction - Mon-
Banking Financial Company - Systemically [mportant Non-Deposit taking Company and Deposit taking
Company {Heserva Bank) Divections, 2016 and other guidellnes/ droulars /directlons as isswad by RBI from
timee fo timme

 STT ST SRR
i PRACTICE CODE

Your Company has adhered to Board approved Fair Practice Code in termis of applicabls RBI guidelines
The Board approved Fair Practice Code covers the required disclosures and nomms as reguired under
applicable RBI guidelines/directions, The Board periodically review the Fair Practice Code and its
functioning. The Board approved Fair Practice Code is disclosed on the website of the Company at
www.satinfinserv.com. Also, Fair Practice Code are being displayed at branches, remonal offices and
where hisiness s ransacted.

VORK FOR THE NBFC SECT M o s ||

Pursuant to BBl Master Directlon-lnfermation Technology Framework for the NBEFC sector, the Company
Bans constituted an IT Strategy Committes ta peview the 1T strategies in lne with its corporate sirategies,
cyber security arrangements and any other matter related tp IT governance. The IT Strategy Conumimee is
constituted with requisite compesition, terms of reference and meet regolary to discuss the reguirements
&5 specificd under BEL Guidelines. Also, the Company has Board spproved IT Policy along with requisite




controks in place which is reviewed by 1T Strasegy Committee and Board periedically. The Company is
commimed to comply with applicable lwes with regard to 1T and its system,

ARIAL STANDARDS T 3 = ES

The Company & compliant with the applicable Secretarial Standards {55) viz. $5-1 and 55-2 on Meetings of
the Board of Directors & Strutory Committee Meetings and General Meetings, respectively.

Your Company upholds the standards of governance and is compliant with the Corporate Govermance
provisions as stipulated by REL from time to time. The Company's core values of honesty and transparency
lsave since its inception been fallowed In every line of decision making. Setting the tone at the top, your
Board of Directors, sdvocates good governance standards. Your Company has been built on a strong
feundation of good corporate governance which is now a standard for all operations across your Company.

The Company also have Beard approved Internal Corporate Governance Pelicy a5 required under the
applicable [aws

There was no material changes and commitment or event recorded after the clase of financlal year March
31, 2023 till the date of signing of Board's Report.

However, during the financial year ended March 31, 2023, the Hon'ble NCLT, vide its arder dated |anuary
31, 2023 approved the said Scheme of Arrangement for Amalgamation and after requisice fling with
concerned ROC, the said Scheme pot effective from March 01, 2023, The Appointed Date of Scheme is April
01, 2021, The details of the same are given under "Amalgamation of Taraashna Financial Services Limited
with the Company” of the Repost,

'HANGE IM NATURE OF BUSINESS @

The Board of Directors and Shareholdets in their meetings held on April 27, 2022 and May 02, 2022
respectively has approved the Object Clause of Memorandum of Association of the Company to include the
business line of Business Correspondents an behalf of various banks/NBFCs. Therefore, your Company has
diversifisd into another sector of business, in additlon to business of NBFC, wherein your Company is
acting a< a Business Correspondent on behalf of varlous banks/financial institutions.

-

Since the Company is Non- Banking Financial Company, the disdlosures regarding particulars of the loans
glven, guarantees given and sécurity provided is exempt under the provisions of Section 186[11) of the
Companies Act, 2013, However, the details. are mentioned under the relevant head of Annual Audited
Financial Statements/ Balance Sheet

0L DIRG, SUBSIBIARIES, IQINT VENTURES AND A%S( =
Your Company is wholly-owned subsidiary of Satin Creditcare Metwork Limited. Your Company does not

have any subsidiary, joint venture and associate Company within the meaning of clause {8) Section 2 of the
Companies Act, 2013 at any time-during the year snded March 31, 2023,

Pursuant te the provisions of Sections 92(3) and 134(3)(a) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made
thereunder, the Annual Return, in o-form MGT-7 for the financial vear ended March 31, 2023, after all
formalitics will be upleaded on the website of the Company at wwwsatinfinserv.com,

ROCIATE COMPANIES

=

There was no Related Party Transactions (RPTs) enteresd by the Company during the pear under review,
pursuant to Section 168 of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made thereunder.




Further, Pursuant to Section 134(3)(h) read with other provisions of the Compantes Act, 2003 and rules
made thersunder (any madification, amendment thereander], form AOGC-2 i5 attached o as Anmexure - 1
o Board's Report.

Further, a statement on "Related Party Disclosures” showing the disclosure of transactions with related
parties ag required under Indian Accounting Standard 24 {Ind AS 24] read with the Companies (Indian
Accounting standards) Rules, 2015, are given in the Motes to the Armual Avdited Financial Statements.

ESSMENT PROCESS (ICAAP)

MTERNAL CAPITAL ADEQUACY ASSESS

Pursuant to the applicable BB puidelines, the Board of Directors in its meeting dated January 21,2023 has
approved the ICAAP Pollcy covering the relevant provisions frequirements as spedified under the
applicale laws.

The Committes of Board, from time to tine, review and assess the requirement and defiberate abowt TCAAP.

-"! M II] :_-||il.'.|'. 'E -1 . = [ s T -, . e

The Company strongly believes that sustalnable community development is essentlal for harmony
berwesn the community-and the induktry. Sustainability and social responsibility are an integral part of
the corporate sirategy of the Company. The Board oversess the mplementation of SR Policy of the
Company. However, during the year under review, the Company was not required to- maeke any
contribution towarde the CSH due to non-applécability of provisions of the Companbes Act, 2013 and rutes
made therewsder. However, the Hoard adopted C5H Policy e available at the website of the Company at

wwwsatinfinsary.oom.

Az on March 31,2023, the Bosrd of Directors comprises of 5 (Five] Directors, consisting 3 (Three)
[ndependent Directors, 1 [One] Ron-executive Tirector and 1 (One) Whole-time Director. The decils are
as follows:

| 5. No. | Name of Director(s) DM Category of Director[s)

L. | Mr, Harvinder Pal Singh_ 0333754 | Nop-executive Director

d M. Surit Mukherjee OE3ed054h Whole-time Director & CEQ

3. | Mr, Anil Kumar Kalra 07361739 [ndependent Director

4, M. Sundeesp Kumar Mehta BOH40ES4 [ndependent Director

5 M. fyoti Ahluwalia 09112407 Independent Director
During the year under review, there was no change in the composition of the Board of Directors of the
Company.

The composition of the Beard is in conformity with the Act and other applicable laws.

b Woman Director

As per the provisions of Section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company shall have at lexst one-
woman Director in the Board, Your Company has Ms, fyotl Ahluwalia, as Woman Director on the Board,

ey Managerial Personnel (KMPs)

Ason March 31, 2023, Mr. Sumit Mukheriee, Whole-time Divector, Mr. Arjun Bansal, Chief Financial Oficer
and Mr. Puneet Jolly, Company Secretary, zre Koy Managerial Personnel of the Company. Thers was no
change in KMPs during the financial year ended March 31, 2023,

d. Betire by Rotation




In secordanee with the provisions of the Act and the Artides of Association of the Company, Mr. Harvinder
Pal Singh (DIN: 00333754), Director of the Company is liable to retire by rotation and being eligible offers
himself for reappointment at ensuing Anneal General Mecting, Your Board of Directors recommends his
re-appointment a5 a Director of the Company.

The appaintmant of directors and KMP are as per recommendation of the Momination & Remameration
Commitree of the Company, Fit and Proper criteria of Company’s Pollcy and applicable BBl guidelines. as

The Board of Directors, along with the Committees of the Board, provides leadership and guidasce twothe
Company's Management and directs, supervises and controls the activities of the Company.

The Board met 5 (Five) tmas during the year under review. The meetings were held on Apeil 27, 2022, July
2%, 2022, October 21, 2022, [anuary 21, 2023 and March 30, 2023,

Attendance of Dirpctors whe attended Board Mestings held during the peried under review are as fallows:

TN e

Mr, Harvinder Pal Singh | Mon-pxecutive Director 5
Mr. Sumibt Mulkherjes Whale-time Director & CED 5
Mr. Sundeep  Kumar | Independent Tirector 5 5
Mehta

Mr. Andl Kumar Kalra Independent [Hrector 5 5
M. Jyoti Ahluwalia Independent Director 5 5

As ar year end, the Board of Directors of the Company has following Statutory Commitiees, as per
applicaksle laws:

1, Audit Committes

The Audit Committee constituted in terms of section 177 of the Companies Act, 20013 and in terms of
applicabde Master Directions and other RBI guidelings, The Committes comprises of 3 [Three) members
including 2 (Twa) Independent Directors,

The Audit Committee oversees the financial reporting process and reviews, with the Management, the
Goancial statements o ensure that the same are correct and credible, The Audit Committee has the
ultimate guthority and responsibility to select and evaluate the Independent Auditors in accordance with
the law, The Audit Committes also reviews performance of the Statutory Auditors, the [ntermal Auditors,
adeguacy of the intermal control system,

During the year under réview, the Audit Committee met 4 (Four) times on April 27 2022, |uly 29, 2022,
Oetober 21, 2022 and January 21, 2023, The composition and details of the attendance of the Directors at
the Audit Committes mestings are ghven haloa

Me. Sundeep Kumar Mehta | [ndependent Diractar %

[Chairpersan)
Mr. Harvinder Pal Singh Won-executive Director 4 4
Mr. Anil Eumar Kalra Independent Director 4 4

Z. Momination & Remuneration Commities




Thie Nominatkn and Hemuoneration Committes ["NRCT) constituted in terms of section 178 of the
Companies Act. 2013 and in terms of applicable guidelines issue by REL Currently NRC comprises of 3
{Three] members including 2 (Twa) Independent Directors:

The Nomination and Remuneration Cormmittes 15 to assist the Board of Mrectors in matters related to the
qualification, appeintment, remuneration for the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and other senior
emplayess, if any, and evaluating performance of the Directors and other Terms of Reference as specified
urrder applicable laws. The Commimee comprises of 3 [Three) members incduding 2 (Twol Independent
lirectors.

During the year wnder review, the NBC met 2 (Dwo) tmeés on July 29, 2022 and March 30, 2023, The details
of the attendancs of the Directors ot the NEC mestings are ghven below:

Mr. Sundeep Kuoar Mehta | Independent DMrector 2
| [Chairperson) . —
Mr, Harvinder Pal Singh | Non-swecutive Director 2 2
Mr. Anil Kumar Kalra | Independent Director z 2 |
3 AssetUiability Managoment Committes

The Asset Liability Management Commuittee [“ALCO Committee”) constituted interms of the RBE guidelines
a5 applicable on NBFC- NDSL The Committee comprises of 3 (Three)] members. The functions of the ALCD
Committee include addressing concerns regarding asset lisbility mismatches, interest rate rish expasure
and achieving optimal retum on capital employed while maintaming acceptable levels of sk inchuding and
relating to liquidity, market and operational aspecis and adhering to the relevant policies and other
applicabile guidelines frotifications/ regulations, as Issued from time to Gme,

During the yearunderreview, the ALCO Committee met 2 [Two] times on September 07, 2022, and March
15, 2023, The detziks of the amendance of the Directors at the ALCO Commiitee mesatings are given below:

Br. Harvinder Pal Singh Won=executive Directar
[ Mr. Sumit Mukherjee Whole-time Director & CEO z ]
Mr. Arjun Bansal Chief Finamcial Oficer Z 2
4 1T Strategy Committee. FAT NS IR

The Committes was oonstituted in terma of REl prescribed IT framework for WBFCs, The 1T Strategy
Committes comprizes of 4 [Four] members. Chalrpersen of the IT Strategy Committes & Independent
Director s required under applicable BB IT framework

The functions of the IT Strategy Committes is te inter-alia to discuss and approve [T stracegies and policy
documents to ascertain whether the company's managament has implemented procasses [ practices which
ensure that 1T delivers value to business, that the budgets allocated vis-i-vis [T investments are
commensuTate, monitor methods sdopted fo ascertain the [T resoorces needed to achieve strategic goals
of the Company and to provide high-level directions for the sourcing and wse of IT resources,

During the vear under review, the asset size (standalone) of the Company was below Bs. S04 Crores, hence,
the Company was required to follow Section - B of REI Master Direction - Information Technolagy
Framework for the NBFC Sector dated June 08, 2017, However, IT Policies of the Company covers most of
requirement ag required under the said RBI Framework, including for NBFC assets size of Bs. 500 Crores
and mors,




During the year under review, the IT Strategy Committer met 2 Twa] times on May 13, 2022 and
Movember 16, 2022, Details of the attendance along with Committes composition are given below:

M Sundesp Kamar Mebes | Independeant Ddrector 2 2
[Chalmerson) —
_Mr. Sumit Mukherjee Whobs-time Director & CEQ 2 2
Mr. Arjun Bangal Chilef Financial Officer 1 F 3
Mr. Sunil Yaday | 1T Head [Holding Company- | 2 2
Satin Creditcare  Network |
Limited) ! —
5 Risk M ent Committee = : ==

The Company follows well-established and detailed risk assessment and risk mitigation procedures, The
Company especially focuses on improving its sensitivity to the assessment of risks and improving methods
of computation of risk weights. Risk Management Committee {RMC) revlews inter-alia risk related to
portfelio, credit, collection, business, capltal requirement. liquidity, outsourcing and other risks s
specified under RMC Policy and applicable REI Guidelines on pertpdic basis,

[n order to mitigate risks in better wiy with expertise knowledge, RMC has 2 (fwo) Independent Pirectors
a5 its Chairperson/member,

Buring the year under review, the Committee met 2 [Two) times on May 13,2022 and November 16, 2022,
Details of the attendance along with Committes composition are given below:

Mr. Sundeep Bumar Mehta | Independent Director 2 F
{Chairperson) .
| Mr. Anil Kumar Kalra Independent Directar 2 2
Mr. Harvinder Pal Singh EMon-executive [Mrector F F
| Mr. Sumit Mukherjes Whole-time Director & CED 2 2
Mr. Saurabh Lall® Head Credic & Risk & CRO 1 | 1
| Mr. Surojit Chatterjee’ | Head Credit & Risk W 1
IE!-_‘_ — " Iil!“,_“ﬁ.iﬁv i ‘.- =

The Company has zere tolerance pelicy against sexual harassment in the Company and ensure the proper
safety -and care of women in the Company. Hence, the Company has Board constituted Internal
Committes, Employee Protection Committee in the Company in terms of the Sexeal Harassment of Women
at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition snd Redressal) Act, 201 3. The Company has Beard approved Polley
in this regard. The details of the same are given ander “Policies” section of this Report.

The following are members of the Committee as st the end of vear:

1 M Saurabk Lall resigned from his pesdton of Head Cradit & Risk & CAO weaf September 30 2022 and
consaguently from the mentbership of Risk Warogement Commilttes

 Hisk Menegement Dommittes wai re-copsoituted by the Soard of Directors in their meeting held on Oetober
21, 2022 and included Mr. Surojit Chatteries. Meod Credit & Risk as metbed of the Commiltes,




M. Aditi Singh Head - Investor Relations & Corporate | Presiding Officer
Communications [Satin Creditcare
Network Limited - Holding Company)

Mr. Manish Dwived| Head - HR and Admin  Member
Mr. Arjun Banzal Chiet Financial Officer Member

Ms. fvmeet Haur Independent Mamber | External Member |

There was no case of sexual harassment during the peried under review, Henee, there was ne meeting of
Internal Comminee/ Employes Protection Committee held during the said peried. The Company has
conducted tratning of employees in the period under the period and completed relevant fillings with
concerned authority.

Pursuant to section 149 read with schedule IV of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board has Independent
Directors and there is an appropriate balance of skills, experience and knowledge in the Board o as 1o
enable the Board to discharge its functions and duties effectively. Alsa, the Company has HBoard approved
Nomination & Remuneration Committes, as per norms of applicable RBI guidelines and provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013, which ensures that the person is being appointed as divector s fit and gualified to
hiold the position and evalaate the pecformance of the directors from tme te time,

During the year under review, the Company has réceived Declaration of Independence from Mr. Sundeep
Kumar Mehta, Mr. Anil Kumar Kalra and Mz Jyeti Ahluwalts, (ndependent Directors of the Company
pursuant to compliance with Section 139(6) & [7) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made thereunder.

The Company has also received declaration and undertaking from each director on fit and proper criteria
in terms of the provisions of Master directions on Non-Banking Financial Company - Systemcally
Important Non-Deposit taking Company and Deposit taking Company {Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016 as
arpended from tima to fime

'ERFURMANCE EVALUATION @

Performance appraisal framework was formulated and adopted by the Board. Pursuant to the provisions
of Sec 134(31{p] read with Sec 178 of the Act, a formal evaluation of the performance of the Board, it's
Committees (mandatory under Secretarial $tandard 1), Individual Tirectors and the Chairperson of the
meetings was carried out for FY 2022-23. Accordingly, the performance evaluation has been done far FY
2022-73 and evaluation was carrisd out using gquestionnaire covering, amongs others, composition of
board, effective decision making advice and necessary guidance, open communication, meaningfl
participation, knowladge & expertise of Directors, contribution at Board meetings ete. Further, Individual
Directars (Executive, Non- Executive and Independent) were evaluated in terms of participation in the
meetings of Board and Committees, Education & Qualification, effective examination of the financil and
other informatien related to the operations of the Company, ralsing of valid concerns, Impartial &
meaningtul participation and adeguate deliberstions in the meeting The actions emerging from the Beard
evaluation process were collated and on consolidated basis, the summary of the ratings was prepared, and
the report of performance evaluation so arrived at, was girculated to Independent Directors, NRC and
Board along with ratings

The Independent Directors in their meeting held on March 30, 2023 has reviewed and forwarded to the
Board the performance of Non-Independent Directors, Board as a whale and the Chairperson of the
Company (taking into account the views of Executive directors and Non-Executive directors) of the
Company for the FY 2022-23 and reviewed the quality, quantity and timeliness of Aow of information
hebween the Company management and the Board a8 required under the provisions of the Companies A,
2013 and rules/schedule made thereunder:

The Board approved Nomination and Remuneration Committee has evaluated the performance of the
Roard a5 a whole, Directors (Executive and Nen-oxecutive Directors) and the Committees of the Board




[mandatory under Secretarial Standard 1) in it meeting dated March 30, 2023 for the FY 2022-23 and
farwarded the same for Board's consideration,

Thereafter, the evaleation qualitative comments and suggestions of Independent Directors and NRC were
circulated to the Board and Beard of Directors in their meeting held on March 30, 2023 inter-alia has
gvaluated the performance of overall Board as a whole, Chairperson, Committees [mandatory under
Secretarial Standard =17 and Individusle Directors of the Company for the FY 20022-23 ag reguired under
applicable laws, The Board found the overall performance “satisfactory” for 7Y 2022-23.

ADEPENDENT DIRECTORS N '|-:'|.|.r -} kit T E :-r'-:__-i';_ ) s M= i 7 "
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In compliance with Schedule IV of the Act, the Independent Directors held their separate meeting on March
30, 2023 Inter alia, discuss the fellowing matters:

1, Reviewed the performance of Noo-Independent Directers, the Beard-as a whole and the Chairperson
(Taking into views of Executive and Non-executive Directors).

2, Asgessed the quality, quantity and timeliness of fow of information betiwesn the Compinty
managemient and the Board,

All Independent Directors Le. Mr. Anll Kumar Ealra, Mr. Sundeep Kumar Mehta and Ms. Jyvoti Ahlowalia
were present i the meeting. The [ndependent Directars present at the meeting deliberated on the atove
and were satisfy with the performance of Mon-Independent Directors, Board as & whole and the
Chairperson of the Company (taking Into account the views of Executive directors and Nop-Executive
directors) of the Company for the FY 202 2-23,

W LA ORI EGA = OF THE RITTEL |
= :

Your Company has Hoard approved Nomination & Remuneration Policy (NRC Pollcy) which specify the fit
& proper criteria, a5 mentioned under applicabls RBI guidelines and provisions of the Act Appointment of
gll Directors induding Independent Directors takes places with the precedurss prescribed by NRC Policy
and with the recammendation of Momination & Hemuneration Committes and approval of the Board. Tha
sppointmant of all the directors: took place aher satisfying the fit & proper criteria and relevant
approval{s]. The Company has also received Declaration cum Undertaking from directors, continiig
relevant past experience, ctucational background and knowledge of induestry, The Directors are registered
with data bank and hodds relevant experience of the Company’s industry, The Independent Directors of the
Company contains relevant experience, expertise and integrity, The Company obtains redevant disclosures
from Nrectors from time to time a5 required under applicable law, During the peried under review, there
was no change m Independent Directors of the Company,

Your Company has aligned its current systems of internal financial control with the requirement of the
Companies Act, 2013, The Company is continuing to monitor the efficiency of internal controls through a
comprebiengiva imternal contol framework which had been designed to ensure transparency and
accauntalibity in an organsadon's procass of deslgning and implensenting a syseem of internal cantral,
Through this framework rigks in the Company are dentified and analysed apd appropriate Tesponses are
manmged, Moreover, the Audit Committes reviews the audit repors submitted by nternal anditors and
statutory auditors of the Company, Staitery Auditors review the Internal Financial Controls and Inform
thee same in its reporct Dther Conmirtees Lo, ALCO, RMC and 1T Swrategy Commitiee review the required
matters on frequent basis and engure propes system and processes,

The Campany's intermal controls systems are commensurate with its size and the nabure of its operations.
These have heen degigned as wall ag operating sffectively to provide a reasonable acsurance with regard
to recording and providing réliable fpancial and operationad information, complylng with applicalle
statutes, safeguarding assets from unauthorised use, executing transactions with proper asthorisation, the
prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the atcounting records,
and the fimely preparstion of reliable finandal disclosures and ensuring compliance of corporate policies.

Alsp, an gudit on fnternal systems, processes and controls as reguired under Master irection Information
Technology Framework for the NBFC Sector dated June 08, 2017, was conducted by Cyberfube Services
Private Limited, Further, as per the szld aedit report, all of controls as reguived under RBI Master Direction
Infermation Technolegy Framework for the NBFC Sector are imptemented by the Company. This indicates




vouc Company has an mtegrated and robust Information Secerity Management System in it processes and
information security,

Pursuant to RBi Civcular R 2022-23 )26 DORACC REC.No, 20/ 210015,/ 2022-23 dated April 19, 2022
pertaining to Disclosure in Financial Statements-Notes to Accounts of NBFCs, as per Section 11 of the said
circular, Non-listed NBFCs af the minimum should dischese the fellewing under the Corporate Gavernance

setion of the Annual Report
A) Corporate Governance
1) Composition of the Bodard
S| Mame | Direct | Capacit | DIN Mumber of Mo.of | Hemuneratdon | No
o | of or ¥ [Le Board Mestings | other of
M| Direct | since | Execat Held | Attende | Direct | Sal | Sitt | Co | shar
oL ar ve/ d o ary | ing (m |es
; Nan- ships and | Fee | m held
Executi oth | 4 iszi | Im
v/ er on | and
Chairm (w1} Cony
anf mp entib
Fromat an le
e sad lmstr
nemine o0 ume
e/ nis
Indepen held
dent] in
the
NBFC
1| Mr August | | 00333754 | 5 5 105 = - - | HA
Harvin | 10, Homn-
der Pal | 2018 Executiv
Singh &
21 Mr. Apgust | Indepen | 07361739 5 5 2 14 M
Andl 10, dent 0.
Kumar | 2018 1]
Kalra
A[ Mr. August | Indepen | GEB40544 5 5 e 16 HA
Sundee | 10, | dent 0,0
P 2018 oo
Kumar
&| Ms, March | Indepen 12407 B 5 1 - 6L, HA
Jyoti an, dent i1
Ahlaw | 2021
ali
5| Mr. Fabrua | Executiv | 08369054 5 3 - - - A
Sumit | PW20, | & 1.0
Mukhe | 201G 5.6
ries o0
[IL1]

Details of change in compositdon of the Board during the current and previous Financial Year: Not Applicable

* This inchudes sitting fees of Committeos meeting and [ndependent Director meeting

5 [nchuding body corporateis)




5.Mo, Name of Director Capacity (e Executive/ | Nature of Effective Date
Non-Executive, Change
Chairman/ Fromoter [resignation,
nominee/ Independent) | appointment]

There was no change in conipesition of the Board during the current {pngeing FY) and previous FY (FY22-
23

Whera an Independent Director resigng before sspiry of har/his term, reasons for resignation s given by
hirn/her shall be disclosed: NA

Detalls of any relationship amongst the directors inter-ge shall be disclosed: There is no relationship
amongst the directors, except to the extend comman directorship in group companles.

2) Committees of the Board and their composition

il Mention the rames of the committess of Hie Boord: Nomes and Detvily of Statutory Committees (s
constitwied wnder applicable lows){incheding committee of the Hoard are given below in
prescribed formal:

if] For epch Committes, mention the summarized terms of reference end provide the fallowing details;
Petails are provided below.

1. Audit Commites:

5 Name of Member of | Capacity (Le. | Number of Meetings of | Mo, of l
M. Director Committes | Executive, the Committes :hn:;ﬁ
since Non- held in
Executivey | o0 Atended | yprC
Chairman/
Fromoter
D minee
Independent
I 1
1 Mr. Sundecp | January 31, | Independent 4 MA
Kumar Mehta | Enig .
FR Mr. Harvinder [anuary 31, | Mon- 4 NA
Pal Singh 2019 Exprutive _—
3 Mr. Anil Kumar lanuary 31, | Independent 4 HA
Kalra 2019

summarized Terms of Reference af Audit Committes is a5 under

1. Recommendation for appeintment, remuneration and terms of appomment of aeditors of the
Comgany,

2 Reviewing and monitoring the auditor's independence and performance, and effectivensss of

audit process.

Examination of the financial statement and the auditors' report thereon.

Approval or any subsequent mod|fication of transactions of the listed entity with related parties.

Seruting of inter-corporate loans and myestments,

Valuation of undertakings or assets of the listed entity, wherever it is necessary.

Evaluation of internal financial controls and rick management systems;

Monitoring the end use of funds raised and related matters,

To carry out any other functien in terms of any other applicable guidelines or in any other

applicabe faw.

e

. Nomination & Remuneration Committes:

s Name of | Capacity (i.e. | Numher of Meetings of | No.of ’
| No, | Director Executive/ | the Committes  shares




Member of | Mon- Held Attended held in
Committee | Executive, NEFC
since Chairman/
Fromoter
nomines,
Independent |
L _ . ] : —
N Mr. sundeep | January 3L | Independent 2 2 MA
Kumar Mehta | 2010
2, Mr. Harvinder | January 31, | Non- 2 2 NA
| | Pal Singh L 2019 Execatve |
1. r. Anil Komar | January 31, | independent | 2 i NA
1 2019 i

Summarized Terms of reference of Mominatlon and Remuperadon Commlimee is as unden

L.

The Momination and Bemuneration Committee shall identify persons who are qualified to become
directors and who may be sppointed i senior management in accordance with the criteria laid
down, recommiend to the Board their appointment and removal an shall specify the manner for
effective evaluation of performance of Board, s committess and individual directors to be carvied
out either by the Board, by the WNomination and Remuneration Committee or by an
independent external agency and review its implementation and compliance,

2. The Homination and Remuneration Committee shall formulate the criteria for determining
qualifications, posithre attributes and Independsnce of a dirsctar and recommend to the Board a
policy, relating to the remuneration for the directors, key managerial personnel and other
employees.

3. Toensure 'fit jnd proper’ status of proposed, existing directors.

4. Toundertake and ensure sther function and responsibilities as stipulated under Master Circular-
MISE [Master Ddrection DNBR: PO 008G 1001159 2016-17) and as amended from Qme to Gma
and to carty out any other function in terms of any other applicable guidefines or in terms of any
other applicable law.

3. Risk Manapemont Commitiiea:

8 Namnie of Memberof | Capacity [i.e. | Number of Meetings of No. of

No. | Director/Membe | Commitiee | Executive/ the Commities shares hield

Executive/
Chairman/
Promater
nominee
- : Independent} | = —
L Mr. Sundesp Kr. | May 02 | Independent 2 Z WA
Mehta 2019
2 Mr. Anil Euomar | May 02; | Imdependent 2 2 HA
Kalra 2019
3 Mr. Harvinder Pal | May 03, | Mon-Executive 2 . MA
Singh | 2019 _ R | | S
i+, M. Summlt | August 03, | Executive 2 2
Mukherjes 0zl HA
E; Mr.Saurabh Lall® | August 03, | Head- Credit & i 1 Ha
2021 Risk & CRO

" Mr Saursbh Lall resigned from bis position of Heod Credit & Risk & (R0 weaf September 30, 2022 ond
consaquenthy from the membership of Risk Maragement Committee.




i‘a. Mr.  Surojit | October 21 | Head- Credit & NA

Chatterjee’ 2022 itiskk 1 1

Summarized Terms of reference of Risk Management Committes is as under:

1. Toreview and access the type and nature of the different risks e eredit rigk, liguidity rick, market
rizk, operational risk; market risk etc. which may have impact

2. Toreview, formulste, implemsnt and maintain a sound system of risk oversight, management and
internal contral

3. Toreview and assess the quality, integrity and effectiveness of the risk management systems

4. To provide methedology to identify, qualifics and analyses the expesure of risks

5. To ldentify, assess, manages and monitor risks and evaluating overall rigks of the Cempany
including liquidity risk

6. Toreview, identify and evaluate risks related to frand and business contimeity plan,

7. To monitor external developments relating to the practices of corpemite acoountability and the
reporting of specifically associated risk, including emerging and prospective impacts.
B Todiscuss any other scope or functions as required wnder the applicable laws or pelicies as

defined from fme to Hme,"”

+. Asset Liability Management Commities;

5. MName af Member of | Capacity (ie.  Nomber of Meetings of | Nooof
Mo, | Director/Memb | Committee | Executive/ |tl1ei:ﬂmilh¢ shares
er since Hon- | held in
Exetutive/ | Held Attended R
Chalrman/
Fromoter |
nmine:,
Independent
........ ] | |
1. | Mr. Surmit | Fehruary | Executive | 2 > | HA
Mulcherjes 2272019
2 Mr. Harvinder | February Mon- 2 2 ™A
Pal Singh 22,2019 | Executive
3 Mr. Arjun Bansal | August 03, 2 | Chief 2 2 MA
0Z1 Finangial
| Dfficer |

Swmmarized Terms of relérence of Azset Liability Managament Committes {8 as under:

To address concerns regarding asset liability mismatches,

To address Interest rate risk exposure

To take decision on desired matarity profite and mix of incremental assets and liabillties,

To achieve optimal return on capital employed while maintaining acceptable levels of risk

including and relating to liguidity, market and operational aspects,

Adhering to the relevant policies snd regulations,

Te take decision on responsibilities and contrels for managing Haguidite risk and sversesing

Liqueldity posttons of all branches,

7. To carry out any other function as Is mentdoned in the - terms of -applicable
gutdelines fdirecdons/cdroulars from tGme to Hme.”

B To carry out any other function as may be delegated by the Board of directors of the Company

from time bo tme.”

R R

-

oo

5. 1T Strategy Codmmiibies:

" Risk Monegement Commitiee wos re-corstitabed by the Board of Diveckors in their mecting held on Octaber
21, 2022 and included Mr. Surojit Chotterfee, Heod Credit & Risk os member of the Commitlee,




5.No. | Name of Member of | Capacity (Le. | Number of Meetings of | Mo of

Director/Memb | Committee | Execntive/ the Commities shares

Er slmce Non- = —r = To . | held in
Executive/ | PEM Attended |y opr
Chairmean,/
Promofer
nomines |
lndependant

! - J

| L | Mr Sundeap | May 03, | Independent 2 z MA

I Kumar Mehta 2019 _ o | .

. M, Sumit | May {12, | Executive 3 s MA
Mukhearjes 201%
A [Mr Adun Bansal | Avgust 03, | Chief z F i
2021 Financial
| Officer
4. | Mr. Sunil ¥aday August 03, Head - IT ] Z 1 [hodd 2z
2021 {(Haolding nomftinae
Canmpiny] Shareholds
tof Helding
Company)

Summarkzed Terms of referedee of IT Strategy Committee 15 a5 under:

1} Tocarey out review and amend the [T strategies in line with the corporate strategies, Board
Policy reviews; cyber security arrangements and any other matter related to [T Governance,

Z}) To approve and recommending to Board of Directors.of the Company, “IT strategy and policy
documents” and ensuring that the management has put an effective strategic planning process
in place

3} Toageertain that management has implemented processes and practices that ensure that the 1T
delivers walue to the bosiness.

4}  To ensure IT investments represent a8 balance of risks and benefits and that budgets-ars
acceptable:

5} To monitor the method thet management uses to determing the IT resources needed tor achieve
strategic goals and provide high-level direction for sourcing and use of [T resaurces,

6] Toensure proper balance of IT investments for sustalning NBFCs growith and becoming aware
ahout exposure towards [T risks and contrals,

Tl To undertake and ensure other functon and respongibilites @ stipulated undse Mager
Direction-  Information  Technology  Framework  (RBI/DNBS/Z01I6-17/53  Master
DirectienDNBS PPOLNo.04 /6615001 f2016-17) far the NAFC S&ctor dated [upe 08, 2017, &
amended From deme to dme.

] Tocarry out any other function in terms efany other applicable guidelines from time to Gme,”

6. Internal Commitree (Employes Protéction Committes:

5 1' MName of Member of | Capacity (Le. | Number of Meetings of B, of
Mo, | Director/Memb | Committee | Executive/ the Commiltes shares
B since Maon- held in
Executivey | PP Atiended | pprc
Chairman/
Promoter
nomines,
Independent
|| —— ]
1. | Me Adit Singh August 03, | Head - B HA 1 (hold as
2021 Investor nominee
Relations & shareholde
Corporate rof Holding
| Communicati Company]




ans - [Holding ' :
Company)
i M, Manish | August 03, [ HR  Head & WA WA M
Drwivedi 2021 Admin
b My Arjun Bansal | August 03, | Chief HA NA MN&
2021 Financeal
Officer
i Ms. Avneet Kaur | Awgest03, | Independont NaA NA MA
2021 Membaor

Summartzed Terms of reference of Internal Commimes /Employes Frotecton Commities is &5 under:

1L Toredress the complaints of sexual harassment as well a5 ssues related and incidental thereto
2. To investigate the sexual harassment case as per HR Manual of the Company and applicable laws,
3. On completion of the eénquiry, the EPC by way 0f a written report may:
d) Dismiss the complaint of sexual harassment in cases where the EPC arrives ar 2 conclusion
that the allegations against the Respondent have nod been proved: or
b) Find the complaint of sequal harassment proven and give a finding to that effect.

] Where the EPC finds and arrives at a conclusion that the allegations against the Respondent
are substantisted and proved, the EPC shall make recommendations to the management of
the company, which may inclode:

d] Totake action for sexual harassment as a misconduct in sccordance with this Policy.

g}l Deduct salary or wages of the Respondent in such sum as may be consldersd appropriate, o
be pald o the Aggrieved Individual 45 compensation,

fl To suggest tho aggrieved individwal shiould tell the respondent that his/her behaviour is
unwelcome and ask him/Ter to stop immediately.

E) To recommiend the management to take disciplinary action, upto and including terminstion
of services,
4. Ay other scope ar functions 2 required vnder HR manual or preseribed from time to timea
£ Any other scope or functons as reguired wnder the applicable laws ar prescribed fram tme
time,

3) General Body Mectings:
Give details of the date, place and special resolotions passed af the General Body Meetings.

L Type of Meetdng ([Annual/Extra- | Date and Place Special  Hesolotions

Mo, | Ordinary General Meeting) Pagsed

L Annual Gereral Mesting May 0z, 2022- 1 [Cme} |
| ) Gurugram, Haryana

4] Petails of non-compliance with requirements of Companies Act, 2013- Mot Any
5} Details of penaltics and strictures- Mot Any
B) Breach of Covenant- Npt Any
C] Divergence in Asset Classification and Provisloning-
a]  The additonal provisioning requirements assessed by BB (or Natlonal Houwsing Banlk {(MHB] In cass

of Housing Companies] axceeds 5 percent of the reported profisg belore tax and impalrment foss on
finandinl instruments for the reference period, or

b) The addidons] Gross NPAs identified by RB1/NHB excesds 5 pereent of the reported Grass NFAs for
the reference pariod.




Sr. Particulars Amount (Bs, In Lakhs)

1, [ereees NPAS as.on March 31, 2003 s reported by the NEFC 1.044.62
2. Gross WPAs as on March 31, 2023 ac assessed by the 1.044.62

Reserve Bank of India/ NHE ;
4, Divergence in Gross NPAs (2-1) :
4, Mot MFAz as on March 31, 2023 as reported by the NBFC G565 _
5, Net NPAs as on March 31, 2023 as assessed by Reserve 0555

Bank af India; NHE
= Divergence in Net NPAs [5-4) ——i
& Pravichons for NBAS 25 on March 11, 2023 a5 reported by 438,97

the NBFC
1, Provisions for KPAs as on March 31, 2023 as assecced by 3597

Reserve Bank of India/ NHE -
9. Divergence ulpruuisbunlum 7}
10, Reported Profit before tax and impalrment loss on L 19945

financial instruments for the year ended March 31, 2023 poii ]
i Eepnrted Net Profit after Tax [PAT) for the year ended £06.20

| Maech 31, 2023
1Z. | Adjusted (noticnal] Met Profit after Tax (PAT) for the year
- ended March 31, 2023 after considering the diverpance in 60630
provisioning IR

*March 31, 2023 is the close of the reference period in rnsua:t of which divergences were assessed,

The Company has a Whistle Blower Policy w deal with instances of fraud, unethical behaviour and
mismanagement, ifany. Whistie Blower Policy ensures that the activities of the Company and its employess
are conducted In a fair and transparent manner by sdoption of highest standards of professionalizm. The
Whizde Blower Policy provides for adeguate safeguards against victimization of pertone and ensures that
any employves, officer and divector who violates the réquirements of this policy will e subjeck b
disciplinary action, Audit Commites review the unctioning and complaint receivad o nder Whistle Blower
Folicy, If any, ot periodic bagis. During the period undér review, the Compsny bas not received any
complaint under Whistle Rlower Pulll:ﬂ'lhgll Mechanizm,

eI B Tt Bl

M/s. Rajeev Bhatia & Associates, Chartered Acconntants [[CAI Registration Mo, 0217 76N], have been
appointed on the recommendation of Aadit Committee of the Board of drector’s (o conformity with the
provisions of section 13% and 141 of the Companies Ao, 2013, read with the Companles [Audit and
Auditors} Rules, 2014 {Including amendiments thereto), as the Seatutory Auditors of the Company for the
periad of 5 years from the conclasion of the first annual general meeting of the Company till the concluzion
of zixth annuwal general meetng. Thesaid appointment is in accordance with the applicable provisions of
the Act and rules framed thereunder.

The Statutory Auditors have confirmed that they are not disqualified frem continuing &= Statutory Audtors
of the Company. Further, the Board of Directors in their meéeting held o April 27, 2022, based oo
recommendation of the Audit Committer of the Company, has reviewed and ook note thie elighility of M/ s,
Rajeev Bhatia & Associates, Chartered Accountants (ICA} Registration Moo 021776M) for the finandal
yoar 2022-23, based on eligibility letter, received from Statutory Anditors and the Board has reviewed and
manitored their independency, performance and effectiveness of audit process as per applicahie laws,

The Auditors” Reports: for the finpncial vear 2022-23 does not contain any gqualifiction, reservation,

adverse remark or disclaimer. The notes to the Accounts referred to in the Auditors” Beport are self-
¢':'l.‘|:lli1l'l-ﬂttln? and{h:l nat n.—-.lll for Fl.lrthl:T comments,




The Board of Directors in their meeting hedd on April 27, 2022, based on recommendation of Audit
Committes af the Company, has appointed M5 5 Behera & Co, Company Secrotaries ([C51PCS Registration
Mo, 5980, a8 Secretarial Auditor of the Company for FY 2022-23 for conducting the audit of the secretarial
and related records of the Company in termes of Section 204 of the Compainies Act, 2003 and rules made
thereunder, The secretarial audit report is annexed to this Board's Report as Annexure I There is no
gualificarion, reservation or adverse remark made in the Secretarisl Audit Report

A AR et e T i - AR ST S S SR PBIIRT

The Company has in plage an adequate internal avdit framework to monitor the efficacy ofimtornal controls.
with the objectives of providing to the Audit Committee and the Bosrd of Directors, an independent,
objective and reasonable assurance on the sdequacy and effectiveness of the organisation’s risk
management, control and governance processes. The Internal Audit Plan is approved by the Audit
Committes and Board, The Internal Audit Report, with significant andit observations, if any, are dirculaved
to the Audit Committes and Beard on quarterly basis for review and noting. The sudit appraach verifies,
compliance with the regulstory, sperstional and system related precedures and controls. Pursuant to
Soction 139 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with rules made thereunder, the Company has Board
appointed Internal Auditor to review and conduct the audit as per Beard approved Internal Audit Plan,
Inkermal Avditor conduct the audit and present its repori(s) before the Audit Committesy Board on periodic
basis,

BREPORTINGOFERAUD R AUDGRS @ = 2
During the year under review, nelther the Statwiory Avditor nor the Secretarial Auditor have reported to

thie Audit Committee or to the Board or Central Government, undes sectlon 143(1Z) of the Act any
Instances of the frawd committed in the Company by it officers ar employess of the Company,

Howaver, Statutory Auditors In its- report, mentloned that there have been few Instances of
misappropriation of cash collected from customers and other forms of embezzlement of cash By the
employees lmvolving amounts ageregate Ra. V& 14 Lakhs, The Company has terminated the services of such
emplovees and also Initinted legal action against such emplovees. The Company has recovered Rs 8.56
Lakhs from such some emplovess Further, this i to submit that these inetances were inourred bn
Transferor Company Lo Targaghng Floancial Services Limbted, 5 non-NEFC entity, belore amakgamation,

= .5
Pursuant to Section 134(3] (c] of the Companies Act, 2013 the Beard of Directors of the Company confirm:

L That in the prepacation of the annual accaumts for the fnanckal vear ended March 31, 2023, the
applicable accounting standards have been followed, along with proper explasations celating to
material departurs,

2. That Board has selected such accounting pelicies and. applied them consistently: and made
judpments and estimates thet are reasonable and prudent, 5o a5 to give a true and Fir view of the-
state of affairs of the Company on March 31, 2023 and of the profit and less of the Company for
the vear ended on that date,

3. That Board has taken proper and sufficient care for the masintenance of adequate accounting
records, in accordance with the provislons of the Companles Act, 2013 for safeguanding the assets
of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other Irregularities.

4. That Board has prepared the annual accounts for financial year ended March 31, 2023 ona golug
concern basis and:

5. That the Board had devised proper system to emsure compliance with the provisions of all
agplicable lows and that such svaesms were adequate and operating effsctivaly during the
Minancial year ended March 31, 2023,

i —

During the year under review, the Company has not allatted any debentures. However, non-convertibile
debentures has been allotted to the (58 Bank Limived vide Board Resolution dated [une 29, Z020. As per
the requirement onder the Act, the Company had already appointed Catalyst Truszeeship Limited
[formerly kmown as GDA Trusteeship Limited) as the Debenture Trostee for the non-convertible
debentures issued by the Company, The Company bas duly submitted reguired documents, intimations to
Debeature Trustes as per agreed covenants and made timely payments,
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As on March 31, 2023, the following aré ratings of financial instruments of the Company:

Rating Agency Facilities /Instruments | Amoant [INRK Hating

Crores)
CARE Ratings | Long Term Bank S0 CARE BBB=; 5table
Limited Facilities [Triple B Plus; Dutiook: Stakle)
CARE Ratings-| Mon-convestihle 504 {ARE BHBE=; Stable
Limited Debentres [Tripke B Plus; Dutinek: Stable)
Aruite Ratings & | Bank Loan Ratings 50000 ACUITE BBE+ | Stable |Assigned
Resoarch Limited

During the year under review, the NCLT, Chandigarh Bench had passed an order dated January 31, 2023
for the amalgamation of Taraashna Financial Services Limited with yeuwr Company effective from March 1,
2023, appointed date April 21, 2021, The dotails of the zame are given ander “Amalgamation of Tarsashna
Finaneial Services Limited with the Company” of the Report.

AND COST AL [ . 3 - - ..

Maintenance of cost records and requirement of Cost Audit as spocified by the Central Government under
sub-gection (1] of section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013, is not spplicable for the business activities
carried out by the Company.

Being into the business related to financial services; provisions pertaining to conservation of energy is not
applicable. Further, there are no foreign exchange earnings{s] or outgo during the financial year 2022-23.
Further, pursuant to clause {m) of sub-section {3} of Secion 134 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with sub-
rule(3] of Rule 8 of the Companies {Accounts) Rubes, 2004, the information isas follows:

Sr. M. Particulars Details

A Conservation of energy KMot applicable, in view of the
. the steps talen or impact on consarvation of energy; npture of the business of the
ik the steps taken by the company for wtilising aklternate Company  being  Financial
SN0 of @iy, . | services,
iii. the capital investment on energy conservation
equipents;

B Techmology absorpton The Company I5  steadily
L the efforts made towards technology absorption; applying and adopting

ii. the benefits derived like product improvement, cost | ochnology to improve services
reduction, produc development or import substitution; alficbsnaie and the: Gt
fii, in case of imported technology (imported during the e i
East three years reckoned from the beginning of the have nmob  jmported  any
financial year} technology.

a the details of techniology Imported;

b the year of import:

e whether the technology been Fully absorbad;

d. If not fully abeprbad, areas where absarption

has st taken placs, and the reasons thereol; and
v,  the mdim—e incurred  on Bessarch  oand
Develagment,
(W} Fareign exchange earnings and Dutgo Mot any




POLICIES o _ .
1. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY POLICY

The Company has in place the Board approved Corporate Social Responsibility Policy in line with the
provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made thereunder, as amended from to
time, The CSH palicy is available on the website of the Company wwwesatinfinserv.com.

& RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY

Risk management is-an integral part of the Company’s business strategy. The risk management process is
adopied and reviewed by the Board of Dicectors of the Comnpany an a regular basis which provides: for
tdentification, assesament and contrel of riskse Risk Management Commlmes and Board of Directors
regullarly review complance with rigk policies, monitor risk talerance lbmit, review and analyee righ
exposure related to specific igsues and provides oversight of rsk acrmss the organizatipn The Company
has Board approved Bisk Management Policy which reviewed by Board on periodic basis.

The rigk management framework covers integrated risk swanagement malnly comprising Credit Risk,
Market Risk, Cperatinal Kisk, Fraud Risk and other risks, The Credit Risk management strecture includes
documented credit policies and procedures for each financial product and service of the businesa,

Risks assoclated with frauds are midgated through Board approved Frauwd Monitoring Policy. Fraud risk is
monitored through oversight by senfor managament, who review matters relating to fraed nshk, incloding

Your Contpany 5 committed to ensure Fair envieonment for its executive, stadl and workers, In compliance
to the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace {Prevention, Prohibitlon and Redressal] dct, 2013, tha
Company has adopted Sexun] Harassment Pollcy as approved by the Board [Board review the same on
perioflc basia) which ensurs free and fair enguiry process with clear timelines The Company have duly
constituted internal committee as required uider the Sexual Harazsment of wormen at workplace
(Prevention, Prohibiticn and Redressal) Act 2013 to review the cases related to sexual harassinent ¥our
directors further state that during the year under review, there was no case reported pursuant o the
Sexual Harassment to women ot workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013, Alsa, the
Company i2 in complied with provigions related to the constitution of Internal Committee wrl goxwal
harassment and the annuwal report a5 required under POSH Act For calendar vear 20235 wag filed with
concerned authoritics within the prescribed timelines. The Company has provided necessary waining to
employees about sexual harsssment lawe and internal pelicy of the Company during the pericd under
Teviow,

The Company has adopeed Nomination and Remaneration policy which Ieoks after the Company's policy
an directors’ appointment and remuneration including criterta for determining gualificatlons, pasitive
attributes, independence of a director ete. The Board reviews the Policy on periedic basis o include the
changes under applicable L, if any. Nomination and réepuneration policy of the Company B publshed
on website of the Company, [wew. satinfinserv.con)

2. Mher Statutory Policies

The Company has all ssatutory policies as reguired under applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013
and applicable RBT guidelings, as issued by BB from tme to time.
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The Hon'ble NCLT, Chandigarh Bench vide order dated January 31, 2023 had approved the Scheme of
Arrangament for Amalgamation of Tarsashna Finanaal Services Limited with vour Company. The detaiks
of the sime jdre given under “Amalgamation of Taraechna Finandial Services Limited with the Company” of
the Report,

Thera i& na :ppllﬂlii:u minbe or proceeding pending under the Insolvency and Bankruptey Code, 2016
during the financial year under review,

The Company has not entered into one time settlement of any loan obtained from Banks or financial
ingtitutions. Therefore, the details regarding the difference between amawst of the waluation done an the
time of one time settlement and the valuation done while taking loans frem the banks or financial
institutions.

Your [Mrectors would lke to place on record their gratitude for the cosperation received from lenders, our
waloed customers and shareholders. The Board, in specificc wishes to place on record it sincere
appreciation of the contribution made by all the employess towards growth of the Company.

For and on behalf of the Board
FOR SATIN FINSERY LIMITED

¢ L
Flace: Gurugram Sumit Mubch rjee SR y Harvinder Fal Singh
Date: April 22, 2023 (Whole-time dk {Director)
DN DEEGI0E o DIN: DO333TH4




Anngxure- 1

Form No. AQC-Z
{Pursuant to clause (h) of Sub-section (3] of Section 134 of the Actand Rule 8(2) of the Companies
{Accounts) Rules, 2014)

This form pertains 1o the discloswre of particulars of contracts farrangements entered inte by the Company
with related parties referred o in Sub-section {1) of Section 168 of the Companies Act, 2013 inchuding
certain arm’s length trangactions under third proviso therete.

Petails of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s length basls

There were no contracts or arvangements or transactions entered during the vear ended March 31, 2023,
which were nat at arm’s langth basls: NIL

[a] Name[s) of the related party and natwre of relationship:

(0] Mature of contracts farrangements / transactions:

() Duration of the contracts [ arvangements /ransactions:

{d] Salient terms of the contracls or Arvangements or transactions including the value, if any:

(2] Justification for entering inta such contracts OF ATTAGEEMENts o transactions

{f) Date{s] of appraval by the Board:

(g} Amount paid a5 sdvances, if any:

{h) Date on which the special resolution was passed in genveral mesting as required under first provise to
sectlon 168:

Detail of material contracts o arrangements or transactions at arm’s length basis: ML The
Company has not entered in any relatad party transaction during the financial year ended March 31,
2023,

S.No, | Name(s) of | Nature of | Duration of Salient terms | Datefs) Amount
the contracts, the contracts | of the of ptid as
related arrangements | /f contracts or | approval | advances,
party jransactions | arrangements | arrangements | by the ifany
and nature JSiransactions | or Board, il
il transactions | any
refationship including the
& value, if any —




MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF SATIN FINSERV LIMITED (“SFL/the
Company”)

A. Company Overview

Satin Finserv Limited (SFL/Company) is a wholly owned subsidiary of Satin Creditcare Network Limited
(SCNL) incorporated in August 2018 and started operations in March 2019, after obtaining license from
Reserve Bank of India (RBI). The RBI NBFC Number of SFL is N-14.03461. The primary objective of SFL is
to finance the SME, MSME and self-employed segments and Business Correspondents on behalf of various
banks/financial institutions.

SFL forayed into the MSME and self-employed loan segment because these segments are largely excluded
from access to organized finance. The Company’s MSME loan offerings to these customers account for the
fact that many of these customers may not habitually maintain standard books of accounts, or that a vast
majority may not even fall under the turnover bracket warranting financial auditing.

Since the availability of reliable financial information in this segment is a challenge, SFL deploys a
commensurate credit underwriting and assessment model which is a mix of surrogate and non-surrogate
parameters. There is a high level of touch and feel the customer supplemented by scorecards and data
analytic to understand the business cash flows.

Nature of Business:

SFL is in the business of lending to small businesses, including individual and corporate business loans,
who do not have formal cash flows. Our ticket sizes range from Rs. 1 lakh to Rs. 5 lakh (for the retail
business). As on March 31, 2023, total AUM in SME segment stands at Rs. 225.57 Crores as with mix of Rs.
64.36 Crores of whole-sale business and Rs. 161.21 Crores of retail business and Rs. 45,602.00 Lakhs in JLG
segment.

Summarized details about Product offered by SFL

Loan Product Purpose Ticket Size [Tenor Collateral [Eligibility Criteria
Small Ticket| » Income  Generation |[1.5Lto 3.5L |60 Months |Property | » Minimum age-22
Business Loan activities > Business stability of

minimum 3 years
» Working Capital-
- Long term loans ( 3-

5 years)
- Short Term Loans( 1
to <3 year)
MFI- NBFC|Term Loans Upto5Cr |18 Months Book » Minimum AUM of
(Currently on hold) debts 75 crores.
»  Minimum net worth
of 10 crores
» Business stability of
minimum 3 years
Large Ticket Term Loans Upto5Cr |60 Months Unsecured{>»  Business stability of
minimum 3 years
» Company needs to
be profitable as per
last audited
financials
JLG Business Income Generation activities |Up to 0.65 L |24 Months Unsecured| » Minimum age-18

» Maximum
Household Income
tobe <3 L.

» Annual Household
Obligation to be




50% of Annual
Household Income.

SFL also acts as Business Correspondent on various banks/financial institutions including Jana Bank, CSB
Bank Limited etc.

The Company has an experienced and stable management team of Board of directors. The Company is
hopeful of performing well during current financial year.

Amalgamation of Taraashna Financial Services Limited with the Company

The Hon’ble NCLT, vide its order dated January 31, 2023 approved the said Scheme of Arrangement for
Amalgamation and after requisite filing with concerned ROC, the said Scheme got effective from March 01,
2023. The Appointed Date of Scheme is April 01, 2021. The details of the same are given under Board’s
Report of this Annual Report.

B. Industry Structure and Developments

The industry is growing from strength to strength by serving the underserved and often ignored retail and
MSME segments which are the backbone of India’s growth story.

The micro, small and medium enterprises (MSMEs) segment, which contributes about 29 per cent of India’s
GDP and employs over 11 crore workers, recorded a modest recovery. The revenue for the MSME sector is
projected to exceed the pre-COVID level in 2022-23 by 25 per cent.4 With 99.8 per cent of MSMEs being
unregistered, they account for a sizeable share of the unorganized sector output and employment.
Increasing the flow of credit to the micro, small and medium enterprises (MSMEs) has been a policy priority
of the Reserve Bank and the Government of India. On a y-o-y basis, the outstanding credit to the MSMEs by
SCBs increased by 14.2 per cent during 2022-23 (as at end-December 2022) as compared with 11.7 per
cent in the corresponding period of the previous year.!

With nearly 63 million micro, small and medium enterprises (MSME’s), the Indian MSME sector is not only
the second largest employment generator in the country but also contributes to over 30 percent of the
Country’s GDP and almost a third of the nation’s manufacturing output and generates over 120 million jobs
across industries and regions in the country contributing towards wealth creation at the grassroot level.

Government launched ‘Raising and Accelerating MSME Performance (RAMP)’ scheme with a total outlay of
Rs. 6,062.45 crore. Government launched the ‘Capacity Building of First-Time MSME Exporters (CBFTE)’
scheme to boost the quality of MSME products and services to match international standards for the global
market.

Also, in Business Correspondents (BCs) segment, total banking outlets in villages in BCs has significantly
increased from 34,174 in March 2010 to 16,79,226 (provisional) in December 2022 as per RBI Annual
Report 2022-23 which states a great opportunity for your Company in this segment.

In accordance with the data published in RBI Bulletin for the month of March, 2023, the Trade Receivables
Discounting System (TReDS) platforms have enabled factoring of MSME receivables in a transparent and
competitive manner, thereby improving the liquidity position of MSMEs. On an average 35,000 Factoring
Units (FUs) worth Rs 7200 crore are discounted or financed in TReDS every month.

Even in TReDS, many enhancements, like insurance facility, commencement of secondary market
operations and modification in eligibility criteria have been announces. These measures will empower the
MSME:s to realise their dues faster and in a more cost-effective manner.

Digital public infrastructure for Financial Inclusion

The G20, through the Global partnership for Financial Inclusion (GPFI), is facilitating a dialogue on financial
inclusion in the global forum. The focus is on the unserved and underserved individuals and on micro, small
and medium enterprises.

! As per RBI Annual Report 2022-23



Looking Ahead

The deepening and widening of financial inclusion will drive the growth in financialisation of savings in
India. One specific area where digital lending has the potential to be a catalyst for economic growth is cash-
flow based lending to MSMEs. Increase in number of digitalization of transactions, particularly in rural
sector, will help to access and monitor the financial position of the customers.

MSMEs are an important engine of growth for the Indian economy as they contribute around 45 percent of
exports and provide employment opportunities to more than 11.1 crore people. The provision of
appropriate credit for MSMEs through seamless and digital cash-flow based lending will provide them with
much needed impetus. It would enable lenders to leverage real time cash-flow data to reimagine end to end
lending process by “sachetisation” of products.

The Ministry of MSME consists of Small & Medium Enterprises (SME) Division, Agro & Rural Industry (ARI)
Division, Administration & Financial Institutions (AFI) Division, Integrated Finance Wing (IFW) and Data
Analytics and Technical Co-ordination (DATC) Wing, besides the Office of the Development Commissioner
(DC, MSME) as an attached office and other subordinate organizations.

The Micro, Small & Medium Enterprises (MSMEs) have been contributing significantly to the expansion of
entrepreneurial endeavors through business innovations. The MSMEs are widening their domain across
sectors of the economy, producing diverse range of products and services to meet demands of domestic as
well as global markets. The MSMEs in India are playing a crucial role by providing large employment
opportunities at comparatively lower capital cost than large industries as well as through industrialization
of rural & backward areas, inter alia, reducing regional imbalances, assuring more equitable distribution of
national income and wealth.

As economic is much stable after finish of waves of COVID-19, the all segment in financial sector, especially
MSME, corporate lending and BCs are booming and having greater returns.

Overall, government, economic, internal and external factors seems positive in favor of the Company.
Hence, Management of your Company can see positive outlook of the Company in the years to come.

C. Opportunities:

The future posits that NBFCs will continue to experience robust growth with minimal instances of
delinquencies if the credit flow doesn’t stop and the risk mitigation mechanisms improve. As a whole, this
calls for wider adoption of technology and adopting unorthodox lending strategies to find the niche of
product-market fit. For instance, some of the new-age digital lenders supply credit to small businesses
using point-of-sale terminal data as a proxy for the cash flows and the loans are disbursed through an
electronic engine which makes the process safer as well as faster. Using such unique models, the firms are
able to navigate the turbulent environment successfully.

Further, the management has view that there are following opportunities in MSME space:
a). Macro Environment:
e Indiais one of the world’s fastest-growing economies, boasting the sixth largest GDP.
e Itis the third largest economy on PPP.
e As of November 25 2022, the Udyam Registration portal registered 12,201,448 MSMEs, micro-
enterprises stood at 96.17%, small enterprises at 3.49% and midsized enterprises at 0.32%.
e There are around 5—60 million MSME'’s in India, employees the largest workforce except for
Agriculture.
e Over the last decade MSME'’s have contributed to roughly one-third of India’s GDP, however it is
lower than other countries.
e The Indian Microfinance Market is anticipated to grow at a brisk CAGR of more than 40% through
2025.
o Atotal of 1.81 crore loans were disbursed during Q2 FY2022-23, as against 1.85 crore loans in Q2
FY2021-22, as per the latest report by Microfinance Institutions Network (MFIN).
e With growing income, significant number of our customers are expected to migrate up the
pyramid.
e NBFC-MFIs are the second largest provider of micro-credit with a loan amount outstanding of Rs
1,10,418 crore, accounting for 36.7 per cent of total industry portfolio.
b). MSME Credit Demands:



» Millions of MSMEs lack proper documentation, or cannot offer meaningful collateral to secure a
formal loan.
*  Majority of MSMEs have resorted to informal financing (friends, family, money lenders) to address
their credit needs.
*  According to Trans union CIBIL reports on MSME (2016), roughly 40% of India’s MSME lending is
in the informal sector.
c). Loan Process pain in formal sector:
* Loan processing time/timeliness is by far the largest pain area.
* These pain points are substantial enough to compel many MSMEs to continue to seek out informal
sources, often at much higher interest rate.
d), Market Positioning:
¢ Unmet Demand of 20 lakh crores.
*  96% of MSMEs having annual revenue of less than INR 1 Crores.

Considering above factors, there is huge opportunity in MSME sector which is vision of the Company to
meet the requirement of MSME space.

D. Threats:

The Company identifies operational and event risks as threats. The operational risks are risk of a loss
resulting from inadequate or failed internal process, people and systems. To prepare for these risks, the
Company has detailed process notes, credit manuals and inbuilt maker checker systems. The various
internal and external environments are considered as threats to the Company. The next COVID-19 wave
can also be threats to business of the Company, however, we assume there is minor chances of this.
However, the Company has various risk mitigation framework and processes at credit level to mitigate the
risk associates with internal environment.

E. Sector wise or product wise performance

The Company is in following sector in small ticket business loans:

Retai . .

Dairy Kirana /General Store Restaurants Textile and Garments
Manufacturer & Job
Agr’DiZ‘;g: S’Zen g Chemist Auto Service Centre TS
Manufacturers
Wood and Plastic Diagnostic Centres Footwear Manufacturer
Agrlf_' Chfj’(nicals/ e
ertilizers
: Tailoring/Job work Bag Manufacturer
Dealers/ Retailers Cement and Steel g
Cattle Feed Traders -
Manufacturers/ Plumbing work/ Wood & Plastic
Retailers/ Consumer Durables Electrician Furniture Manufacturer
. traders
Distributers Bakery / Sweet Bottled Water
; Shops Manufacturer &
Animal
Cloth Merchents Suppliers
H u;bal;;ir y & Tent House
eiLidng Businesses

Foot wear Retailers

Hardware, Electrical
Sanitary wear Trader /
Retailer




As above explained in Industry segment, the industry sector is improving and management expects a
positive impact on growth of this sector in coming financial years.

The Company has small ticket business loan, MFI-NBFC and large ticket business loans. The small ticket
business loans are performing well, having ticket size of Rs. 3 lakh or less. The collection efficiency of small
ticket business loans up to ticket size of Rs, 3.5 lakh and less is 97% on consistent basis. The other products
are also performing well. The total collection efficiency of the Company is an average of 97%. The Company,
on regular basis, make changes in its policies to optimize the performance of product and the same is being
reviewed by the Board on regular basis.

E. Outlook of the Company

Details of Company’s products are mentioned under this Report. The following points are important
internal factor of the Company

> People & Culture

As a company we have a firm belief that people are its biggest asset. The Company encourage and nurture
human talent by providing relevant trainings, culture and opportunities to upgrade skills required for the
business,

In this regards, the Company has formulated various programs and training at all levels, particularly,
frontline business staffs. The Company has incentive policies to reward and appreciate exception work of
the staff of the Company. The Company focus on the productivity of employees and provide monthly
incentives and award to business staff of the Company. The Company has open culture and provide
platform for grievances of the employees. The Company has improved and in continuous process to
improve the infrastructure of its branches. The Company has policies

> Cost
The Company has regular checks on OPEX of the Company. Costs of your Company is under control.
» Collection infrastructure

The Company has redeployed the entire Sales force into collection which will help us to manage costs as
well as focus on use of our limited resources into the most important activity and in an efficient way. The
Company, from time to time, make changes in its collection policies to improve the performance of assets.

G. Internal Control Systems and Their Adequacy.

The Company’s internal control system is designed to ensure operational efficiency, protection and
conservation of resources, accuracy and promptness in financial reporting and compliance with laws and
regulations. The internal control system is supported by an internal audit process for reviewing the
adequacy and efficacy of the Company’s internal controls, including its systems and processes and
compliance with regulations and procedures. Your Company have proper checker maker system thought
all departments. The Statutory Auditors also review and specify the internal financial controls in its report.

H. Risk and Concerns

As discussed above threats, the Company have defined process and strategies to deal with internal and
external environment risks, which also review by the Board or Risk Management Committee on periodic
basis. The Company has Board constituted Risk Management Committee which review, monitor and
mitigate various risks including credit risks, liquidity risks etc. In order to mitigate risk, the Company
review and change its policies from time to time.

L. Discussion on financial performance with respect to operational performance

The Company offers small ticket business loans against collateral of property and is also engaged in the
business of Business Correspondent on behalf of various banks/financial institutions. As on March 31,
2023, SFL had 2,69,023 loans and 178 branches across 10 states. The Company plans to continue its growth



journey by opening more branches and further investing in technology to optimize operating costs and
improve collection efficiency.

During the year under review, the Company has reported profit before tax of Rs 821.40 Lakhs as compared
to loss before tax of Rs. (2,697.56) Lakhs in the previous year.

During the period under review, your Company has disbursed Rs. 12,742.20 Lakhs in SME Business and Rs.
25,369.11 Lakhs in JLG Business during the financial year ended March 31, 2023. The Company has AUM
of Rs. 22,557.32 Lakhs on book (SME Business) and INR 45,602.00 Lakhs off book (JLG Business) as on
March 31, 2023.

Operational Highlights for the financial year 2022-23 are as follows:

Particulars Year ended March 31,2023 | Year ended March 31, 2022
Number of Branches 178 167
Number of Active Borrowers 2,69,023 3,54,204
Gross Loan Portfolio (in Lakhs) 22,557.32 16,633.08
Number of Employees 1,612 1,818
Total Disbursement (in Lakhs) - on 12,742.20 9,561.50
book (SME Business)

Total Disbursement (in Lakhs) - off 25,369.11 57,735.51
book (JLG Business)

No. of States (in Operation) 10 10

Material Developments in Human Resources

As on March 31, 2023, the Company has 1601 number of employees as compared to 1615 employees as on
March 31, 2022. During the financial year 2022-23, the following material developments took place in
Human Resources:

» Post-merger 1244 employees moved successfully from Taraashna Financial Services Limited i.e.
Transferor Company to the Company w.e.f. March 01, 2023.

» Performers Club - Monthly reward & certificate for exceptional front line performers from Sales &
Collection Department.

» Monthly Call with Branch Managers & HR Head (To identify & resolve any operational hazard at
branch level).

» Working on Animated Training Module for all employees.

» Training:- Total number of manpower trained - 1255 employees under 4751 training session,
producing 10358 Training Manhours & 1294 Mandays during the Jan & Feb’2023 FY. 2022-23.
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valuable customers and shareholders. The Board, in specific, wishes to place on record its sincere
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management see positive impact on business and operations of the Company in upcoming years.
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SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED
: MARCH 31, 2023 (Form Mo, MR-3)
fPrtr:aurmla: to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and ritle Neo.9 of the Companies
(Appointmentand Remuneration Personnel) Rules, 2014

To,

The Members

Satin Finserv Limited

dth Floor, B wing, Plot No_ 492 UdyogVihar,
Phase Il Gurugram Haryana 122015

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the
adherence to corporate practices by SATIN FINSERV LIMITED (CIN: UB5999HRZ018PLCO99128) (hereinafter
called the company). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basts for
evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing our opinjon therean.

Based on our verification of Company's books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and made
available and other records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the Company,
its officers; agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, in our opinion we
hereby report that, the Company has, during the audit period covering the financial year ended on March 31,
2023 complied with the statutory provisions stated hereunder and alse that the Company has proper
Boardprocesses and compliancermechanism in place to-the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting

made herginafter:

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained
by the Company for the financial year ended on March 31, 2023 and made available to us, according to the
orovisions of!

i,  The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder;

i, The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 {SCRA'} and the rules made thereunder;(Not
Applicable)

i, Thie Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder;

i Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1399 and the rules and regulations made there under to
theextent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial
Borrowings; v

v.  The following Regulations and Guidelines prescrived under the Securities and Exchange Board of
Imdia Act, 1992 {"SEBI Act'):-
al The Securities and Exchange Board of India [Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015;
bl The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acguisition of $hares and Takeovers)

Regulations, 2011; (Not Applicable)}




¢} The Securities and Exchange Board of India (lssue of Capital and Disclosure
RequirernentsRegulations, 2009;(Not Applicable)
d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share based Employee Benefits) Regulations,
2014;(Not Applicable}
&) THe Securities and Exchange Board of India {lssue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations,
2008:(Not Applicable)
f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents)
Regulations, 1993 regardiﬁg the Companies Act and dealing with client;
g)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India {Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009; (Not
Applicable} and
h)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India {Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 1998;(Not
Applicable)
i, Employees’ Provident Funds & Misc. Provisions Act, 1852,
wit, Employees” State Insurance Act, 1948 |
wiii. Maternity Benefit Act, 1361;
ix, Minimum Wages Act, 1948;
X Payment of Bonus Act, 1965
xi.  Paymentof Gratuity Act, 1972
Xii., Delhi Shops and Establishments Act, 1954, Punjab Shops and Commercial Establishments Act, 1958,
Uttar Pradesh Shops and Commercial Establishment Act, 1962, Rajasthan Shops And Commercial
Establishments Acts, 1958,
xiii, REI Act, 1934 refating to NBFC's

We have alse examined compliance with the applicable clauses of Secretarial Standard Issued by the Institute
of Company Secretaries of India.

We report that, during the pericd under review, the Company has complied with the provisions of the Acts,
Rules, Regulations, and Guidelinesmentioned above.

We further report that, based on the information provided and the representation made by the Company
arid also on the review of the compliarices report of Company Secretary/Chief Financial Officer/Whaole Time
Director and respective departmental heads taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Company in
their meetings, and thus in our opinion, adequate system and process exist in the Company to monitar and
ensure compliances with provisions of various applicable laws including labour laws and eénvirenmental laws.

We Further réport that The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with praper balance of
Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors. The changes in the composition of
the Board of Girectors that took place gduring the period under review were carried out in compliance with
thie provisions of the Act,

Adequate notice is given to all dlrecmrb to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on
agenda were sent at least seven days in advance except In single instance where shorter notice was given in
compliance with the provisions of Section 173 of the Companies Act, 2013 and a system exists for seeking
and obtaining further information and clarifications: on the agenda items before the ;EEEI_ and for
meaningful participation at the meeting. / gE




Majority decision is carried through while the dissenting members' views are captured and recorded as part
of the minutes.

We further report that there are adeguate systems and processes in the company, commensurate with the
size and operations of the company to mohitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules,
regulations and guigdelines,

We further report that during the audit period the following specific events/actions have taken placein
pursuance of the above referred laws, rules, regulations, guidelines, standards, etc. referred toabove which
may have a major bearing on the company’s affairs:

The Board of Directors of Taraashna Financial Services Limited (“TFSL"/“merged entity”/"Transferor
Company”) and Satin Finserv Limited (“SFL"/“Transferee Company”), in their respective meetings held on
August 03, 2021, had considered and approved the Scheme of Arrangement for Amalgamation of TESL with
SFL and their respective shareholders and creditors (‘Scheme’) under Sections 230 to 234 of the Companies
Act, 2013 (“Act") and other applicable provisions of the Act and rules made thereunder. Further, after
obtaining requisite NOCs from sharehaldersfcreditqr-s of both companies, & joint First Mation Application was
filad before Hon'ble NCLT, Chandigarh Bench. The said First Motion Application was then allowed by the
Hon'ble NCLT vide its order dated May 17, 2022. Conseguently, the both companies duly filed a joint Second
Motion Petition before Hon'ble NCLT, on May 25, 2022 seeking necessary directionis to serve notices to the
regulatory authorities and to cause newspapers publications for intimating the final date of hearing. The
companies duly completed the process as preseribed under the provisions of Section 230-232 of the
Companies Act, 2013 and rules made thereunder. Accordingly, the Hon'ble NCLT, vide its order dated lanuary
31, 2023 approved the said Scheme of Arrangement for Amalgamation and after requisite filing with
concerned ROC, the said Scheme got effective from March 01, 2023 with Appointed Date April 01,2021,

CP No, 5980
UDIN: FOD842BE000142641
Date: 19/04/2023

Place; New Delhi

Note: This réport is to be read with our fetter of even date which is annexed as Annexure-Aand forms an
integral part of this report.



To,

Annexure-‘A

The Members

Satin Finserv Limited

4th Floor, B wing, Plot No. 492 Udyog Vihar,

Phase Il Gurugram Haryana 122016

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter:

Maintenarice of secretarial records is the responsibility of the management of the Company. Our
responsibility is to express as opinion on these secretarial records based on our examination,

We have followed the audit practices and process as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about
the correctness of the contents of the secretarial records. The verification was done on a test basis to ensure
that correct facts are reflected in secretarial records, we believe that the process and practices, we followed
provide a reasonabile basis for our opinion,

We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of the financial records and books of accounts of
the Company.

Wherever required, we have obtained the management representation about the compliance of laws, rules
and regulations and happening of events etc.

The compliance of the provisions of corporate and other applicable laws, rules and regulations, and
standards is the responsibility of the management. Our examination was limited to the verification of the
procedures on test basis,

The Secretarial audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the
efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

CP No. 5980

UM FOOS4ZREOO0142641
Date: 18,/04/2023

Place: New Delhi
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